
     
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Walter Fajet, Ph. D.                                  Councilman Bob Best  

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo                     Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph. D. 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, September 26, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

 (In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 

 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Recognizing Charles Hill for Eighteen (18) Years of Service on the Historic 
Preservation Board 
 

5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general City business, may do so in 
person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the instructions on pages 3-4. This 
portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open 
Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments 
on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any 
question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council 
meetings and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 

 

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 29, 2022 – Workshop Meeting 
B) September 12, 2022 – Regular Meeting 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  None.  
 

8. Public Hearings:    

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Adopting The Final Millage Rate For The Fiscal Year Commencing October 1, 



2022 And Ending September 30, 2023 In The Amount Of 6.9100 Mills, Which Is 4.14 % Higher 
Than The Roll-Back Rate Of 6.6352 Mills; Announcing The Percentage Increase In Property 
Taxes; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Adopting A Final Budget For The Fiscal Year Commencing October 1, 2022 And 
Ending September 30, 2023; Providing For Expenditure Of Budgeted Funds; Providing For 
Budgetary Controls; Providing For Grants And Gifts; Providing For Budget Amendments; 
Providing For Encumbrances; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

C) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Amending Section 31-11, “Purchasing, Procurement, And Sale Procedures” Of The City’s 
Code Of Ordinances To Update The City’s Procurement Provisions; Providing For Conflicts; 
Providing For Severability; Providing For Codification; And Providing For An Effective Date 

  

D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, [Approving/Denying] A Variance Application By Juan A. Calvo For 
Property Located At 400 Park Street To Provide A 10’8” Front Yard Setback Where Section 150-
060(E) Of The Code Requires A Minimum Required Front Yard Of Not Less Than 30 Feet Or The 
Average Depth Of The Front Yard Of The Lot Or Lots Next Adjacent Thereto On Either Side, 
Whichever Is The Lesser Of The Two; Providing For Conditions; Providing For Violations; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Approving The Purchase Of Three Vehicles From Duval Ford, LLC In An Amount 
Not To Exceed $172,693.57 Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of The Florida Sheriffs 
Association Contract Nos. FSA 20-Veh18.0 And FSA 20-Vel28.0 Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) 
Of The City Code; Declaring Certain Vehicles As Surplus Property; Authorizing The Sale Or 
Disposition Of Surplus Property; Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 

10. Old Business: None. 
 

11. New Business: 
 

A)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Selecting Amerant Bank, N.A. For Banking Services Pursuant To Request For 
Proposals No. 05-21/22; Approving A Treasury Management Master Agreement; Providing For 
Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Selecting Downtown Towing Company, Inc. For Citywide Towing Services 
Pursuant To Request For Proposals No. 01-21/22; Providing For Authorization; And Providing 
For An Effective Date 

 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Establishing The Centennial Committee; Providing For Authorization; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 



 

D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Extending The Term Of The Business And Economic Development Task Force 
From September 30, 2022, Through October 31, 2022; Providing For Implementation; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 

12. Other Business:  None. 
  

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, September 26, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at  

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, 
alternatively, may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis and space is limited.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
The City highly encourages those in attendance to wear facial coverings and abide by social distancing as 

recommended by the CDC.   

WATCH THE MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast, but will be available for later viewing) 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  
(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  
1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 

the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: 
Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. 
Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the 
agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Members of the public may attend the meeting at the physical meeting location 
stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. 
Please press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and 
identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  



Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission 
to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present. In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when 
addressing the Council during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 

COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE 

OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE 

MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH 

RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or 
entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and 
online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 



 
 1 

   
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 29, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
In-Person/Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant 

to Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Walter Fajet, Ph.D  
Councilman Bob Best 
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D. 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria  
City Attorney Haydee Sera  
Human Resource Director Bill Collins 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell  
Golf Superintendent Laurie Bland  
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Police Executive Assistant Ariadna Quintana 
Public Works Director Lazaro Garaboa 
Public Works Administrative Assistant Lizette Fuentes 
Elderly Services Manager Tammy Key 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Victor Vazquez 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Workshop on Proposed Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget 
 
 I. Opening Remarks by City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
 
Mr. Alonso updated the City Council with changes made during the first budget workshop. 
He stated that millage still maintained at 6.9900 with a surplus of $170,258.00.  He listed 
several items that the Council set aside from the prior workshop, such as cutting the City 
Events line item, increasing the City’s donation to the River Cities Festival, increasing the 
subsidy for the Historic Society, and a new phone app communications system for City-
wide use.  He then introduced the Human Resources Director, Bill Collins. 



 
 2 

 
 I. Human Resources 
 
Mr. Alonso introduced Bill Collins, the Human Resources Director.  The budget an increase 
in health and COLA for employees.  The budget is 4.9% higher, or $15,481 than the 
FY21/22. 
  
Mr. Collins was available to answer any of the Council’s questions.  There were no further 
changes to this portion of the budget. 
 

II. City Attorney 
 
Mr. Alonso explained that the proposed budget is $18,000 lower than the current year and 
includes a $12,000 increase to the monthly retainer. There were no changes to the City 
Attorney’s budget. 

 
III. Golf  

 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Golf Department budget is $181,514 
lower than last year. He stated that the Golf Course will be closed for renovations from April 
to September which results in a $454,110 loss of revenue, but will be funded through a 
bank note that the City will acquire in order to cover the costs for the project.  
 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell answered the Council’s questions.  Golf Course Maintenance 
Superintendent Laurie Bland were present to answer questions regarding the golf 
maintenance budget; no further changes were made. 

 
IV. City Manager 

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the City Manager’s budget is $11,333 lower than last year.  He 
stated that the City Manager budget includes $45,000 for lobbyist services and $36,000 for 
grant writing services.   
 
There were no further changes in this portion of the budget. 
 

V. Public Services Department 
 

i. Administration 
 
Mr. Alonso stated that the Administration budget is approximately $12,567 higher due to 
COLA.  He also stated that the entire Public Works budget for the upcoming fiscal year is 
$2,249,881 lower than FY2021-2022.  There were no changes in this portion of the budget. 

 
 
 



 
 3 

ii. Streets/Streetlights Division 
  
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso explained the budget is $52,146 lower or 12% than 
the current year.  The decrease is due to reduction of one full time employee and transfer 
to public properties. The budget includes $50,000 for city-wide tree planting. 
 

iii. Public Properties  
  
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Public Properties budget is about 
$32,135 higher than the current year.  Budget includes $100,000 for tree trimming city-
wide.  
 

iv. Building Maintenance 
 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso said the department is $6,383 higher than the 
current year.  There were no further questions for this section of the budget. 

 
v. Fleet Maintenance 

 
Mr. Alonso explained that the Fleet Maintenance budget is $40,500 lower than the current 
year.   
 

vi. Road and Transportation 
 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Road and Transportation, Sanitation 
and Stormwater funds do not impact the General Fund. The proposed budget is $3,801 
higher than FY2021-2022.  The Road and Transportation fund includes funds from the 
Citizens Independent Transportation Trust (CITT) and the projected revenue for next year 
is approximately $632,669.  This budget includes funding for alley maintenance new 
sidewalks city-wide, milling and paving various roads City-wide, and also includes the City’s 
shuttle bus service. 

 
vii. Sanitation 

 
The Sanitation fund is self-sufficient as it is funded through the sanitation fees that are 
collected on an annual basis, according to Mr. Alonso.  The proposed budget is $50,050 
higher than this year.  Budget also includes $25,000 for the purchase of a new pick up truck 
to replace the current unit which has outlived its service. 

 
viii. Stormwater 

  
Mr. Alonso explained that the Stormwater fund includes fees collected through the water 
bill.  The budget is $18,466 higher than the previous year.  Total revenues totaled 
$427,102. 

 



 
 4 

VI. Police 
 

Mr. Alonso commented that the Police Department budget is a $383,782 increase than last 
year.  Increase of 3% pay raise in accordance with FOP contract.  The budget includes 
equipment purchases such as two K-9 police vehicles, one new patrol vehicle, five new 
Panasonic Toughbook laptops for police vehicles.  
 
Police Chief Guzman answered Council’s questions to their satisfaction. There was no 
further action on this section of the budget. 
 

VII. LETF Fund 
 
The proposed budget is $160,954 for the upcoming fiscal year. The Community Policing 
Office, except for personnel, is funded by the Law Enforcement Trust Fund based on 
federal forfeitures and guidelines, according to Chief Guzman.    There were no changes in 
this portion of the agenda. 
 

VIII. Debt Service 
 
Mr. Alonso explained that the budget shows an decrease of $11,331.  There were no 
further questions on this section of the budget.   
 
 
4. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 26th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO 
APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR 
HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED 
PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE 
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY 
THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT 
AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 

 1 

      

 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Monday, September 12, 2022 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 
Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Walter Fajet, Ph.D. 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.  
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Planning Director Chris Heid (via Zoom) 
 
2. Invocation:  Offered by Councilman Bob Best 
 Pledge of Allegiance: The audience participated in leading the pledge. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

 A) Swearing-in Ceremony for Alexander M. Alvarez, Miami Springs Police 
Department, by Chief Armando Guzman 

 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed Chief Guzman to the meeting.  Chief Guzman proceeded 
to swear-in new police officer Alexander M. Alvarez.  Officer Alvarez thanked the 
Chief, City Administration and the City Council for the opportunity and the 
support. 

 
B) Introduction by the newly appointed Miami-Dade County Fire Chief Raied 

S. Jadallah 
 

Mayor Mitchell recognized Fire Chief Raied Jadallah.  He took a moment to 
introduce himself and stated his recent appointment as the new Miami-Dade Fire 
Rescue Fire Chief.  He stated he looks forward to continue meeting the needs of 



 

 2 

the City and working with the community on services.  He thanked the Mayor and 
City Council for the opportunity to present himself at the meeting. 

 
C) Yard of the Month Award for July 2022 – 1281 Heron Avenue – Kevin and 

Jessica Mulet  
 

Mayor Mitchell announced the Yard of the Month for July 2022, Mr. and Mrs. Mulet 
at 1281 Heron Avenue, the Mulet’s were present to receive the award.  Mr. and Mrs. 
Mulet thanked the Mayor and Council, and the City for the recognition. 

 
D) Recognizing the City Hall Lobby Artist of the Month for September 2022 – 

Joan Cavalier 
 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed Mrs. Joan Cavalier to the meeting.  Mrs. Cavalier 
thanked the City Council and Administration for allowing her to present her 
artwork in the City Hall Lobby.        

 
5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 
Council:  Jorge Fors, 1415 Algeria Avenue; and Jorge Santin 1249 Heron Avenue. 
 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 15, 2022 – Workshop Meeting 
B) August 22, 2022 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes of August 15, 2022 Budget 
Workshop and August 22, 2022 Regular Meeting.  Councilman Vazquez seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  
 
 A) Re-appointing Board Member Wendy Anderson-Booher to the Ecology 
Board  
 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria provided information on the process of re-
appointing a board member after three consecutive terms.  It was the general 
consensus of the City Council to reappoint Ms. Anderson-Booher to the Ecology 
Board. 
 
8. Public Hearings:   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs, Florida, Adopting The Proposed Millage Rate For Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 In The Amount Of 6.9900 Mills, Which Is 5.35% Higher Than The Roll-Back Rate 
Of 6.6352 Mills, To Balance The General Fund For Fiscal Year 2022-2023; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 



 

 3 

 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title and explained that the 
millage rate is currently set at 6.9900 with a deficit of $148,142, and having a 
$151,858 for Council allocations.  He stated that the following items have been 
added, the River Cities Festival increased, communications city-wide phone app, 
subsidy for the Historic Society requests, movie nights throughout the year, 
approving a limit on donation requests from civic groups and local schools, and 
adding funding to City Attorney’s budget for City Code revisions.  He stated that 
staff would need direction on the recent proposal made by Councilman Best on 
allocating an additional 2% COLA to those General employees earning $50,000 of 
less.  He provided a breakdown on the number of employees that will be receiving 
the additional benefit and which departments it would affect.  The City Manager 
further stated that the batting cage area is in dire need of repairs due to safety 
concerns and will require $30,000 of updating, he also provided millage rate 
options for the City Council to consider with the additional funding and the 
request by Councilman Best. 
 
Mayor Mitchell opened the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public 
hearing closed.   
 
After much discussion, Vice Mayor Fajet moved to approve a millage rate of 
6.9100.  Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 3-2 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilwoman Bravo, and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes; Councilman Best and Councilman Vazquez voting No. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Adopting A Tentative Budget For The Fiscal Year Commencing 
October 1, 2022, And Ending September 30, 2023; Confirming Date Of Second Public 
Hearing; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title, Mayor Mitchell opened 
the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public hearing closed.   
 
There was no further discussion.  Vice Mayor Fajet moved to approve the 
Resolution.  Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 4-1 on roll 
call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilwoman Bravo, 
Councilman Vazquez, and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes; Councilman Best voting No. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving The Issuance Of A Purchase Order To Ovas & Co, 
LLLC For Citywide Asphalt Patching Services On An As-Needed Basis In An Amount 
Not To Exceed $25,000; Providing For A Waiver Of Competitive Bidding; Providing For 
Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the Resolution by title. 
 



 

 4 

Councilwoman Bravo moved to approve the Item.  Councilman Best seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
B) Resolution - A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving An Agreement With CivicPlus, LLC For The 
Seeclickfix 3-1-1 Service Request Management Application Application; Authorizing The 
City Manager To Issue A Purchase Order To CivicPlus, LLC For The Seeclickfix 3-1-1 
Service Request Management Application In An Amount Not To Exceed $15,263.70 For 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 And Budgeted Funds In Future Fiscal Years; Providing For 
Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 

 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the Resolution by title.  Michael 
Nicholson and Andrew Shetty from CivicPlus provided an audio and visual 
presentation.  
 
After some discussion, Councilman Best moved to approve Item 9B.  Councilman 
Vazquez seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman 
Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:  None at this time. 

 
11. New Business:   
 

A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, 
Florida, Amending Section 31-11, “Purchasing, Procurement, And Sale Procedures” Of 
The City’s Code Of Ordinances To Update The City’s Procurement Provisions; Providing 
For Conflicts; Providing For Severability; Providing For Codification; And Providing For 
An Effective Date  
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title and the staff memo for 
the record. 
 
After some discussion, Councilwoman Bravo moved to approve the Ordinance on 
first reading.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
 B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs, Florida, [Approving/Denying] A Variance Application By Juan A. Calvo 
For Property Located At 400 Park Street To Provide A 10’8” Front Yard Setback Where 
Section 150-060(E) Of The Code Requires A Minimum Required Front Yard Of Not Less 
Than 30 Feet Or The Average Depth Of The Front Yard Of The Lot Or Lots Next 
Adjacent Thereto On Either Side, Whichever Is The Lesser Of The Two; Providing For 
Conditions; Providing For Violations; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 



 

 5 

This item was deferred to a future meeting.  
 
C) Discussion on the 100th Year Celebration Committee process 
 

City Manager William Alonso read the staff memo for the record.  He stated that 
the recommendation would be that the City Council appoint one member to the 
committee, establish a scope of work for the committee, and create a timeline for 
the committee to complete their work and report to Council.  The City Council 
expressed an interest in hiring an event coordinator or event production company, 
they also stated that the most fitting Council member to liaise the committee is 
Councilman Vazquez. He shared his ideas and hopes to be a part of a great event 
in the upcoming years.  City Attorney Haydee Sera explained that she will finalize 
the draft resolution and provide a final resolution at the next meeting for Council 
consideration.  
 
12. Other Business:  None at this time.  
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera stated that there are no further updates as of now on 
the annexation Interlocal Agreement. She stated that she will keep the City posted 
as soon as something comes about. 
  

B) City Manager 
 

City Manager William Alonso had no report at this time.  Assistant City Manager 
Tammy Romero announced all the upcoming City events and stated that more 
information is available on the City website. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Vice Mayor Fajet thanked the City Manager for his work on the budget process; he 
stated that his thoughts were with the 9/11 commemoration yesterday.  He also 
announced that Dr. Rolando Montoya, former Miami Dade College President, will 
be at AIE at 7:00 p.m. speaking on “Pedro Pan” which is hosted by the Miami 
Springs Historical Museum, he encouraged the community to come out and 
support the event and Museum. 
 
Councilman Vazquez gave his heartfelt thoughts and prayers to those that 
perished in the 9/11 tragedy.     
 
Councilwoman Bravo stated that the meeting was quite productive and being able 
to help the residents of the City during the budget process this year is always 
nice.  She gave her deepest condolences to the Lucy Fernandez family, as her 
funeral services were held today and is praying for the three girls that are in 
critical condition that were in the same accident as Ms. Fernandez. 



 

 6 

 
Councilman Best also gave his heartfelt prayers to the victims and the surviving 
victims of the 9/11 tragedy. 
 
Mayor Mitchell reminded the community that the Farewell Evening honoring 
Commissioner Sosa’s years of service to Miami-Dade County Board of 
Commission and most of all for to the City of Miami Springs, is on September 28th 
from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.; a cocktail reception will be held at the Curtiss 
Mansion, and stated that tickets are limited and encourages everyone to reserve a 
ticket.  Mayor Mitchell congratulated all of the City Council on a successful budget 
process, and working to once again lowering the millage rate without affecting 
City services. 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 



 

 7 

 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 26th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY 
DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED 
A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM 
RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO 
BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE 
INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 –  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE 
FINAL MILLAGE RATE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
COMMENCING OCTOBER 1, 2022 AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 6.9100 MILLS, 
WHICH IS 4.14 % HIGHER THAN THE ROLL-BACK RATE 
OF 6.6352 MILLS; ANNOUNCING THE PERCENTAGE 
INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAXES; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 200.065, Florida Statutes, the Miami-Dade 
County Property Appraiser (“Property Appraiser”) has certified the taxable value within 
the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) for the year 2022, which includes all real property 
within the City; and 

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-4014 
determining the proposed millage rate for the fiscal year commencing October 1, 2022 
and further scheduled public hearings on the millage rate as required by Section 200.065, 
Florida Statutes, the first hearing was held on Monday, September 12, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. 
and the second to be held on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 7:00 P.M., both at City of 
Miami Springs, City Hall, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166; and 

WHEREAS, at the initial public hearing on September 12, 2022, the City Council 
adopted Resolution No. 2022-4027 setting a tentative millage rate of 6.9100 mills; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary to levy an ad valorem millage 
rate in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the City Manager have reviewed the City’s 
proposed Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, considered an estimate of the necessary 
expenditures contemplated for in the Budget, and have determined that the final millage 
rate levy set forth below provides the necessary funds for such expenditures; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council, has considered the general public’s comments 
regarding the final millage rate, has complied with the notice requirements of Florida 
law, and wishes to adopt the City’s final millage rate to balance the final budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Section 1. Recitals Adopted. That the above-stated recitals are hereby 
adopted and confirmed.  

Section 2. Adopting Final Millage Rate and Announcing Rolled-Back Rate. 
That the City of Miami Spring’s final millage rate to be levied for the fiscal year 
commencing October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2023 is hereby fixed at 6.9100 
mills per $1,000.00 of assessed property value, which is 4.14% greater than the rolled-
back rate of 6.6352 mills per $1,000.00 of assessed property value.  

Section 3. Effective Date. That this Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its adoption.  
The motion was seconded by      and upon being put to a vote, the 
vote was as follows: 
 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 –  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A 
FINAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING 
OCTOBER 1, 2022 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; 
PROVIDING FOR EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; 
PROVIDING FOR BUDGETARY CONTROLS; PROVIDING 
FOR GRANTS AND GIFTS; PROVIDING FOR BUDGET 
AMENDMENTS; PROVIDING FOR ENCUMBRANCES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 200.065, Florida Statutes, the Miami-Dade 
County Property Appraiser (“Property Appraiser”) has certified the taxable value within 
the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) for the year 2022, which includes all real property 
within the City; and 

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-4014 
determining the proposed millage rate for the fiscal year commencing October 1, 2022 
and further scheduled public hearings on the millage rate as required by Section 200.065, 
Florida Statutes, the first hearing to be held on Monday, September 12, 2022 at 7:00 P.M. 
and the second to be held on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 7:00 P.M., both at City of 
Miami Springs, City Hall, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted to the City Council a budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023 showing estimates of revenues and expenditures, together with the 
character and object of expenditures and an estimate of all municipal projects pending or 
to be undertaken; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council and the City Manager have reviewed the City’s 
proposed Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, considered an estimate of the necessary 
expenditures contemplated for in the Budget, and determined the final millage rate levy 
to provide the necessary funds for such expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the general public’s comments 
regarding the proposed and final budgets, has complied with the notice requirements of 
Florida law, and wishes to adopt the City’s final budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals Adopted. That the above-stated recitals are hereby 
adopted and confirmed.  



Section 2. Adopting Budget. The City’s Budget for the fiscal year commencing 
October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2023, is hereby approved and adopted as 
set in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Budget”).  

Section 3. Authorizing Expenditure of Budgeted Funds. Funds appropriated 
in the Budget may be expended by and with the approval of the City Manager in 
accordance with the provisions of the City Charter and applicable laws. City funds shall 
be expended in accordance with the appropriations provided in the Budget adopted 
herein and shall constitute an appropriation of the amounts specified therein. 
Supplemental appropriations or the reduction of appropriations, if any, shall be made in 
accordance with the City Charter, City Code, and applicable laws. 

Section 4. Budget Control. The Budget establishes a limitation on 
expenditures by fund total. Fund limitations require that the total sum allocated to each 
fund for Operating and Capital expenses not be increased or decreased without specific 
authorization by a duly-enacted Resolution affecting such amendment or transfer. 
Therefore, the City Manager may authorize transfers from one individual line item account 
to another and from one department to another so long as the line item and department 
accounts are within the same fund.  

Section 5. Grants and Gifts. If and when the City receives monies from any 
source, be it private or public, by grant, gift, or otherwise, to which there is attached, as a 
condition of acceptance, any limitation regarding the use of expenditures of the monies 
received, the funds so received need not be shown in the Operating Budget nor shall said 
budget be subject to amendment of expenditures as a result of the receipt of said monies, 
but said monies shall only be disbursed and applied toward the purposes for which the 
said funds were received. To ensure the integrity of the Operating Budget, and the 
integrity of the monies received by the City under grants or gifts, all monies received as 
contemplated above must, upon receipt, be segregated and accounted for based upon 
generally accepted accounting principles and, where appropriate, placed into separate 
and individual trust and/or escrow accounts from which any money drawn may only be 
disbursed and applied within the limitations placed upon same.  

Section 6. Amendments. If the City Manager determines than an Operating or 
Capital Fund total will exceed its original appropriation, the City Manager is hereby 
authorized and directed to prepare such resolutions as may be necessary and proper to 
amend the Budget. 

Section 7. Encumbrances. All outstanding encumbrances on September 30, 
2022 shall lapse at that time and all lapsed capital encumbrances shall be re-appropriated 
in the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year.  



Section 8. Effective Date. That this Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by      who moved its 
adoption.  The motion was seconded by      and upon being put to a 
vote, the vote was as follows: 
 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY  



EXHIBIT A 

FINAL BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 

Funds Revenues & Reserves Expense Appropriations & Reserves 
General Fund $20,247,825 $20,247,825
Special Revenue Funds $3,127,858 $3,127,858
Enterprise Fund $3,034,882 $3,034,882
Debt Service Fund $1,672,926 $1,672,926
TOTALS $28,083,491 $28,083,491

 

 



 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2022 

 

To: The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

From: William Alonso, City Manager / Finance Director 

 

Subject: 1st Reading: Ordinance Amending Section 31-11, “Purchasing, Procurement, and 

Sale Procedures.” 
 

RECOMMENDATION It is recommended that the City Council Adopt on first reading the proposed 

Ordinance amending Chapter 31, “General City Policies,” of the City’s Code of Ordinances by amending 

Section 31-11, “Purchasing, Procurement, and Sale Procedures.” 

 
DISCUSSION 

Chapter 31 of the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) Code of Ordinances (“Code”) provides procurement 

regulations and procedures that govern the City’s purchases. The proposed Ordinance amends the City’s 

regulations and procedures by modifying the competitive procurement threshold values as highlighted below: 

Purchase Amount 
Ordinance Proposed 

Revision Council Approval Required 
Applicable Code 

Provision 
Under $5,000.00 No change proposed No §31-11(C)(1)(a). 

Between $5,000.00 and 
$10,000.00 

Between $5,000.00 and 
$20,000.00 

City Council approval is not 

required, but the City Manager 

must obtain three quotes 

§31-11(C)(1)(b) 

Between $10,000.01 and 

$25,000.00 

Between $20,000.01 

and $100,000.00 

City Council approval is 

required and City Manager 

must obtain three quotes 

§31-11(C)(2) 

Over $25,000.00 Over $100,000.00 City Council approval is 

required and the City must 

competitively procure the 

purchase unless exempt under 

Code. 

§31-11(E) 

 

These modifications to the competitive procurement thresholds in the City’s Code of Ordinances will 

improve City staff’s operational efficiency and reduce delays in providing routine goods and services for 

the day to day needs of the City. Additionally, due to increased inflation most procurements quickly exceed 

existing purchasing authority limits and City departments find that their day to day operations are slowed 

down until these items come before Council for approval. Increasing the purchasing limits will allow tasks 

to be completed in a more efficient manner. Lastly, these increases are in line with how other cities procure 

their items as well. 

 

Under the proposed Ordinance, exemptions and exceptions from the competitive procurement requirements 

of Chapter 31 remain unchanged (e.g. purchases made pursuant to contracts competitively procured by state 

or local governments, sole source purchases, etc.). Additionally, the provisions 



authorizing the City Council to waive competitive procurement requirements for good cause pursuant to 

Section 31-11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code remain unchanged. 

 

Lastly, the proposed Ordinance revises the request for qualifications procedures by providing the City 

Manager discretion as to whether to conduct interviews of the highest ranked proposers instead of requiring 

the City Manager to interview the highest ranked proposers. 

 

Second Reading: If the Ordinance is adopted by Council on first reading, it will be advertised for second 

reading and placed on the agenda for the September 26, 2022 meeting. 



ORDINANCE NO.    - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 31-11, “PURCHASING, 3 

PROCUREMENT, AND SALE PROCEDURES” OF THE 4 

CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES TO UPDATE THE CITY’S 5 

PROCUREMENT PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR 6 

CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 7 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 8 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 9 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) finds it periodically necessary to 10 

amend its Code of Ordinances (the “City Code”) in order to update regulations and 11 

procedures to implement municipal goals and objectives; and 12 

WHEREAS, Article VIII, Section 2 of the Florida Constitution, and Chapter 166, 13 

Florida Statutes, provide municipalities with the authority to exercise any power for 14 

municipal purposes, except where prohibited by law, and to adopt ordinances in 15 

furtherance thereof; and 16 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to update the City’s procurement provisions 17 

to allow the City to improve efficiencies; and 18 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Ordinance is in the best interests of the 19 

City. 20 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 21 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:1 22 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 23 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 24 

Section 2. Amending Code. That Section 31-11, “Purchasing, procurement, 25 

and sale procedures” of the Code of Ordinances of Miami Springs, Florida, is hereby 26 

amended to read as follows:  27 

Chapter 31 – GENERAL CITY POLICIES 28 

ARTICLE I. – GENERAL PROVISIONS 29 

* * * 30 

Sec. 31-11. Purchasing, procurement, and sale procedures. 31 

* * * 32 

(B) Definitions. For the purpose of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless 33 

the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  34 

                                                            
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with double strikethrough and double underline. 



Ordinance No.  -2022 
Page 2 of 4 

* * * 35 

Quotation. An informal notice A written document by a vendor stating the terms and 36 

conditions under which he will furnish certain supplies or services.  37 

* * * 38 

(C) Delegation of purchasing author ity. The City Council of the City of Miami Springs 39 

reserves unto itself the right to award all contracts as a result of competitive sealed 40 

bids, requests for proposals, and requests for qualifications in which the amount of 41 

the award is in excess of $25,000.00 $100,000.00. The City Council may, however, 42 

delegate to the City Manager and City Purchasing Agent the authority to purchase 43 

supplies, materials and services, and to award contracts as they may deem in the 44 

public interest. In addition, it is the specific policy of the City Council that no contracts 45 

for supplies, materials, or services shall be artificially divided in order for any 46 

purchase or procurement to fall below a specifically delineated or delegated 47 

purchasing authority amount. The City Council hereby delegates it purchasing 48 

authority as follows:  49 

(1) The City Manager shall have the authority to purchase supplies, materials and 50 

services, and to award contracts for purchases of supplies, materials and 51 

services when the good faith estimated total cost thereof does not exceed 52 

$10,000.00 $20,000.00 without the prior approval of the City Council in 53 

accordance with the following provisions:  54 

(a) Purchases not exceeding $5,000.00, shall be permitted without securing 55 

any verbal or written price quotations.  56 

(b) Purchases in excess of $5,000.01 which do not exceed $10,000.00 57 

$20,000.00 shall only be permitted upon the obtaining of three written price 58 

quotations.  59 

(2) The City Manager, subject to the approval of the City Council, shall have the 60 

authority to purchase supplies, materials, and services and to award contracts 61 

for purchase of supplies, materials, and services when the good faith estimated 62 

total cost thereof exceeds $10,000.01 $20,000.01 and is less than $25,000.00 63 

$100,000.00 upon the obtaining of three written price quotations.  64 

* * * 65 

(E) Methods of competitive purchasing and procurement; exceptions. 66 

(1) All purchases and contracts for supplies, materials and contractual services 67 

when the good faith estimated total cost thereof shall exceed $25,000.00 68 

$100,000.00, shall utilize, and be awarded pursuant to, the competitive sealed 69 

bidding process specified in this section.  70 

(2) However, if the City Manager determines that the use of the competitive sealed 71 

bidding process is not practicable or not advantageous to the City for the subject 72 

purchase in excess of $25,000.00 $100,000.00, the City may utilize the request 73 

for proposals or the request for qualifications procedures set forth in this section.  74 

* * * 75 



Ordinance No.  -2022 
Page 3 of 4 

(H) Request for qualifications procedure. 76 

* * * 77 

(5) The City Manager, his designee, or the City Council shall may then conduct 78 

interviews with at least the three highest ranked proposers. If the interviews are 79 

conducted by the City Manager, or his designee, a report shall be presented to 80 

the City Council recommending the awarding of the contract to one of the 81 

interviewed proposers.  82 

* * * 83 

Section 3. Conflicts. All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 84 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 85 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 86 

Section 4. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 87 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 88 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 89 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 90 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 91 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 92 

Section 5. Codification. That it is the intention of the City Council and it is 93 

hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part 94 

of the City Code, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered to 95 

accomplish such intentions, and that the word Ordinance shall be changed to Section or 96 

other appropriate word. 97 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 98 

immediately upon adoption on second reading. 99 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the    day of   , 2022, on a 100 

motion made by      and seconded by     . 101 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 102 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 103 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 104 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    105 

Councilman Bob Best      106 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    107 

Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    108 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    109 

 110 

 111 

              112 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 113 

MAYOR 114 



Ordinance No.  -2022 
Page 4 of 4 

ATTEST: 115 

 116 

 117 

        118 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  119 

CITY CLERK 120 

 121 

 122 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 123 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 124 

 125 

 126 

        127 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 128 

CITY ATTORNEY 129 



 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

 

Procurement Department 

201 Westward Drive 

     Miami Springs, FL  33166 

Phone: (305)805-5054 

Agency Manager’s Authority / Procurement Officer Threshold Procedure 

Village of Key Biscayne   For Goods & Services  

• Under $5,000.00 – no formal requirement  

• $5,000.01-$50,000 – requires 3 quotes 

• Over $50,000 – Competitive Sealed Process 
For Professional Services  

• Under $50,000 – 1 written proposal  

• Professional Services: 
Over $50,000 must 
require Council 
approval 

City of Miramar • $0.00—$5,000.00 - No competition required 

• $5,000.01—$10,000.00 - A minimum of 3 oral or written 
quotations required 

• $10,000.01—$75,000.00 -  A minimum of 3 written 
quotations required 

• $75,000.01 + Formal advertised bids or proposals required 

• Contract for 
commodities or 
services exceeding 
$75,000 shall require 
Council approval for 
single City 
Departments.  

• Contract for 
commodities or 
services exceeding 
$150,000 shall require 
Council approval for 
multiple City 
Departments. 

Town of Cutler Bay • Purchases of or contracts for materials, supplies, equipment, 
improvements or services where the total amount expended 
is not greater than $5,000.00 may be made or entered into 
by the town manager without competitive bidding and 
without town council approval. 

• Purchases of or contracts for materials, supplies, equipment, 
improvements or services where the total amount expended 
is in excess of $5,000.00, but which is less than $25,000.00, 
may be made or entered into by the town manager without 
town council approval provided that three competitive 
quotations are obtained. 

• Single purchases directly related to architectural and design 
services, leasing, maintenance, janitorial, and construction 
and construction management services for town hall, where 
the total amount expended is not greater than $100,000.00, 
may be made or entered into by the town manager without 
competitive bidding and without town council approval. 

• Purchases of or 
contracts for 
materials, supplies, 
equipment, 
improvements or 
services where the 
total amount 
expended is 
$25,000.00 or more 
shall be awarded by 
the town council after 
formal competitive 
bidding. 

Village of Bal Harbor • The Village Manager may purchase and/or enter into 
contracts for the procurement of services, materials, 
supplies or equipment where the total cost of any single 
expenditure does not exceed $20,000.00 without the 
approval of the Village Council. 

• No purchasing 
thresholds. 

Village of Pinecrest  • Purchases less than $10,000.00. for materials, supplies, 
equipment, improvements or services, not in excess of 
$10,000.00, may be made or entered into by the village 
manager.  

• Purchases more than $10,000.00 but less than $50,000.00 
for materials, supplies, equipment, improvements or 
services, is in excess of $10,000.00 but which does not 
exceed $50,000.00, may be made or entered into by the 

• Purchases in excess of 
$50,000.00. The village 
council shall approve 
all purchases of or 
contracts for 
materials, supplies, 
equipment, public 

RPou
Highlight

RPou
Highlight



village manager without submittal to the village council, but 
shall require that the village manager obtain quotes from at 
least three different vendors.  

improvements or 
services. 

City of Coral Gables  Authority of City Manager  

• Purchases up to $100,000.00 for supplies and services and 
up to $25,000.00 in construction 

Authority of Chief Procurement Officer 

• Recommend to the city manager all contract awards in 
excess of $25,000.00 for supplies, services and/or 
construction and approve all purchases and awards up to 
$25,000.00 for supplies and services. 

• All contract awards in 
excess of $100,000.00 
for supplies and 
services and in excess 
of $25,000.00 for 
construction. 

 



Code Section Details

Current 

Policy

Proposed 

Policy

31‐11 ( C) (1) (a) Purchases under 

$5,000.00 may be 

made by the City 

Manager without 

seeking quotes.

$5,000.00  Unchanged

31‐11 ( C) (1) (b)

Purchases in excess of 

$5,000.01 and less than 

$10,000 require the 

City Manager to obtain 

3 written quotes

$5,000.01 

to $10,000

$5,000.01 to 

$20,000

31‐11 ( C) (2)

Purchases in excess of 

$10,000.01 and less 

than $25,000 require 3 

written quotes and 

Council approval

$10,000.01 

to $25,000

$20,000.01 to 

$100,000

31‐11 ( E) (1) & (2)

Purchases in excess of 

$25,000 require 

competitive sealed bids 

(ITB, RFP, or RFQ)

$25,000 $100,000

City Manager Expenditure Authority

City Council Approval Required



 

 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

Procurement Method Options 

 

City Council Approval Not Required 

☐ §31‐11(C)(1)(a): Purchase under $5,000.00 

☐ §31‐11(C)(1)(b): Purchase between $5,000.01 and $10,000.00  $5,000.01 and $20,000.00 (at least 3 quotes 

obtained) 

City Council Approval Required 

☐ §31‐11(C)(2): Purchase between $10,000.01 and $25,000.00  $20,000.01 and $100,000.00 (at least 3 quotes 

obtained) 

☐ §31‐11(E)(1): Purchase exceeds $25,000.00  $100,000.00; Competitive Sealed Bid Performed in accordance 

with §31‐11(F) 

Check One: ☐ ITB ☐ RFP ☐ RFQ 

☐ §31‐11(E)(2): Purchase exceeds $25,000.00  $100,000.00; Competitive Sealed Bid – Not Practical or 

Advantageous 

Check One: ☐ ITB ☐ RFP ☐ RFQ 

☐ §31‐11(E)(3): CCNA Services Pursuant to §287.055, F.S. 

☐ §31‐11(E)(4): Professional Services set forth in §31‐11(E)(4)(a)‐(d)  

Check One: ☐ RFP ☐ RFQ 

☐ §31‐11(E)(5): Exempt Other Government/Cooperative Contract (“Piggyback”) 

 

☐ §31‐11(E)(6)(c): Exempt Sole Source Purchase of Goods or Services 

☐ §31‐11(E)(6)(d): Exempt Sole Source Purchase of Leasehold Interest in Real Property 

☐ §31‐11(E)(6)(e): Exempt Emergency Procurement 

☐ §31‐11(E)(6)(f): Exempt Disaster Preparedness 

☐ §31‐11(E)(6)(g): Waiver of Competitive Procurement Procedures for good cause in best interest of City*  

☐ §31‐11(J): Purchase or Sale of Real Property 

*Requires a 4/5 majority vote of City Council 
 
Other Contract Considerations:  

Is there an existing contract with the vendor/consultant? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

  ☐ Copy of contract attached 
Term of Contract: Start:            End:            

Are there renewal options? ☐ Yes ☐ No 
  If yes, how many?     



 

 

Have all option years been used? ☐ Yes ☐ No  
  If no, how many option years remain?    



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -   

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 
[APPROVING/DENYING] A VARIANCE APPLICATION BY 
JUAN A. CALVO FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 400 PARK 
STREET TO PROVIDE A 10’8” FRONT YARD SETBACK 
WHERE SECTION 150-060(E) OF THE CODE REQUIRES A 
MINIMUM REQUIRED FRONT YARD OF NOT LESS THAN 
30 FEET OR THE AVERAGE DEPTH OF THE FRONT 
YARD OF THE LOT OR LOTS NEXT ADJACENT THERETO 
ON EITHER SIDE, WHICHEVER IS THE LESSER OF THE 
TWO; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 WHEREAS, consistent with the requirements set forth in Section 150-111 of the 
City of Miami Springs’ (the “City”) Code of Ordinances (the “Code”), Juan A. Calvo (the 
“Applicant”) has submitted a variance application to permit a 10 foot 8 inch front yard 
setback for a portion of the building where Section 150-060(E) of the Code requires a 
minimum front yard of not less than 30 feet or the average depth of the front yard of the 
lot or lots next adjacent thereto on either side, whichever is the lesser of the two (the 
“Application”); and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant’s property is located at 400 Park Street (Folio No. 05-
3024-006-2010) as further legally described on Exhibit “A” (the “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the Application and recommends approval; and 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2022, the Board of Adjustment, conducted a public 
hearing and recommended [approval/approval with conditions/denial] of the Application; 
and 

WHEREAS, public notice was provided in accordance with law; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing, the City Council, based upon 
competent substantial evidence in the record, finds that the Application [does/does not] 
meet the requirements of the City Code and finds that the Application [is/is not] consistent 
with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 
welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Res. No. 2022-   
Page 2 of 5 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

Section 2. Approval/Denial. The City Council, after review of competent 
substantial evidence in the record and a duly noticed public hearing, finds that the 
Application [does/does not] meet the approval criteria set forth in Section 150-111 of the 
City Code and hereby [approves/denies] the Application to permit a 10 foot 8 inch front 
yard setback for a portion of the building where Section 150-060(E) of the Code requires 
a minimum front yard of not less than 30 feet or the average depth of the front yard of the 
lot or lots next adjacent thereto on either side, whichever is the lesser of the two. 

Section 3. Conditions [if approved]. That the approval granted by this 
Resolution is subject to compliance with the following conditions, to which the Applicant 
stipulated and agreed to at the public hearing:  

a. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted. Substantial 
compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City.  Plans are as 
follows:   

i. Sheet 1 of 1, Survey MAPCONS Group, LLC., dated, signed and 
sealed by Orlando Grandal, PSM, May 24, 2022. 

ii. Sheet A-100, Site Plan, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022. 

iii. Sheet L-001, Landscape Site Plan, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, 
signed and sealed June 20, 2022. 

iv. Sheet A200, Floor Plans, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, signed and 
sealed August 02, 2022. 

v. Sheet A400, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022. 

vi. Sheet A401, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022. 

vii. Sheet A402, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated, signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022. 

viii. Sheet A1100, Site Photos/ Materials, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., 
dated, signed and sealed June 20, 2022. 



Res. No. 2022-   
Page 3 of 5 

b. Any variances granted by the City Council shall be null and void if the 
applicant does not obtain a building permit and commence construction 
within one year of the date of the granting of the variance. If unusual 
circumstances exist, the variance may be extended by the City Council for 
an additional six-month period. No extensions beyond the time periods 
specified above are authorized.  

c. Any conditions upon which this approval is granted shall be incorporated on 
a cover sheet of the plans submitted for building permit. 

d. All curbing shall be Miami-Dade County Type “D”. All landscaped areas 
must be enclosed with said curbing. 

e. Final architectural plans shall be submitted to, and approved by staff prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 

f. Any substantial deviation from the site plan must be approved by the City 
Council at a public hearing.  Minor deviations from the site plan may be 
addressed administratively. What constitutes substantial and minor 
deviations is at the sole discretion of the City. 

g. No satellite dishes, including cable television, may be located on the 
building walls or the property.   

h. All utilities connecting the proposed building shall be located underground. 

i. Prior to the issuance of the first building permit, the applicant shall record at 
the applicant’s expense a unity of title, or provide evidence of a previously 
recorded unity of title, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  

Section 4. Violations. Failure to adhere to the terms of this approval shall be 
considered a violation of the City Code.  Penalties for such violation shall be as prescribed 
by the City Code, which include, but are not limited to, the revocation of the approval granted 
by this Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon adoption. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 



Res. No. 2022-   
Page 4 of 5 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this    day of    , 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY  



Res. No. 2022-   
Page 5 of 5 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

 

 



Council Case# 01-C-22 

Variance Case# 02-V-22 

 

 

 

JUAN CALVO 

400 PARK STREET 

 

 

 

City Council meeting 

Meeting: 09-26-2022 



 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 

Phone: 305.805.5006 

Fax: 305.805.5028 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Mitchell and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk  
 
VIA:  Sandra Duarte, Assistant to the City Clerk 
 
DATE: September 09, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Board of Adjustments Recommendation 
 
******************************************************************************************************* 
 
At the regular meeting of September 8, 2022, the Board of Adjustments recommended the 
following to Council: 
 
4. New Business 
 

a.  Case# 01-V-22 
 
Board Member Molina moved to approve the variance with the conditions set forth 
by the City Planner. 
 
First: Molina 
Second: Valencia 
Roll Call: 4-0 
 



 

Page | 1 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Board of Adjustment 

Mayor & City Council  
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Variance Application for Front Yard Setback 
 
CASE # 02-V-22 
 
APPLICANT: Juan A. Calvo 
 
ADDRESS: 400 Park Street 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: R-3A MULTIPLE FAMILY LOW DENTISTY     
 
FURURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) CATEGORY: Multi-family 
 
THE PROPERTY: The property consists of single parcel of land, nearly 
rectangular in shape, with an angular cut at the corner facing Glen Way. The 
property abuts three streets, Hibiscus Drive, Park Street, and Glen Way. A 16 foot 
wide alley abuts the property on the south. The subject property is 15,241 square 
feet in size. 
 
THE PROPOSAL: The applicant is seeking site plan approval in order to build six 
apartments, which will look like townhouses. An existing single family home on the 
site will be demolished to accommodate the proposed project. However, in order 
to construct the project as set forth in the site plan, the applicant requests a 
variance pursuant to section 150-060(E) of the City’s Code of Ordinances to 
provide a front yard setback of 10’8” for a portion of the building where the Code 
requires a minimum front yard of not less than 30 feet or the average depth of the 
front yard of the lot or lots next adjacent thereto on either side, whichever is the 
lesser of the two. In this instance, the requested variance results in a 19’4” variance 
for a portion of the building from the required setback.  
 
THE PROJECT:  The six units are identical in size, design and layout.  Each unit 
is approximately 1,500 SF in size and three stories in height.  The ground floor 
contains an en-suite bedroom or office and a carport/garage.  The floor is accessed 

   201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL  33166 

Phone:(305) 805-5030 
Fax:(305) 805-5036 

 



 

Page | 2 

both from the front door and through the carport at rear. A staircase leads to the 
second floor, which contains a living area, dining area, open kitchen, and a half 
bathroom with laundry room.  A large balcony extends along the front of this level 
looking out into Hibiscus Drive. A staircase leads to the third floor that contains two 
en-suite bedrooms, including a master bedroom with a Juliette balcony facing 
Hibiscus Drive.  
 
The architecture is of a unique Caribbean-influenced style with stucco walls, multi-
paned windows and a steeply sloped flat tile roofs.   
 
Parking required is 14 spaces, and 14 spaces are provided. 
 
The property is heavily landscaped, and needs only smaller under plantings and 
ground covers. In addition, a CBS garbage enclosure is provided at the rear. 
 
This area of the City has not seen the construction of multi-family units in decades, 
and will be a welcome addition to the neighborhood. 
 
ANALYSIS: Section 150-111 of the City Code allows property owners to request 
a variance for certain types of deviations from the code when there are practical 
difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of 
Chapter 150 of the Code. There are five criteria for granting a variance according 
to Section 150-111 as follows:  
 
Criteria No. 1. Owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provision 
of the chapter results in an unnecessary hardship and the spirit of the chapter shall 
be observed and substantial justice done. See §150-111(B)(2).  
 
Staff Analysis: The applicant is proposing a 6-unit apartment complex, which look 
like townhouses. The shape of the lot is irregular and literal enforcement of the 
required 30 ft. setback pursuant to Section 150-060(E) on 3 sides of the property 
(Hibiscus, Park, and Glenn) would result in a substantial hardship. Only a small 
corner of the building is actually proposed to be located in the required front yard. 
The building contains 3,675 square feet, of which 338 square feet (10.8)% are in 
the required front yard.  
 
Criteria No. 2. The variance will not constitute any change in the districts shown 
on the zoning map. See §150-111(B)(4). 
 
Staff Analysis: This property is bounded by four streets and an alley making a 
conventual building footprint quite difficult. 
 
Criteria No. 3. The variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to 
adjacent property, or materially increase the danger of fire. See §150-111(B)(4). 
 



 

Page | 3 

Staff Analysis: There are no neighbors or adjacent properties on Park St./Glenn 
where the variance is being requested so no one is being affected. 
 
The variance will not materially increase the danger of fire as the project has only 
one neighbor on the opposite side of the variance request. 
 
Criteria No. 4. The variance will not materially diminish or impair established 
property values within the surrounding area. See §150-111(B)(4). 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposal will only increase the value of the surrounding area 
as it replaces an aging single family home with six higher end units, all with three 
bedrooms with en-suite baths. As this is a project that is located in a multi-family 
zoning district, it is more appropriate than the existing single family home. 
 
Criteria No. 5. The variance will not in any other respect impair the public health, 
safety, morals, and general welfare of the city. See §150-111(B)(4).  
 
Staff Analysis: This project would benefit the general welfare of the City by the 
addition of much needed multifamily units, and a greatly increased tax base. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the request for a variance be approved subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted. Substantial 
compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City.  Plans are as 
follows:   
 

• Sheet 1 of 1, Survey MAPCONS Group, LLC., dated, signed and sealed 
by Orlando Grandal, PSM, May24, 2022. 

• Sheet A-100, Site Plan, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  signed and 
sealed June20, 2022 

• Sheet L-001, Landscape Site Plan, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  
signed and sealed June 20, 2022 

• Sheet A200, Floor Plans, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  signed and 
sealed August 02, 2022 

• Sheet A400, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022 

• Sheet A401, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022 

• Sheet A402, Elevations, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  signed and 
sealed June 20, 2022 

• Sheet A1100, Site Photos/ Materials, by Allen Plasencia, R.A., dated,  
signed and sealed June 20, 2022 

 



 

Page | 4 

2. Any variances granted by the City Council shall be null and void if the 
applicant does not obtain a building permit and commence construction 
within one year of the date of the granting of the variance. If unusual 
circumstances exist, the variance may be extended by the City Council for 
an additional six-month period. No extensions beyond the time periods 
specified above are authorized.  

 
3. If approved, the final order, including any conditions upon which the 

approval is granted shall be incorporated on a cover sheet of the plans 
submitted for building permit. 

 
4. All curbing shall be Miami-Dade County Type “D”. All landscaped areas 

must be enclosed with said curbing. 
 

5. Final architectural plans shall be submitted to, and approved by staff prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

6. Any substantial deviation from the site plan must be approved by the City 
Council at a public hearing.  Minor deviations from the site plan may be 
addressed administratively. What constitutes substantial and minor 
deviations is at the sole discretion of the City. 
 

7. No satellite dishes, including cable television, may be located on the 
building walls or the property.   
 

8. All utilities connecting the proposed building shall be located underground. 
 

9. Prior to the issuance of the first building permit, the applicant shall record at 
the applicant’s expense a unity of title, or provide evidence of a previously 
recorded unity of title, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  

 
 



duartes
Text Box
Official Use OnlySubmittal Date: 06/08/22Case No.: 02-V-22







Architect

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

4 0 0    P A R K    L O F T S

DESIGN  DIRECTIVE STUDIO, LLC
© 2022

Miami Springs, Florida





AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

L001

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

LANDSCAPE SITE
PLAN

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1"   = 10'

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

N

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

CL CL

CL

C L

CL

C L

30
'-

0"

22'-6"

30'-0"

10'-8 5/32"
30'-0"

30'-0"

20'-0
"

24
'-

0"
16

'-
0"

6'
-8

 3
9/

64
"

14'-10"

21'-7"
(VARIES)

  

  

 

6' HIGH ROLLING GATE

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

GATE MOTOR

TRASH ENCLOSURE 6" 'D' CURB

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

WIDEN EXISTING
CURB CUT

C/U 4

C/U 5

C/U 6

C/U 1

C/U 2

C/U 3

23
4

31

32

36

43

24

16

28

38

1

5
6

7

8

9
11

5
5

12

17

18

18

41

40

35

21

252627

29

30

34

39

37

14

15

19

REQ. SETBACK

REQ. S
ETBACK

R
EQ

. S
ET

B
AC

K

REQ. SETBACK

PROPERTY L
IN

E/ 8
9.0'

PROPERTY LINE/ 93.70'

PROPERTY LINE/ 156.90'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E/

 1
12

.0
'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E/

 5
0.

60
'

5' S
ID

EWALK [E
XISTIN

G]

5' SIDEWALK [EXISTING]

5'
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

 [E
XI

ST
IN

G
]

HIBISCUS DRIVE

GLEN W
AY

PA
RK

 A
VE

16'ALLEY

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

R
EQ

. S
ET

B
AC

K

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

SETBACK

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

UP

UP

33

23

20

30
'-

0"

SlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlope

30'-0"

NEW 3 STORY CBS STRUCTURE

LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN

TREE SURVEY

EXISTING TREE DISPOSITION TABLE

1.  EXISTING TREES DESIGNATED TO REMAIN SHALL BE PROTECTED DURING ALL
     CONSTRUCTION PHASES.  ANY TREES OR SHRUBS DESIGNATED TO REMAIN WHICH ARE
     SCARED OR DESTROYED WILL BE REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE, WITH
     SIMILAR SPECIES, SIZE AND QUALITY.

2.  REFER TO AND COORDINATE WITH TREE DISPOSITION PLAN.

3.  OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED TREE REMOVAL PERMITS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

4.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY ALL EXISTING TREES PRIOR
     TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

5.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PROTECT ALL ADJACENT
     PORTIONS OF THE SITE AND BUILDING NOT PART OF DISPOSITION SCOPE OF WORK.

6.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PROPERLY SECURE ALL PORTIONS
     OF THE SITE DURING ALL DEMOLITION PHASES.

7.  GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO OBTAIN PERMIT REQUIRED FOR
     TEMPORARY FENCING.

8.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE TEMPORARY IRRIGATION AS NEEDED, REFER TO
     LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

9.  PURSUANT TO CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS

TREE DISPOSITION NOTES

LANDSCAPE PLAN | GRAPHIC LEGEND

HT.XX

XX
#

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN NEW TREE EXISTING TREE
TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING PALM TO REMAIN EXISTING PALM
TO BE REMOVED

###

### XX HT.

HEDGE

CONCRETE
WALKWAY

ASPHALT SOD

NEW PLANT LIST

QUANTITY ABRV. BOTANICAL
NAME

COMMON
NAME FL. NATIVE DROUGHT

TOLERANTSPECIFICATIONS

T.B.D. T.B.D.

T.B.D. T.B.D.

T.B.D. T.B.D.

T.B.D. T.B.D.

UNDERSTORY TREES / SHRUBS YES NO

GROUND COVER

GRASSES

SUPPLEMENTAL

YES

YES NO YES

YES NO YES

YES NO YES

NO

NO

NO

NO



AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

A100

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

SITE PLAN

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1"   = 10'

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

N

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

CL CL

CL

C L

CL

C L

30
'-

0"

22'-6"

30'-0"

10'-8 5/32"
30'-0"

30'-0"

20'-0
"

24
'-

0"
16

'-
0"

6'
-8

 3
9/

64
"

14'-10"

21'-7"
(VARIES)

  

  

 

6' HIGH ROLLING GATE

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

GATE MOTOR

TRASH ENCLOSURE 6" 'D' CURB

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

6' HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE

WIDEN EXISTING
CURB CUT

C/U 4

C/U 5

C/U 6

C/U 1

C/U 2

C/U 3

REQ. SETBACK

REQ. S
ETBACK

R
EQ

. S
ET

B
AC

K

REQ. SETBACK

PROPERTY L
IN

E/ 8
9.0'

PROPERTY LINE/ 93.70'

PROPERTY LINE/ 156.90'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E/

 1
12

.0
'

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E/

 5
0.

60
'

5' S
ID

EWALK [E
XISTIN

G]

5' SIDEWALK [EXISTING]

5'
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

 [E
XI

ST
IN

G
]

HIBISCUS DRIVE

GLEN W
AY

PA
RK

 A
VE

16'ALLEY

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

R
EQ

. S
ET

B
AC

K

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

SETBACK

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

UP

UP

30
'-

0"

R3-A

SITE INFORMATION

1.2 LAND USE

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING  (SCE. 150-060 (A)(2) )

1.1 ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALLOWED PROPOSED

FRONT YARD

SIDE YARD

SIDE YARD

30'-0" 30'-0"

22'-6" 22'-6"

22'-6" 10'-3"

30'-0" 30'-0"

3. BUILDING INFORMATION

3.1 SETBAKCS

3.2 BUILDING AREAS

EXISTING PROPOSED

MULTI FAMILY 2,227  s.f.

3.3 BUILDING HEIGHT LIMITATIONS

REQUIRED PROPOSED

40'-0" / 3 STORIES 36'-5" / 3 STORIES

3.6 BUILDING SITE REQUIREMENT

LOT AREA

3.7 OPEN SPACE / LOT COVERAGE

9,874.5 s.f.

LOTS 15 AND 16. IN BLOCK 76, OF "COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, SECTION ONE", ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 28, AT PAGE 11, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE
COUNTY FLORIDA, AND TRACT "A", IN BLOCK 76, OF "COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, SECTION ONE",
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDER IN PLAT BOOK 34, AT PAGE 39, OF THE PUBLIC
RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA.

(TRACT A) FORMERLY KNOWN AS:
LOT 14, IN BLOCK 76, OF "COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES, SECTION ONE", ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF,
AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 28, AT PAGE 11, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY,
FLORIDA.

4. PARKING CALCULATIONS

CODE REQUIRED PROVIDED

MULTI-FAMILY

SPECIFIC USE CATEGORY REQUIRED

2.25 / UNIT

2. BUILDING ANALYSIS

CODES AND EDITIONS USED

2017 FLORIDA BUILDING CODE

MIAMI SPRINGS ZONING ORDINANCE

LATEST VERSION OF FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE

3.5 FIRE RESISTANT RATING OF BUILDING ELEMENT  (FBC-B, TABLE 601)

TYPE V-B

STRUCTURAL FRAME

BEARING WALLS

BUILDING ELEMENT

0

NON-BEARING WALLS & PARTITONS

NON-BEARING WALLS & PARTITONS

FLOOR CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS & JOISTS

ROOF CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS & JOISTS

0
0

0

0

0

EXTERIOR
INTERIOR

EXTERIOR

INTERIOR

0

2.1 BUILDING TYPE  (FBC-B, TABLE 601)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE OCCUPANCY

MULTI-FAMILY V-B R-3

MIAMI SPRINGS ZONING SEC. 150-016 (E)(1)

13.5

REAR YARD 30'-0" 47'-0"

SIDE YARD - ADJACENT STREET

EXISTING

MULTI-FAMILY

DWELLINGS AREA / DWELLING REQUIRED AREA / DWELLING PROVIDED

15,241 s.f. 6 2,400 s.f. / DWELLING 2,540 s.f. / DWELLING

LOT AREA BUILDING FOOTPRINT LOT COVERAGE ALLOWED LOT COVERAGE PROVIDED

15,241 s.f. 30%3,655 s.f. 24%

14

REQUIRED PROVIDED

1

1
1

1

0

1

1

SlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlopeSlope
GREY FLAT CEMENT ROOF TILES

30'-0"

NEW 3 STORY CBS STRUCTURE

SITE

Westward Drive

M
or

ni
ng

si
de

 D
ri

ve

Westward Drive

Hibiscus Drive

Gle
n W

ay

Pa
rk

 S
tr

ee
t

Azure Way

Azure Way

Cr
os

s 
St

re
et

Curti
s P

ar
kway

Curti
s P

ar
kway

SITE:
400 PARK STREET
MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166

SITE PLAN / ROOF PLAN

LOCATION MAP



AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

A200

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

FLOOR PLANS

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1/4"   =    1'-0"

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

N

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

B

00
2

000

000001

000

GG
000

000

1
A500

2
A500

1
A700

16
'-

4 
3/

8"

17'-5 1/2"

17'-5 1/2"

C/U 4

C/U 5

C/U 6

BEDROOM 3 /
OFFICE

BATHROOM

ENTRY

CLOSET

GARAGE

UP

UP

4
A500

4
A500

35
'-

0 
5/

8"

 16'-2 5/8"

B B

000

00
1

000

EE

EE

W/D

2
A500

1
A700

17'-5 1/2"

35
'-

0 
5/

8"

17'-5 1/2"

KITCHEN

DINING

LIVING

POWDER
ROOM

BALCONY

UP

F

4
A500

4
A500

FF

001

00
0

B

E E E

00
1

00
1

00
1

00
1

001

001

2
A500

1
A700

17'-5 1/2"

35
'-

0"

17'-5 1/2"

MASTER BEDROOM

M. BATH

BEDROOM 2

WIC

BATHROOM

A/C

WIC

CLO.

DN

4
A500

4
A500

1
A500

1
A402

1
A500

2
A500

2
A500

2
A500

1
A500

1
A500

1
A500

1
A700

1
A700

1
A700

2
A402

1
A401

1
A400

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 Ground Level

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"2 Second Level
SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"3 Third Level

UNIT AREAS

267 SF

529 SF

611 SF

1407 SFTOTAL

AREA:  267 SF

AREA:  529 SFAREA:  611 SF

GROUND LEVEL

SECOND LEVEL

THIRD LEVEL



AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

A401

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

ELEVATIONS

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1/4"   =    1'-0"

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

2'
-0

"
9'

-9
"

10
'-

2"
14

'-
6"

21
'-

11
"

36
'-

5"

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

MID POINT OF GABLE

CARPORT CARPORT CARPORT CARPORT CARPORTCARPORT

7 6 5 4 3 2 1

+0" / [6.1' NGVD]

+2'-0" / [+8.0' NGVD]

11'-9"

21'-11"

36'-5"

(GRADE)

(F.F.)

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 South Elevation



AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

A402

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

ELEVATIONS

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1/4"   =    1'-0"

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

+0" / [6.1' NGVD]

+2'-0" / [+8.0' NGVD]

11'-9"

21'-11"

36'-5"

2'
-0

"
9'

-9
"

10
'-

2"
14

'-
6"

21
'-

11
"

36
'-

5"

(GRADE)

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

MID POINT OF GABLE

2'
-0

"
9'

-9
"

10
'-

2"
14

'-
6"

21
'-

11
"

36
'-

5"

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

MID POINT OF GABLE

+0" / [6.1' NGVD]

+2'-0" / [+8.0' NGVD]

11'-9"

21'-11"

36'-5"

(GRADE)

(F.F.)

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 East Elevation
SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"2 West Elevation



AR 100445

Client

Project No

Architect

Structural Engineer

Allen Plasencia
No. AR 100445

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

COPYRIGHT ©  2022

Landscape Architect

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Design Directive Studio, LLC
449 Wren Avenue
Miami Springs, FL 33136
P 305 610 2858

A400

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

EP N

LA

N

IC

A

AL

L S
E

ELEVATIONS

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1/4"   =    1'-0"

EP N

LA

N

IC

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AR 100445

Permit Set

A

AL

L S
E

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

+0" / [6.1' NGVD]

+2'-0" / [+8.0' NGVD]

11'-9"

21'-11"

36'-5"

2'
-0

"
9'

-9
"

10
'-

2"
14

'-
6"

21
'-

11
"

36
'-

5"

(GRADE)

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

(F.F.)

MID POINT OF GABLE

SCALE: 1/4"   =    1'-0"1 North Elevation



AA 0016620

Client

Project No

Design Architect

Structural Engineer

Chad Oppenheim
No. AR 0016620

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

Oppenheim
Architecture
245 NE 37 Street
Miami FL 33137
P 305 576 8404
F 305 576 8433
W oppen.com

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

PEREZ ENGINEERING
& DEVELOPMENT, INC.
1010 Kennedy Drive
Suite 202
Key West, Florida
P 305 293 9440
W perezeng.com

COPYRIGHT © OPPENHEIM 2022

Landscape Architect

Naturalficial
6915 Red Road
Suite 224
Coral Gables FL 33143
P 786 717 6564
W naturalficial.com

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

A1101

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

E OPPE
E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHAD

C

3D
REPRESENTATION

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1:1.25

E O PP
E

E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHA
D

C

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AA 0016620

N

Permit Set

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

1 Front View



AA 0016620

Client

Project No

Design Architect

Structural Engineer

Chad Oppenheim
No. AR 0016620

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

Oppenheim
Architecture
245 NE 37 Street
Miami FL 33137
P 305 576 8404
F 305 576 8433
W oppen.com

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

PEREZ ENGINEERING
& DEVELOPMENT, INC.
1010 Kennedy Drive
Suite 202
Key West, Florida
P 305 293 9440
W perezeng.com

COPYRIGHT © OPPENHEIM 2022

Landscape Architect

Naturalficial
6915 Red Road
Suite 224
Coral Gables FL 33143
P 786 717 6564
W naturalficial.com

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

A1102

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

E OPPE
E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHAD

C

3D
REPRESENTATION

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1:1.18

E O PP
E

E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHA
D

C

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AA 0016620

N

Permit Set

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

1 Corner View



AA 0016620

Client

Project No

Design Architect

Structural Engineer

Chad Oppenheim
No. AR 0016620

2201

2201
400 PARK LOFTS

Revisions

Mark Date Description

Title

Drawing Issued on

Civil Engineer

M.E.P. Engineer

Oppenheim
Architecture
245 NE 37 Street
Miami FL 33137
P 305 576 8404
F 305 576 8433
W oppen.com

BLISS NYITRAY, INC.

TRIANA
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

5835 Blue Lagoon Drive
Suite 400
Miami, FL 33126
P 305 442 7086
W bniengineers.com

5151 SW 98th Ave. Rd.
Miami, Florida 33165
P 305 595 9765
W

PEREZ ENGINEERING
& DEVELOPMENT, INC.
1010 Kennedy Drive
Suite 202
Key West, Florida
P 305 293 9440
W perezeng.com

COPYRIGHT © OPPENHEIM 2022

Landscape Architect

Naturalficial
6915 Red Road
Suite 224
Coral Gables FL 33143
P 786 717 6564
W naturalficial.com

400 Park Street
Miami Springs, FL 33166

Juan A. Calvo
210 Duval Drive
Miami Springs, FL 33166

A1103

STA
TE OF FLORIDA

R
EGISTERED AR CHIT

EC
T

E OPPE
E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHAD

C

3D
REPRESENTATION

400 PARK LOFTS

9/15/22

1:1.18

E O PP
E

E

E CN

L
A

W

R

N
H

IMHA
D

C

R
EG

ISTERED AR CHIT
EC

T

AA 0016620

N

Permit Set

ST
ATE OF FLORIDA

3/5/21

1 Rear View



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Meeting Date: 09/26/2022  

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria P. Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    

From:   Armando Guzman, Chief of Police 

    

Subject: Purchase of three New Police Vehicles ((1) Patrol and (2) K9) for Police Fleet   
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to Duval Ford, utilizing Florida Sheriffs Association Contract FSA20-VEL 28.0/FSA20-VEH 

18.0 with a contract term expiration date of September 30, 2022, in the amount of $172,693.57 for the 

purchase of three (3) 2023 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility (K8A), two (2) of which will come with 

necessary equipment specific to K9 Officer/K9’s needs, as these funds are available in the FY22/23 

Budget, pursuant to Section §31-11 (E)(5) of the City Code. 
 

DISCUSSION: The Police Departments intends to Purchase three (3) 2023 Ford Police Interceptor AWD 

Utility vehicles to add to the existing Police Department fleet. Due to Florida Sheriffs Association Contract 

FSA20-VEL 28.0/FSA20-VEH 18.0 which has a term expiration date of September 30, 2022, the Police 

Department must go before Council for approval to secure reservation and current pricing of vehicles from 

Duval Ford. Duval Ford agrees to secure these three (3) vehicles for purchase providing the City issues a 

Notice of Intent letter on or before September 30th, 2022. See attached documentation: Duval Fleet Sales’ 

Quote Sheets, Florida Sheriffs Association Contract FSA-VEL 28.0, and Letter from Duval Fleet.  
 

Type of Vehicle/Equipment Quantity Total 

2023 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility (K8A) 

Patrol Vehicle 
1 $52,068.11 

2023 Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility (K8A) 

K9 Vehicle 
2 $120,607.46 

TOTAL COMBINED 3 $172,693.57 

 

Submission Date and Time:    9/16/2022 12:03 PM____  

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department:  Police 

 

Prepared by:  Ariadna Quintana                      

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   
  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:  Police Vehicles 

 

Account No.: 001-2001-521-6500 

 

Additional Funding:  N/A 

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $        

 

                       Current request:  $       $172,693.57 

 

              Total vendor amount:  $       $172,693.57 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, APROVING THE 

PURCHASE OF THREE VEHICLES FROM DUVAL FORD, 

LLC IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $172,693.57 

UTILIZING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION CONTRACT NOS. 

FSA20-VEH18.0 AND FSA20-VEL28.0 PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 31-11(E)(5) OF THE CITY CODE; DECLARING 

CERTAIN VEHICLES AS SURPLUS PROPERTY; 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS 

PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) desires to purchase three 2022 

Ford Police Interceptor AWD Utility vehicles and related accessory equipment (including 

K9 equipment for two vehicles) (the “Vehicles and Accessory Equipment”) to replace 

vehicles that have reached the end of their useful lifecycle and to facilitate the provision 

of the Police Department’s day-to-day operations; and  

WHEREAS, the type of purchase contemplated by the City has been competitively 

bid by the Florida Sheriffs Association, which has entered into Contract Nos. FSA20-

VEH18.0 and FSA20-VEL28.0 (the “FSA Contracts”) with Duval Ford, LLC (the “Vendor”), 

which local governments statewide may utilize for their own benefit; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, the City Council seeks to approve the purchase of the Vehicles and 

Accessory Equipment from the Vendor in an amount not to exceed $172,693.57 

consistent with the FSA Contracts and the Vendor’s quote, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

(the “Quote”), as the pricing offered pursuant to the FSA Contracts is in the City’s best 

interest; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council declares the vehicles listed on Exhibit “B” attached 

hereto (the “Surplus Vehicles”) as surplus property as the Surplus Vehicles have become 

obsolete, have outlived their usefulness, have become inadequate for the public purposes 

for which they were intended, or are no longer needed for public purposes in light of the 

purchases authorized by this Resolution, and authorizes the City Manager to sell or 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 3 

 

otherwise dispose of the Surplus Vehicles; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Approval. That pursuant to Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City Code, the 

City Council hereby approves of the purchase of the Vehicles and Accessory Equipment 

from the Vendor and the expenditure of budgeted funds in an amount not to exceed 

$172,693.57, consistent with the FSA Contracts and the Vendor’s Quote attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A”.  

Section 3. Declaration of Surplus Property. That the Surplus Vehicles have 

become obsolete, have outlived their usefulness, have become inadequate for the public 

purposes for which they were intended, or are no longer needed for public purposes. 

Accordingly, the City Council declares the Surplus Vehicles listed on Exhibit “B” attached 

hereto to be surplus personal property of the City. 

Section 4. Authorizing Sale or Disposition of Surplus Property. That the 

City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the Surplus Vehicles by public 

auction or other procedure determined by the City Manager to be in the best interests of 

the City. Any surplus property items acquired by the City pursuant to governmental grant 

programs shall only be disposed of in accordance with procedures and criteria applicable 

to such grant programs. 

Section 5. Implementation. That the City Manager is authorized to execute any 

purchase order or required documentation for the purchases described in this Resolution, 

subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form and legality, and to take any action 

that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution. 

Section 6. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 3 of 3 

 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 



 
 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A”
VENDOR’S QUOTE AND

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION CONTRACT NOS.
FSA20-VEH18.0 AND FSA20-VEL28.0



PATROL (2) MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE LT.xlsx

Prepared for: Contract Holder 9/15/22
MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE (PATROL) Duval Fleet Sales
LT. CARLOS NUNEZ Bambi Darr
305-389-8485 (Work) 904-388-2144
CNUNEZ@MSPD.US (Fax)  904-387-6816

Bambi.Darr@duvalfleet.com
5203 Waterside Dr Jax, Fl 32210
PLEASE CONFIRM RECEIPT OF QUOTE VIA EMAIL

Labor Code Price
0 -$                       
0 SPEC 255 2022 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR AWD UTILITY (K8A) 33,014.00$          
0 NSO NON SCHEDULED FSA OPTION: MANDATORY 2023 MODEL YEAR PRICE INCREASE 5,394.00$            
0 99B 3.3L TI-VCT V6 -$                       
0 44U 10 SPEED AUTOMATIC TRANMISSION -$                       
0 51R LEFT HAND PILLAR MOUNTED SPOTLIGHT -$                       
0 55F KEYLESS ENTRY -$                       
0 153 FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET -$                       
0 -$                       
0 YZ EXTERIOR COLOR: OXFORD WHITE -$                       
0 96 INTERIOR: EBONY CLOTH BUCKETS/ REAR VINYL -$                       
0 -$                       
0 52P HIDDEN DOOR PLUNGERS 159.00$                
0 17A AUX. CLIMATE CONTROL 609.00$                
0 19V REAR CAMERA ON DEMAND 229.00$                
0 43D COURTESY LAMP DISABLED 24.00$                  
0 55B BLIS 544.00$                
0 60A GRILLE WIRING 49.00$                  
0 68G REAR LOCKS AND HANDLES INOP -$                       
0 76P PRE COLLISION ASSIST 144.00$                
0 76R REVERSE SENSING 274.00$                
4 LED PKG 1 WHELEN VERTEX FOUR CORNER LIGHTING SYSTEM- RED/ BLUE SPLIT 810.00$                
2 PK0602ITU20TM SETINA PRISONER CAGE- 10 VC WITH RECESSED PANEL, UNCOATED POLYCARBONATE W/EXPANDED METAL SECURITY SCREEN 1,164.00$            
2 PK0316ITU202 ND SETINA REAR CARGO POLY BARRIER, 12VS 798.00$                
9 WPLB-LED 2 54" WHELEN PREMIUM ALL LED LIGHT BAR DUO (MODEL LEGACY) LEGACY LIGHTBAR WITH DUO LED MODULES, 2-WIRE CTL 3,007.00$            
0 TRAFFIC ADVISOR, (2) LED FLASHING/ALLEY LIGHTS, MOUNTING KIT 295SLSA6 COMBINATION LIGHT/SIREN CONTROLLER, -$                       
0  SA315P SIREN/SPEAKER AND MOUNTING BRACKET. Front RED/ WHITE WITH WHITE DUO- Rear RED/ BLUE WITH AMBER OVER RIDE -$                       
1 CC-20-UV10-L8 2020 PI Utility 18" Sloped console, 10" slope, 8" level. Includes one (1) dual-port USB outlet. 1,027.11$            
0 FP- 4" FP for siren controller. Make and model TBD. -$                       
0 FP-USB-2DC 2" faceplate with (2) DC outlets & (1) dual-port USB outlet. -$                       
0 FP-BLNK2 2" blank faceplate (x2) -$                       
0 AC-INBHG 4" internal dual-cup beverage holder. -$                       
0 FP-SGTRAY 4" console tray for cell phone, keys, etc. -$                       
0 6/100 EXTRA 6 YEAR/ 100,000 MILE EXTRA CARE EXTENDED WARRANTY WITH $0 DED 3,220.00$            
0 -$                       
0 -$                       
18 LABOR Total Contract labor hours per spec.  Includes wire, loom, connectors, PDI and shop supplies: $90 1,620.00$            
0 -$                       

VENDOR 
COMMENTS

UNIT COST 52,086.11$          

TOTAL QUANTITY 1 TOTAL PURCHASE 52,086.11$          

MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE (PATROL)

We appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote. Pricing per FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION LIGHT VEHICLE CONTRACT FSA20-VEL28.0 Heavy Equipment and Trucks 
FSA20-VEH 18.0.  If you have any questions regarding this quote please call!  Note, Vehicle will be ordered  white exterior unless specified on purchase order. Shipping and Invoicing 
instructions are required on agency purchase order.

Equipment

QUOTE EXPIRES ON 9/30/22.  2023 PI UTILITY CLOSED 9/9/22



K9 (2) MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE LT.xlsx

Prepared for: Contract Holder 9/15/22
MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE (K9) Duval Fleet Sales
LT. CARLOS NUNEZ Bambi Darr
305-389-8485 (Work) 904-388-2144
CNUNEZ@MSPD.US (Fax)  904-387-6816

Bambi.Darr@duvalfleet.com
5203 Waterside Dr Jax, Fl 32210
PLEASE CONFIRM RECEIPT OF QUOTE VIA EMAIL

Labor Code Price
0 -$                       
0 SPEC 255 2022 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR AWD UTILITY (K8A) 33,014.00$          
0 NSO NON SCHEDULED FSA OPTION: MANDATORY 2023 MODEL YEAR PRICE INCREASE 5,394.00$            
0 500A POLICE EQUIPMENT -$                       
0 99B 3.3L TI-VCT V6 -$                       
0 44U 10 SPEED AUTOMATIC TRANMISSION -$                       
0 51R LEFT HAND PILLAR MOUNTED SPOTLIGHT -$                       
0 55F KEYLESS ENTRY -$                       
0 153 FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET -$                       
0 -$                       
0 YZ EXTERIOR COLOR: OXFORD WHITE -$                       
0 96 INTERIOR: EBONY CLOTH BUCKETS/ REAR VINYL -$                       
0 -$                       
0 52P HIDDEN DOOR PLUNGERS 159.00$                
0 17A AUX. CLIMATE CONTROL 609.00$                
0 19V REAR CAMERA ON DEMAND 229.00$                
0 43D COURTESY LAMP DISABLED 24.00$                  
0 55B BLIS 544.00$                
0 60A GRILLE WIRING 49.00$                  
0 68G REAR LOCKS AND HANDLES INOP -$                       
0 76P PRE COLLISION ASSIST 144.00$                
0 76R REVERSE SENSING 274.00$                
4 LED PKG 1 WHELEN VERTEX FOUR CORNER LIGHTING SYSTEM- RED/ BLUE SPLIT 810.00$                
12 EZ RIDER K9 K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Rider K9 Platform System 3,422.65$            
0 DOOR POP K9 - American Aluminum - EZ R.E.S.C.U.E. K9 Door Opening System 2,849.56$            
0 PAGER K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Coolguard Pager Add On Option -$                       
0 HEAT ALARM K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Coolguard Temperature Monitor / Ace Watch Dog Alert 2,266.95$            
9 WPLB-LED 2 54" WHELEN PREMIUM ALL LED LIGHT BAR DUO (MODEL LEGACY) LEGACY LIGHTBAR WITH DUO LED MODULES, 2-WIRE CTL 3,007.00$            
0 TRAFFIC ADVISOR, (2) LED FLASHING/ALLEY LIGHTS, MOUNTING KIT 295SLSA6 COMBINATION LIGHT/SIREN CONTROLLER, -$                       
0  SA315P SIREN/SPEAKER AND MOUNTING BRACKET. Front RED/ WHITE WITH WHITE DUO- Rear RED/ BLUE WITH AMBER OVER RIDE -$                       
1 CC-20-UV10-L8 2020 PI Utility 18" Sloped console, 10" slope, 8" level. Includes one (1) dual-port USB outlet. 1,027.11$            
0 FP- 4" FP for siren controller. Make and model 295SLSA6 -$                       
0 FP-USB-2DC 2" faceplate with (2) DC outlets & (1) dual-port USB outlet. -$                       
0 FP-BLNK2 2" blank faceplate (x2) -$                       
0 AC-INBHG 4" internal dual-cup beverage holder. -$                       
0 FP-SGTRAY 4" console tray for cell phone, keys, etc. -$                       

0 TROY PREM LTS 920.46$                

0 -$                       
0 6/100 EXTRA 6 YEAR/ 100,000 MILE EXTRA CARE EXTENDED WARRANTY WITH $0 DED 3,220.00$            
0 -$                       
0 -$                       
26 LABOR Total Contract labor hours per spec.  Includes wire, loom, connectors, PDI and shop supplies: $90 2,340.00$            
0 -$                       

VENDOR 
COMMENTS

UNIT COST 60,303.73$          

TOTAL QUANTITY 2 TOTAL PURCHASE 120,607.46$        

MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE (K9)

We appreciate your interest and the opportunity to quote. Pricing per FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION LIGHT VEHICLE CONTRACT FSA20-VEL28.0 Heavy Equipment and 
Trucks FSA20-VEH 18.0.  If you have any questions regarding this quote please call!  Note, Vehicle will be ordered  white exterior unless specified on purchase order. Shipping 
and Invoicing instructions are required on agency purchase order.

Equipment

TROY PRODUCTS [CM-UV20-SL-LED] non-intrusive passenger seat computer stand with easy one-handed operation. Includes Troy's unique 
slide-arm feature. Does not compromise passenger side foot space. Includes Laptop Tray CM-LT-1600

QUOTE EXPIRES ON 9/30/22.  2023 PI UTILITY CLOSED 9/9/22



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

v629 CODE OPTION S/
O/

I

2023 Model Year 2022 Model Year

255 K8A WESTERN ZONE 38,411.00$        33,017.00$                 
255 K8A NORTHERN ZONE 38,232.00$        32,838.00$                 
255 K8A CENTRAL ZONE 38,411.00$        33,017.00$                 
255 K8A SOUTHERN ZONE 38,408.00$        33,014.00$                 

CPA Contract Price Adjustment for manufacturer's new model year supply 
contraints  through September 2022

5,394.00$                   

SPEC 255 CODE OPTION S/
O/

I

PRICE MSRP

99B/44U

AWD 3.3L V6 Direct-Injection FFV with 10-Speed Automatic Transmission 
(136-MPH Top Speed) Note: Deletes Regenerative Braking and Lithium-Ion 
Battery Pack; adds 250-Amp Alternator, replaces H7 AGM battery (800 
CCA/80-amp) with H7 SLI battery (730 CCA/80-amp) and replaces 19-
gallon tank with 21.4-gallon tank

S

SPECIAL PAINT
1 2 Tone White doors Painted only O  $                   1,395.00  NA 
2 2 Tone D&R White doors and Roof painted O  $                   1,695.00  NA 
3 2 Tone Full Two tone:  Roof, doors and pillars painted white O  $                   1,895.00 NA
4 EQUIPMENT GROUP

5 65U

Interior Upgrade Package
•1st and 2nd Row Carpet Floor Cov ering
•Cloth Seats – Rear
•Center Floor Console less shif ter (Maintains Column Shif ter)
•Includes Console and Top Plate with 2 cup holders
•Floor Mats, f ront and rear (carpeted)
•Includes SYNC 3®

O 379.00$                       390.00$                       

6 66A

Front Headlamp Lighting Solution
• Includes LED Low beam/High beam headlamp, Wig-wag function and (2) 
Red/Blue/White LED side warning lights in each headlamp (factory 
configured: driver’s side White/Red / passenger side White/Blue)
• Includes pre-wire for grille LED lights, siren and speaker (60A)
• Wiring, LED lights included (in headlamps only; grille lights not included). 
Controller “not” included
Note: Not available with option: 67H
Note: Recommend using Ultimate Wiring Package (67U)

O 894.00$                       895.00$                       

7 86T

Tail Lamp / Police Interceptor Housing Only
• Pre-existing holes with standard twist lock sealed capability (does not 
include LED strobe) (eliminates need to drill housing assemblies)
Note: Not available with options: 66B and 67H

O 59.00$                         60.00$                         

8 66B

Tail Lamp Lighting Solution
• Includes LED lights plus two (2) rear integrated hemispheric lighthead 
white LED side warning lights in taillamps
• LED lights only. Wiring, controller “not” included
Note: Not available with option: 67H, 86T
Note: Recommend using Ultimate Wiring Package (67U)

O 429.00$                       430.00$                       

9 66C

Rear Lighting Solution
• Includes two (2) backlit flashing linear high-intensity LED lights (driver’s 
side red / passenger side blue) mounted to inside liftgate glass
• Includes two (2) backlit flashing linear high-intensity LED lights (driver’s 
side red / Passenger side blue) installed on inside lip of liftgate (lights 
activate when liftgate is open)
• LED lights only. Wiring, controller “not” included
Note: Not available with option: 67H
Note: LED lights only – does “not” include wiring or controller
Note: Recommend using Ultimate Wiring Package (67U)

O 454.00$                       455.00$                       



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

10 67H

Ready for the Road Package: All-in Complete Package – Includes Police 
Interceptor Packages: 66A, 66B, 66C, plus
• Whelen Cencom Light Controller Head with dimmable backlight
• Whelen Cencom Relay Center / Siren / Amp w/Traffic Advisor control 
(mounted behind 2nd row seat)
• Light Controller / Relay Cencom Wiring (wiring harness) w/additional 
input/output pigtails
• High current pigtail
• Whelen Specific WECAN Cable (console to cargo area) connects Cencom 
to Control Head
• Pre-wiring for grille LED lights, siren and speaker (60A)
• Rear console plate (85R) – contours through 2nd row; channel for wiring
• Grille linear LED Lights (Red / Blue) and harness
• 100-Watt Siren / Speaker
• Hidden Door-Lock Plunger w/Rear-door controls inoperable (locks, 
handles and windows) (52P)
Note: Not available with options: 66A, 66B, 66C, 67U and 65U

O 3,594.00$                   3,595.00$                   

11 67U

Ultimate Wiring Package Includes the following:
• Rear console mounting plate (85R) – contours through 2nd row; channel 
for wiring
• Pre-wiring for grille LED lights, siren and speaker (60A)
• Wiring harness I/P to rear cargo area (overlay) – Two (2) light cables – 
supports up to six (6) LED lights (engine compartment/grille) – One (1) 10-
amp siren/speaker circuit engine compartment
• Rear hatch/cargo area wiring – supports up to six (6) rear LED lights
• Does “not” include LED lights, side connectors or controller
Note: Recommend Police Wire Harness Connector Kit 67V
Note: Not available with options: 65U, 67H

O 559.00$                       560.00$                       

12 67V

Police Wire Harness Connector Kit – Front/Rear For connectivity to Ford PI 
Package solutions includes:
• Front – (2) Male 4-pin connectors for siren – (5) Female 4-pin connectors 
for lighting/siren/speaker – (1) 4-pin IP connector for speakers – (1) 4-pin IP 
connector for siren controller connectivity – (1) 8-pin sealed connector – (1) 
14-pin IP connector
• Rear – (2) Male 4-pin connectors for siren – (5) Female 4-pin connectors 
for lighting/siren/speaker – (1) 4-pin IP connector for speakers – (1) 4-pin IP 
connector for siren controller connectivity – (1) 8-pin sealed connector – (1) 
14-pin IP connector

O 184.00$                       185.00$                       

13 41H Engine Block Heater O 89.00$                         90.00$                         
14 153 License Plate Bracket – Front I NC NC
15 43D Dark Car Feature – Courtesy lamps disabled when any door is opened O 24.00$                         25.00$                         

16 942
Daytime Running Lamps (Always on) Note: Replaces Standard 
Configurable Daytime Running Lamps for agencies that require Always on 
Daytime Running Lamps

44.00$                         45.00$                         

17 17T Switchable Red/White Lighting in Cargo Area (deletes 3rd row overhead 
map light)

O 49.00$                         50.00$                         

18 21L
Front Warning Auxiliary LED Lights (Driver side – Red / Passenger side – 
Blue) Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or 
Ultimate Wiring Package (67U)

O 549.00$                       550.00$                       



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

19 96W

Front Interior Visor Light Bar (LED)
• Super low-profile warning LED light bar fully integrated into the top of the 
windshield near the headliner – fully programable. (Red/Red or Blue/Blue 
operation. White “take down” and “scene” capabilities)
Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or Ultimate 
Wiring Package (67U) (when not ordering the Interior Upgrade Package 
[65U])
Note: Front/Rear Console Plate no longer required; can be ordered with 
Interior Upgrade Package (65U)
Note: Not available with option 76P

O 1,144.00$                   1,145.00$                   

20 60A Pre-wiring for grille LED lights, siren and speaker O 49.00$                         50.00$                         

21 43A

Rear Auxiliary Liftgate Lights (Red/Blue LED Lights; located beneath liftgate 
glass in applique panel)
• LED lights only. Wiring, controller “not” included
Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or Ultimate 
Wiring Package (67U)

O 394.00$                       395.00$                       

22 63L

Rear Quarter Glass Side Marker LED Lights (Driver side – Red / Passenger 
side – Blue)
• LED lights only. Wiring, controller “not” included
Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or Ultimate 
Wiring Package (67U)

O 574.00$                       575.00$                       

23 96T

Rear Spoiler Traffic Warning Lights (LED)
• Fully integrated in rear spoiler for enhanced visibility
• Provides red/blue/amber directional lighting – fully programmable
Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or Ultimate 
Wiring Package (67U) (when not ordering the Interior Upgrade Package 
[65U])
Note: Rear Console Plate no longer required; can be ordered with Interior 
Upgrade Package (65U)

O 1,494.00$                   1,495.00$                   

24 63B

Side Marker LED – Sideview Mirrors (Driver side – Red / Passenger side – 
Blue)
• Located on exterior mirror housing
• LED lights only. Wiring, controller “not” included
Note: Requires Pre-wiring for grille LED Lights, siren and speaker (60A)
Note: Recommend using Ready for the Road Package (67H) or Ultimate 
Wiring Package (67U)

O 289.00$                       290.00$                       

25 51P Spot Lamp Prep Kit, Driver Only Note: Does not include spot lamp housing 
and bulb

O 139.00$                       140.00$                       

26 51W Spot Lamp Prep Kit, Dual Driv er and Passenger. Note: Does not include 
spot lamp housing and bulb

O 279.00$                       280.00$                       

27 D51R Delete Spotlight Driver Side Only (Unity ) O (110.00)$                     (110.00)$                     
28 51T Driver Only (Whelen) O 419.00$                       420.00$                       
29 51S Dual (driver and passenger) (Unity ) O 619.00$                       620.00$                       
30 51V Dual (driver and passenger) (Whelen) O 664.00$                       665.00$                       
31 TINTA Full Window Tinting, Lumar or 3M brand O 385.00$                       385.00$                       

32 92G Glass – Solar Tint 2nd Row door glass, Rear Quarter and Liftgate Window 
(Deletes Priv acy Glass)

O 119.00$                       120.00$                       

33 92R Glass – Solar Tint 2nd Row Only door glass, Privacy Glass on Rear Quarter 
and Liftgate Window

O 84.00$                         85.00$                         

34 76D Underbody Deflector Plate (engine and transmission shield) O 334.00$                       335.00$                       

35 65L Wheel Covers (18" Full Face Wheel Cover)  Note: Only available with the 
standard Police wheel, not available with 64E

O 59.00$                         60.00$                         

36 64E 18” Painted Aluminum Wheel.  Note: Spare wheel is an 18” conventional 
(Police) black steel wheel. Not available with 65L.

O 474.00$                       475.00$                       

37 Audio / Video



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

38 47E

12.1” Integrated Computer Screen
• Includes 12.1” touchscreen display in center stack and allows for operation 
of laptop in remote location to free up cabin space in front passenger area
• Includes Audio Video Extender (AVX) box, (2) AVX cables, (2) USB cables 
and (1) HDMI cable
• Includes SYNC 3 ®

O 2,744.00$                   2,745.00$                   

39 87R

Rear View Camera displayed in rear view mirror (Includes Electrochromic 
Rear View Mirror)
Note: Not recommended with option 47E 12.1” Integrated Computer Screen
Note: This option replaces the standard display in the center stack area.
Note: Camera can only be displayed in the center stack (std) “OR” the rear 
view mirror (87R)

O NC NC

40 19V Rear Camera On-Demand – allows driver to enable rear camera on-
demand

O 229.00$                       230.00$                       

41 USB I USB Charge wire for iphone O 39.00$                         45.00$                         
42 USB A USB Charge wire for android devices O 39.00$                         45.00$                         
43 Doors / Locks

44 52P

Hidden Door-Lock Plunger w/Rear-door controls inoperable (locks, handles 
and windows)
Note: Not available with 68G – includes all content of 68G
Note: Can manually remove window or door disable plate with special tool
Note: Locks/windows operable from driver’s door switches

O 159.00$                       160.00$                       

45 68G
Rear-Door controls Inoperable (locks, handles and windows)
Note: Not available with 52P.
Note: Can manually remove window or door disable plate with special tool
Note: Locks/windows operable from driver’s door switches

O 74.00$                         75.00$                         

46 18D

Global Lock / Unlock feature (Door-panel switches will lock/unlock all doors 
and rear liftgate. Eliminates overhead console liftgate unlock switch and 45-
second timer. Also eliminates the blue liftgate release button if ordered with 
Remote Keyless Entry )

O NC NC

47 D55F
Delete: Remote Keyless-Entry Key Fob (w/o Keypad, less PATS) – (includes 
4-key fobs) O (75.00)$                        (75.00)$                        

48 59E Keyed Alike – 1435x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
49 59B Keyed Alike – 1284x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
50 59D Keyed Alike – 0135x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
51 59F Keyed Alike – 0576x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
52 59J Keyed Alike – 1111x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
53 59C Keyed Alike – 1294x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
54 59G Keyed Alike – 0151x O 49.00$                         50.00$                         
55 Flooring / Seats
56 16C 1st and 2nd row carpet floor cov ering (includes floor mats, front and rear) O 124.00$                       125.00$                       
57 88F 2nd Row Cloth Seats O 59.00$                         60.00$                         
58 87P Power passenger seat (8-way ) w/2-way manual recline and lumbar) O 324.00$                       325.00$                       

59 85D
Front Console Plate Delete.  Note: Not available with option: 67H, 67U, 85R

O NC NC

60 85S Rear Center Seat Delete • Deletes the center section of the 2nd row seat • 
Includes molded trim floor panel in lieu of center seat section

O NC NC

61 85R Rear Console Plate.  Note: Not available with option: 65U, 85D O 44.00$                         45.00$                         
62 Safety & Security



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

63 90D

Ballistic Door-Panels (Level III+) – Driver Front-Door Only, Tested and meets 
the requirements of NIJ Standard 0108.01 Level III:
●7.62 x 51 mm 9.7g M80 (.308 Winchester 150gr)
Per LAPD requirements, they’re also designed to withstand special threat 
rounds:
●7.62 x 39 mm MSC 7.9g (Type 56)
●5.56 x 45 mm M193 3.36g
●5.56 x 45mm M855 4g

O 1,584.00$                   1,585.00$                   

64 90E

Ballistic Door-Panels (Level III+) – Driver & Pass Front-Doors, Tested and 
meets the requirements of NIJ Standard 0108.01 Level III:
●7.62 x 51 mm 9.7g M80 (.308 Winchester 150gr)
Per LAPD requirements, they’re also designed to withstand special threat 
rounds:
●7.62 x 39 mm MSC 7.9g (Type 56)
●5.56 x 45 mm M193 3.36g
●5.56 x 45mm M855 4g

O 3,169.00$                   3,170.00$                   

65 90F

Ballistic Door-Panels (Level IV+) – Driver Front-Door Only , Tested and 
meets the requirements of NIJ Standard 0108.01 Level IV:
● .30-06 M2 AP 166gr (7.62 x 63 APM2 10.8g)
Also designed to withstand special threat rounds:
● 7.62 x 54R LPS 9.65g
● 7.62 x 51 mm M61 9.75g (.308 Winchester 150.5gr)
In addition, Level IV+ includes all of the NIJ Level III and LAPD rounds listed 
in footnote

O 2,414.00$                   2,415.00$                   

66 90G

Ballistic Door-Panels (Level IV+) – Driver & Pass Front-Doors, Tested and 
meets the requirements of NIJ Standard 0108.01 Level IV:
● .30-06 M2 AP 166gr (7.62 x 63 APM2 10.8g)
Also designed to withstand special threat rounds:
● 7.62 x 54R LPS 9.65g
● 7.62 x 51 mm M61 9.75g (.308 Winchester 150.5gr)
In addition, Level IV+ includes all of the NIJ Level III and LAPD rounds listed 
in footnote

O 4,829.00$                   4,830.00$                   

67 55B BLIS® – Blind Spot Monitoring with Cross-traffic Alert O 544.00$                       545.00$                       

68 68B

Police Perimeter Alert – detects motion in an approximately 270-degree 
radius on sides and back of vehicle; if movement is determined to be a 
threat, chime will sound at level I. Doors will lock and windows will 
automatically go up at level II. Includes visual display in instrument cluster 
with tracking

O 674.00$                       675.00$                       

69 76P

Pre-Collision Assist with Pedestrian Detection (includes Forward Collision 
Warning and Automatic Emergency Braking)
Note: Includes unique one-touch temporary disable switch for Law 
Enforement use
Note: Not available with option 96W

O 144.00$                       145.00$                       

70 549
Mirrors – Heated Sideview
Note: Not required when ordering BLIS® (heated mirror is included with 
BLIS®)

O 59.00$                         60.00$                         

71 593

Perimeter Anti-Theft Alarm
• Activated by Hood, Door or Liftgate; when unauthorized entry occurs, 
system will flash the headlamps, parking lamps and sound the horn
• Requires Keyless-Entry Key Fob (55F)
Note: Cannot be ordered with Keyed-Alike options

O 119.00$                       120.00$                       

72 47A

Police Engine Idle feature
• This feature allows you to leave the engine running and prevents your 
vehicle from unauthorized use when outside of your vehicle. Allows the key 
to be removed from ignition while vehicle remains idling

O 259.00$                       260.00$                       

73 76R Reverse Sensing System O 274.00$                       275.00$                       
74 17A Rear Auxiliary Air Conditioning O 609.00$                       610.00$                       



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

75 16D
Badge Delete
• Deletes the “Police Interceptor” badging on rear liftgate
• Deletes the “Interceptor” badging on front hood (EcoBoost®)

O NC NC

76 63V Cargo Storage Vault (includes lockable door and compartment light) O 24.00$                         245.00$                       
77 19K H8 AGM Battery (850 CCA/92-amp) O 109.00$                       110.00$                       

78 68E

Low-Band Frequency Noise Suppression Kit
• Recommended for agencies that operate radio equipment in the 39-46 
MHz frequency range (VHF Low Band – Channels 1-9)
• Provides noise suppression for in-car two-way radio communication 
devices in the 39-46 MHz frequency range
Noise Suppression Bonds (60R) do not provide adequate noise 
suppression in this frequency range

O 194.00$                       195.00$                       

79 60R

Noise Suppression Bonds (Ground Straps)  Note: Low-Band Frequency 
Noise Suppression Kit (68E) recommended for agencies that operate radio 
equipment in the 39-46 MHz f requency range (VHF Low Band – Channels 
1-9)

O 99.00$                         100.00$                       

80 18X 100 Watt Siren/Speaker (includes bracket and pigtail) O 314.00$                       315.00$                       

81 61B OBD-II Split Connector – Allows up to 2 devices to be connected to the 
vehicle’s OBD-II port

O 54.00$                         55.00$                         

82
CONSOLES DESCRIPTION

Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

83 CC-20-UV10-L8-K

TROY PRODUCTS 18" L-shaped console with 10" slope / 8" 
level with faceplates, 4" dual cup internal beverage holder, 4" 
shallow console tray,2" face plate pre-punched w/ holes for (2) 
DC outlets & (1) dual-port USB module, & height adjustable 
swivel arm rest with 5"x8" foam pad that bolts to rear of 
console.

1 1,027.11$          90.00$               

84 CC-20FDUV-22-K

TROY PRODUCTS 22" all-level console with faceplates, 4" 
dual cup internal beverage holder, 4" shallow console tray,2" 
face plate pre-punched w/ holes for (2) DC outlets & (1) dual-
port USB module, & height adjustable swivel arm rest with 
5"x8" foam pad that bolts to rear of console.

1 996.64$             90.00$               

85 7170-0734-04 Console - Gamber Johnson - Short console box, cup holder, 
armrest, Mongoose motion attachment

1 1,048.50$          90.00$               

86 7170-0734-00 Console - Gamber Johnson - Console box with cup holder kit 1 538.50$             90.00$               

87 C-VS-1012-INUT Console - Havis - Vehicle Specific 22" Console 1 598.50$             90.00$               
88 C-VS-1400-INUT Console - Havis - Vehicle Specific 14" Console 1 418.50$             90.00$               

89 425-6505 Console - Jotto - Ford PI Utility (2020+) Police Equipment 
Console - Contour

1 531.00$             90.00$               

90 425-6162 Console - Jotto - Police Equipment Console - Contour 1 358.50$             90.00$               

91 7160-0524 Console Armrest - Gamber Johnson - MCS External Break-
Away Armrest

1 288.00$             90.00$               

92 7160-0375 Console Armrest - Gamber Johnson - MCS Extended Panel 
Armrest

1 130.50$             90.00$               

93 C-ARM-101 Console Armrest - Havis - Top Mount Arm Rest 1 108.00$             90.00$               
94 C-ARM-102 Console Armrest - Havis - Side Mount Armrest 1 93.00$               90.00$               
95 425-6260 Console Armrest - Jotto - Armrest - Upper Structure 1 87.00$               90.00$               
96 425-6358 Console Armrest - Jotto - 3" Armrest - Faceplate Mount 1 63.00$               90.00$               

97 3130-0361 / 7160-
0063

Console 3 Outlet - Gamber Johnson - DC Outlet Face Plate / 
3 Outlet

1 139.50$             90.00$               

98 C-LP-3 Console 3 Outlet - Havis - 3 Outlet power supply 1 94.50$               90.00$               
99 425-2968 Console 3 Outlet - Jotto - 12V Power Outlets in 2" Faceplate 1 94.50$               90.00$               
100 7160-0846 Console Cupholder - Gamber Johnson - 2 Cupholder 1 78.00$               90.00$               
101 C-CUP2-I Console Cupholder - Havis - 2 Cupholder 1 63.00$               90.00$               
102 425-3704 Console Cupholder - Jotto - 2 Cupholder 1 70.50$               90.00$               

103 LAPTOP MOUNTS Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

104 Troy LTS TROY PRODUCTS [CM-SDMT-SL-LED] side-mount computer 
mount with easy one-handed operation. Includes Troy's 
unique slide-arm feature. (Includes CM-LT-1600 Laptop Tray.) 

1 793.50$             90.00$               

105 Troy Premium LTS

TROY PRODUCTS [CM-UV20-SL-LED] non-intrusive 
passenger seat computer stand with easy one-handed 
operation. Includes Troy's unique slide-arm feature.  Does not 
compromise passenger side foot space. Includes Laptop Tray 
CM-LT-1600. 

1 920.46$             90.00$               

106 PED KIT - 2020 PIUTLaptop Stand - Gamber Johnson - 7160-1336,DS-LOWER-
9,7160-0178,7160-0230,7160-0928

1 805.50$             90.00$               

107 PKG-PSM-1006 Laptop Stand - Havis - Standard Passenger Side Mount 
Package

1 430.50$             90.00$               

108 PKG-PSM-3006 Laptop Stand - Havis - Premium Passenger Side Mount 
Package

1 775.50$             90.00$               

109 425-5010/4143 Laptop Stand - Jotto - HD A-MOD Laptop Mount 1 610.50$             90.00$               
110 7160-0250 Laptop Cradle - Gamber Johnson - Universal Laptop tray 1 370.50$             90.00$               
111 UT-1001 Laptop Cradle - Havis - Universal Laptop tray 1 325.50$             90.00$               
112

113
K9

Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

114 EZ Rider K9 K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Rider K9 Platform System 12 3,422.65$          90.00$               

115 EZ Rescue Door 
Pop

K9 - American Aluminum - EZ R.E.S.C.U.E. K9 Door Opening 
System

12 2,849.56$          90.00$               

116 EZ Coolguard 
Pager

K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Coolguard Pager Add On 
Option

12 692.15$             90.00$               

117 EZ Coolguard 
Heat Alarm

K9 - American Aluminum - EZ Coolguard Temperature Monitor 
/ Alert

12 2,266.95$          90.00$               

118 Havis K9

Smooth edges and tight gaps to prevent injury, catch and 
chew points.  Front slider door exit with full door range of 
motion left to right and improved sliders to eliminate rattle
Front bulkhead includes mounting provisions 4" circulation 
fans (use p/n: K9-A-102, sold separately)
Fits 2020+ Ford Police Interceptor Utility, including hybrid,  
Smooth powder coat finish is easy to clean,  Fabricated from 
Heavy-duty aluminum for long-lasting durability
Door panels with window guards included, with optional 10" 
emergency exhaust fan mounting on driver or passenger side 
(use p/n: K9-A-104 option, sold separately)
K9 kit window guards include a .281" x 1.75" obround slotted 
hole pattern to minimize the possibility of fingers accidently 
being put into the K9 compartment
Integrated speaker cover in door panels reduces install time 
and allow vehicle to be restored to oe functionality
Includes one (1) interior LED dome light with white light for 
daytime use and red light for nighttime use Durable and .25" 
thick rubber mat lays flat and resists chewing
Easy to install and includes all hardware
Works with OEM rear cargo floor / spare tire cover or Havis C-
TTP-INUT-1200, C-TTP-INUT-1201 and C-TTP-INUT-4 
Specifications:
SUV kit dimensions: 36" deep by 65" wide by 40" high
Side entry openings are 24" wide x 37" high
Front entry door opening 13.5" wide x 30.25" high
Measurement from top of K9 floor to ground = 22.75" inches
Rear cargo space behind K9 wall to rear door sill trim is 44" 
wide x 41" long at 14" high (less front to back length above 
15" high)

12 4,445.00$          90.00$               



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

119
PRISONER CONTAINMENT

Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

120  TP-E-SL6-US-SS-PIU-K

TROY PRODUCTS large window partition with sliding window, 
crawl-through barrier and weapon recess panel, Includes 
mounting kit & partition kick panels with big foot pockets for 
Interceptor Utility.

2 1,250.56$          90.00$               

121 475-0065,475-0968Prisoner Cage - Jotto - Partition w/sliding window, wire mesh, 
LEP, recess panel

2 1,290.00$          90.00$               

122 PFW4714UINT20A Prisoner Cage - Pro-gard - Poly Center Slider Window with 
Expanded Metal Insert/LEP

2 1,134.00$          90.00$               

123 PRPSP4714UINT20APrisoner Cage - Pro-gard - Poly Center Slider Window with 
Expanded Metal Insert/LEP/Rec.Pnl

2 1,230.00$          90.00$               

124 PK0118ITU20TM Prisoner Cage - Setina - #8VS 1/2 Uncoated Polycarbonate 
1/2 Vinyl Coated Expanded Metal

2 984.00$             90.00$               

125 PK0398ITU20TM Prisoner Cage - Setina - #8VS Recessed Panel 1/2 Uncoated 
Polycarbonate 1/2 Vinyl Coated Expanded Metal

2 1,092.00$          90.00$               

126 PK0602ITU20TM Prisoner Cage - Setina - #10VS C Recessed Panel Uncoated 
Polycarbonate With Expanded Metal Window Security Screen

2 1,164.00$          90.00$               

127 PK0601ITU20TM Prisoner Cage - Setina - #10VS C Uncoated Polycarbonate 
With Vinyl Coated Expanded Metal Window Security Screen

2 1,050.00$          90.00$               

128 P1000UINT20AOSBSingle Prisoner Cage - Pro-gard - Partition,seat,door panels, 
window bars,lep,rear barrier,belts

2 2,826.00$          90.00$               

129 P1000UINT20A Single Prisoner Cage - Pro-gard - Partition,seat,door panels, 
window bars,lep,rear barrier

2 2,592.00$          90.00$               

130 1K0574ITU20 Single Prisoner Cage - Setina - 6-VS SPT - Stock seat 2 1,332.00$          90.00$               

131 FE7502-NP Prisoner Seat - Laguna - Seat with Laguna Seat Belts (No 
Rear Cargo Screen Included)

1 1,308.00$          90.00$               

132 FE7502-RBNP Prisoner Seat - Laguna - Seat with Ready Buckle (No Rear 
Cargo Screen Included)

1 1,434.00$          90.00$               

133 S4702UINT20 Prisoner Seat - Pro-gard - Standard Transport Seat w/ ¼" 
Poly. Window Cargo Barrier & Seat

2 1,524.00$          90.00$               

134 S4705UINT20 Prisoner Seat - Pro-gard - Standard Transport Seat w/ 7 Ga. 
Steel Screen Window cargo bar.

2 1,524.00$          90.00$               

135 QK0634ITU20 Prisoner Seat - Setina - REP. Seat, wire barrier, belts 2 1,062.00$          90.00$               
136 FP47UINT20 Floor Pan - Pro-gard - Charcoal Grey ABS, Floor Pan 1 402.00$             90.00$               
137 QK0491ITU20 Floor Pan - Setina - Floor Pan  - TPO Plastic 1 408.00$             90.00$               

138 475-0067 Cargo Barrier - Jotto - Side Curtain Airbag Compliant Cargo 
Barrier - Wire

2 810.00$             90.00$               

139 475-1337 Cargo Barrier - Jotto - Side Curtain Airbag Compliant Cargo 
Barrier - Upper Poly 

2 852.00$             90.00$               

140 B4702UINT20 Cargo Barrier - Pro-gard - ¼" Poly, Cargo Barrier with Filler 
Panel with sca

2 780.00$             90.00$               

141 B4705UINT20 Cargo Barrier - Pro-gard - 7 Gauge Steel Wire, Cargo Barrier 
with Filler Panels with sca

2 780.00$             90.00$               

142 PK0123ITU202ND Cargo Barrier - Setina - 12-VS Wire Mesh Rear Barrier 2 774.00$             90.00$               
143 PK0316ITU202ND Cargo Barrier - Setina - 12-VS Poly Rear Barrier 2 798.00$             90.00$               
144 475-0848 Window Bars - Jotto - Window Armor  - Vertical 1 534.00$             90.00$               
145 475-1486 Window Bars - Jotto - Window Armor  - Secure Grid 1 558.00$             90.00$               

146 WB47NPUINT20 Window Bars - Pro-gard - Pair, Steel Window Bars (for use with 
O.E.M. door panels only)

1 474.00$             90.00$               

147 WK0514ITU20 Window Bars - Setina - Window Armor - Vertical 1 486.00$             90.00$               
148 WK0514ITU20H Window Bars - Setina - Window Armor - Horizontal 1 486.00$             90.00$               

149 475-1251 Door Panels - Jotto - Ford PI Utility (2020+) OEM Door Control 
Covers

1 294.00$             90.00$               

150 DK0100ITU12 Door Panels - Setina - TPO Door Panels 1 486.00$             90.00$               
151 DK0598ITU12 Door Panels - Setina - Aluminum Door Panels 1 426.00$             90.00$               

152 PUSH BUMPERS Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

153 PB47UINT20HD Push Bumper - Pro-gard - HD Push Bumper 3 732.00$             90.00$               

154 BK0341ITU20 Push Bumper - Setina - PB100A12 12" Aluminum Push 
Bumper

3 594.00$             90.00$               

155 BK0342ITU20 Push Bumper - Setina - PB100A16 16" Aluminum Push 
Bumper

3 606.00$             90.00$               

156 BK0393ITU - TBD Push Bumper - Setina - PB300 VS Aluminum Bumper Full 3 720.00$             90.00$               
157 BK0534ITU20 Push Bumper - Setina - PB400 VS Aluminum Bumper Full 3 720.00$             90.00$               
158 36-2125 Push Bumper - Westin - Push Bumper Elite 3 636.00$             90.00$               

159 GUN LOCKS Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

160 GM-SGRF-MNT-K TROY PRODUCTS theft-deterrent dual weapon gun mount. 
Includes two (2) butt plates,  two (2) lock  and two (2) handcuff 
style locks with #2 key and push-button override switch.

1 318.00$             90.00$               

161 475-2052 Gun Lock - Jotto - Dual Weapon, Partition Mounted 1 936.00$             90.00$               
162 475-2053 Gun Lock - Jotto - Single Weapon, Partition Mounted 1 720.00$             90.00$               

163 GVPMS-H Gun Lock - Pro-gard - Vertical Partition Mount Single Weapon 
Tri-Lock G/R w/Handcuff K

1 696.00$             90.00$               

164 GVMPD-H Gun Lock - Pro-gard - Vertical Partition Mount Dual Weapon 
Tri-Lock G/R w/Handcuff Key

1 696.00$             90.00$               

165 GK10342USSCAXLGun Lock - Setina - Dual Weapon, Partition Mounted, 
Universal Gun locks

1 660.00$             90.00$               

166 GK10271UXLSSSCAGun Lock - Setina - Single Weapon, Partition Mounted, 
Universal Gun lock

1 472.50$             90.00$               

167 STORAGE VAULTS (Revised 10/5/21) Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

168 TK0841
Setina Cargo Storage System TK0841ITU20: STD Height, 
without EZ lift. Top tier configuration with sliding drawer and 
combo lock. Requires Setina 12vs or Freestand.

2 2,086.80$          90.00$               

169 EZ EZ Lift Cargo Deck 2 1,188.00$          90.00$               

170 CP-GB403212-TL-
K

TROY PRODUCTS storage vault, 40"Wx32"Lx12H". Includes 
two (2) lockable draw-tight handles, carpet on top, foam on 
floor, tilt-up cargo mount that allows access to spare tire, & tilt-
down electronics tray.

2 1,741.20$          90.00$               

171
CP-MS-UV-1DWB-
K

TROY PRODUCTS command post with tilt-up white board, 
storage drawers and tilt-up cargo mount that allows access to 
the spare tire.

2 4,446.00$          90.00$               

172 CP-GB44248-T3-
K

TROY PRODUCTS elevated storage vault, 48"Wx24"Lx8H". 
Includes two (2) lockable draw-tight handles, carpet on top, 
foam on floor and slide-out electronics tray. Elevated design 
allows access to spare tire.

2 1,766.40$          90.00$               

173 Lighting DESCRIPTION Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

174 C3AVP

Code3: Administrative Vehicle Package - Consist of Interior 
LED Dash Light, (2) LED Rear Deck Lights, 900 Series Head 
Light Flasher, Code3 H2 Covert Siren or 3920 Series Siren 
and Light Controller, C3100U Speaker with Bracket. 5-Year 
Warranty.

7  $         1,491.00  $              90.00 

175 SOAVP

SoundOff Signal Administrative Vehicle Package - Consist of 
Interior Rearview Mirror LED Light; Rear Deck or Headliner 
LED Lights (Minimum of 2); Headlight Flasher; Tail light 
flasher; Four Corner Universal Undercover LED system; 
Combination Light Controller/Siren (ETSA200RA-PA); Speaker 
and Bracket - LED lights may be blue, red, amber or any 
combination - specify color.

7  $         1,897.80  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

176 WAVP

Whelen: Administrative Vehicle Package - Consist of Interior 
Rearview Mirror LED Light; Rear Deck or Headliner LED Lights 
(Minimum of 2); Headlight Flasher; Four Corner LED System; 
Hand Held or 295SLSA6 One Piece Combination Light 
Controller/Siren; Speaker and Bracket – LED lights may be 
blue, red, amber or any combination - specify color.

7  $         1,796.66  $              90.00 

177 C3ELBP-LED

Code3 Economic Lightbar Package 21TR (Model 21TR47A4) 
Manufactured in America, All LED Torus Modules, Flashing 
Takedown and Alley LED lights, Code3 Mastercom Siren and 
Light Controller, C3100U Speaker with Bracket. 5 Year 
Warranty.

8  $         2,274.31  $              90.00 

178 SOELB – LED 

SoundOff Signal Economy LED Lightbar Package - SoundOff 
Signal All LED 48” EMG2000 Magnum LED Lightbar 10-16v 
(EMG2000) w/ Take Downs & Alleys, Standard Split option 
available – Clear lenses with Amber, Blue, Red or White LEDs - 
3 LED inboards and 6 LED corners Bar can be ordered with 
any color in each module.  5-year warranty is included on 
EMG2000. 6 led corner for warning and standard with LED 
takedowns and alleys (CONTAINS NO EMPTY HOLES OR 
MISSING DIODES).  5-year warranty Included on EMG2000.  
Package also includes a SoundOff 100-watt 400 series siren 
(Siren Model number ETSA400csp) with integrated lighting 
controls and directional arrow switch to control optional full or 
split rear arrow, and 100-watt SAE approved siren speaker 
w/vehicle specific mounting bracket (Speaker Model 
ETSS100D), please specify vehicle bracket needed.  
Lightbars are available in red, blue, amber, or any 
combination of these colors.

8  $         2,231.75  $              90.00 

179 WELB – LED

Whelen Economic All LED Lightbar (Model Number F914G4), 
Fully loaded, 100% Solid State Electronics, manufactured in 
America, with, (2) Flashing/ Takedown LED Lights, (2) 
Flashing/ Alley LED Lights, Mounting Kit, Epsilon Series 
Combination Light/Siren Controller, SA315P Siren Speaker 
and Mounting Bracket.

8  $         2,055.32  $              90.00 

180 C3EUMP-LED

Code3: Basic Unmarked Patrol Package - Consist of Interior 
LED Dash Light, (2) Grille LED Lights and (2) LED Rear Deck 
Lights, 900 Series Headlight Flasher, Code3 H2 Covert Siren 
and Light Controller, C3100U Speaker with Bracket. 5 Year 
Warranty.

9  $         1,641.00  $              90.00 

181 SOEUMP – LED

SoundOff Signal Basic LED Unmarked Patrol Package - 
Consist of Interior Rearview Mirror, Grille and Rear Deck LED 
System (Minimum 2 Lights in Each Position); Headlight and tail 
light flashers; Four Corner Universal Undercover LED system; 
ETSA461HPP 100W handheld remote Combination Light 
Controller/Siren, Speaker and Bracket(s) - LED lights may be 
blue, red, amber or any combination - specify color.

9  $         2,016.46  $              90.00 

182 WEUMP – LED

Whelen: Basic All LED Unmarked Patrol Package - Consist of 
Interior Rearview Mirror, Grille and Rear Deck LED System 
(Minimum 2 Lights in Each Position) LED lights may be blue, 
red, amber or any combination – please specify color; 
Headlight Flasher; Epsilon one piece Combination Light 
Controller/Siren, Speaker and Bracket; Four Corner LED 
System, may be blue, red, amber, white or any combination – 
please specify color.

9  $         1,875.86  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

183 C3MLBP-LED

Code3 Medium Lightbar Package, 21TR Plus (Model 
21TR47MC) Manufactured in America Features Full Flood 
Takedown Torus Multicolor Light heads with Torus corner 
modules, Flashing Takedown and Alley LED Lights, 
Directional Arrow. Code3 Xcel Siren and Light Control, 
C3100U Speaker with bracket. 5 Year Warranty.

8  $         2,278.38  $              90.00 

184
C3PLBP-LED 
TIER1

Code3 Premium Tier1 Package all LED Defender Lightbar 
(ModelDF47A2) Tricore Modules, (2) LED Flashing/Takedown 
Lights, (2) LED flashing/Alley Lights, Auto Diming Photo Cell, 
Mounting Kit. Code3 Z3 Siren Light Controller, C3100U 
speaker with bracket. 5 Year Warranty.

8  $         3,570.56  $              90.00 

185 C3PLP-LED 
TIER2

Code3 Premium Tier2 Package all LED Defender Multicolor 
Lightbar (ModelDF47A2MC), Tricore Modules, (2) LED 
Flashing/Takedown Lights, capable of Front Flood Lighting, 
(2) LED flashing/Alley Lights, Auto Diming Photo Cell, 
Mounting Kit. Code3 Z3 Siren Light Controller, Banshee low 
frequency Siren, (2) C3100U Speakers with bracket. 5 Year 
Warranty.

8  $         3,570.56  $              90.00 

186 SOMLB – LED 

SoundOff Signal Medium LED Lightbar Package - SoundOff 
Signal All LED 48” EMG2000 48” Magnum LED Lightbar 10-
16v (EMG2000) w/ Take Downs & Alleys, Standard Split 
option available – Clear lenses with Amber, Blue, Red or 
White LEDs - 6 LED inboards and 12 LED corners.  Package 
also includes a SoundOff 100-watt 400 series single tone 
siren (Siren Model number ETSA481CSP)) with integrated 
lighting controls and directional arrow switch to control optional 
full or split rear arrow, and 100-watt SAE approved siren 
speaker w/vehicle specific mounting bracket (Speaker Model 
ETSS100D), please specify vehicle bracket needed.  
Lightbars are available in red, blue, amber, or any 
combination of these colors.

9  $         2,244.97  $              90.00 

187 SOPLB – LED 1 
TIER

SoundOff Signal Premium LED Lightbar Package - SoundOff 
Signal All LED 48” ENFLB-containing 16 Single Color LED 
modules CONTAINS NO EMPTY HOLES OR MISSING 
DIODES).  Lightbar is equipped with programmable flashing 
and/or steady burning LED TAKEDOWN and LED ALLEYS. 5-
year warranty is included on ENFLB.  Package also includes a 
SoundOff 100-watt 400 series single tone siren (Siren Model 
number ETSA481CSP) with integrated lighting controls and 
directional arrow switch to control rear arrow and 100-watt 
SAE approved siren speaker w/vehicle specific mounting 
bracket (Speaker Model ETSS100N), please specify vehicle 
bracket needed.

9  $         2,560.55  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

188
SOPLB – LED 2 
TIER

SoundOff Signal Premium LED Lightbar Package - SoundOff 
Signal All LED 48” ENFLB-Silver containing 16 Dual Color LED 
modules with 240 LED's (CONTAINS NO EMPTY HOLES OR 
MISSING DIODES).  Lightbar is equipped with programmable 
flashing and/or steady burning LED TAKEDOWN and LED 
ALLEYS. Bar can be ordered with any 2 colors in each 
module.  5-year warranty is included on ENFLB.  Package 
also includes a SoundOff 100-watt 400 series single tone 
siren (Siren Model number ETSA481CSP) with integrated 
lighting controls and directional arrow switch to control rear 
arrow and 100-watt SAE approved siren speaker w/vehicle 
specific mounting bracket (Speaker Model ETSS100N), please 
specify vehicle bracket needed.  Lightbars are available in 
red, blue, amber, or any combination of these colors.

9  $         2,913.95  $              90.00 

189 SOPLB – LED 3 
TIER

SoundOff Signal Premium LED Lightbar Package - SoundOff 
Signal All LED 48” ENFLB-Gold (Model ENFLB-GOLD) 
containing 16 Tri-Color LED modules with 336 LED's 
(CONTAINS NO EMPTY HOLES OR MISSING DIODES).  
Lightbar is equipped with programmable flashing and/or 
steady burning LED TAKEDOWN and LED ALLEYS. Bar can 
be ordered with any 3 colors in each module.  5-year warranty 
is included on ENFLB.  Package also includes a SoundOff 
100-watt 400 series dual tone siren (Siren Model number 
ETSA481CSP) with integrated lighting controls and directional 
arrow switch to control optional full or split rear arrow and 100-
watt SAE approved siren speaker w/vehicle specific mounting 
bracket (Speaker Model ETSS100N), please specify vehicle 
bracket needed.  Lightbars are available in red, blue, amber, 
or any combination of these colors.

9  $         3,743.63  $              90.00 

190 WMLB – LED

Whelen Medium All LED Lightbar, (Model J8FSA1) Fully 
loaded 100% Solid State Electronics, Manufactured in 
America. Includes, (2) Flashing/ Takedown LED Light (2) 
Flashing/ Alley LED Lights, Mounting Kit, Epsilon Combination 
Siren/Switch Controller, SA315P Siren Speaker and Mounting 
Bracket, SA315P Siren Speaker and Mounting Bracket.  

9  $         2,223.58  $              90.00 

191 WPLB – LED 1 
TIER

Whelen Premium All LED LFL Liberty Lightbar (Model 
S8FSA1), Fully loaded, 100% Solid State Electronics, 
manufactured in America with 15 Led Modules, Two Wire 
Controlled Traffic Advisor, (2) LED Flashing/Takedown Lights, 
(2) LED Flashing/Alley Lights, Mounting Kit, 295SLSA6 
Combination Light/Siren Controller, SA315P Siren Speaker 
and Mounting Bracket.

9  $         2,557.97  $              90.00 

192 WPLB – LED 2 
TIER

Whelen Premium All LED Dual Lightbar, (Model F8FSA1) Fully 
loaded, 100% Solid State Electronics, manufactured in 
America, includes a Two Wire Controlled Traffic Advisor, (2) 
LED Flashing/Takedown Lights, (2) LED Flashing/Alley Lights, 
Mounting Kit, 295SLSA6 Combination Light/Siren Controller, 
SA315P Siren Speaker and Mounting Bracket. 

9  $         3,007.00  $              90.00 

193 WPLB – LED 3 
TIER 

Whelen Premium All LED TRIO Lightbar, (Model IG381FSA) 
Fully loaded, 100% Solid State Electronics, manufactured in 
America, includes a Two Wire Controlled Traffic Advisor, (2) 
LED Flashing/Takedown Lights, (2) LED Flashing/Alley Lights, 
Mounting Kit, CenCom Sapphire Combination Light/Siren 
Controller, SA315P Siren Speaker and Mounting Bracket.

9  23% OFF LIST  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

194
C3PUMP-LED 
TIER1     

Code 3: Consists of Supervisor Flex (Specify Sedan or SUV 
Model) Passenger side only (3 Torus Multicolor light heads w/ 
full flood takedown capability) Manufactured in America, Rear 
Full Wingman Torus LED, Code 3 H2 Covert Siren and Light 
control, C3100U Speaker w/bracket. 5 Year Warranty.

9  $         2,814.10  $              90.00 

195 C3PUMP-LED 
TIER2

Code3: Deluxe Unmarked Patrol Package - Consist of Front 
Full Supervisor Flex (Specify Sedan or SUV model) (Multicolor 
Torus LEDs w/ full flood takedown capability) Manufactured in 
America, Rear Full Wingman Torus LED, Code3 H2 Covert 
Siren and Light Control, C3100U Speaker with Bracket. 5 
Year Warranty

9  $         3,841.82  $              90.00 

196 SOPUMP – LED

SoundOff   Signal:   Deluxe   Unmarked   Patrol Package  - 
Consist of Front and Rear Full-Width Interior LED System with 
LED TAKEDOWN lights (ENFWBF(XXXX) for front, 
ENFWBRF(XXX) for rear); Headlight and Taillight Flashers; 
Four Corner LED Universal Undercover (ELUC2S010x); 
Package also includes a SoundOff 100-watt Handheld siren 
(Siren Model number ETSA461HPP) with integrated lighting 
controls and directional arrow switch to control optional rear 
arrow; Speaker and Bracket (ETSS100N) - LED lights may be 
blue, red, amber or any combination  -  specify color.

9  $         2,808.24  $              90.00 

197 WPUMP – LED

Whelen: Deluxe Unmarked Patrol Package - Consist of Front 
and Rear Full-Width Interior LED System (Eight 3-LED Module) 
with LED Takedown Lights; Headlight Flasher; Four Corner 
LED System, Hand Held or one-piece Combination Light 
Controller/Siren; Speaker and Bracket - LED lights may be 
blue, red, amber or any combination – specify color. Also, 
available with eight 6-LED Lamps for the Front Interior 
Lightbar.

9  $         2,736.64  $              90.00 

198 SOUNDOFF SIGNAL Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

199 ENFWBF-SINGLE

SoundOff Signal – ENFWBF Single Color full Featured Interior 
Lightbar Eight 6-LED modules. with optional Two 6-LED 
Flashing Take-Downs Meets SAE specifications. Easy 
Installation to Visor Anchor Points Without Drilling Holes, 
Vehicle Specific. Please indicate vehicle make and model.

3  $            806.40  $              90.00 

200 ENFWBF-DUO

SoundOff Signal – ENFWBF DUO Color full Featured Interior 
Lightbar Eight 6-LED modules. with optional Two 6-LED 
Flashing Take-Downs Meets SAE specifications. Easy 
Installation to Visor Anchor Points Without Drilling Holes, 
Vehicle Specific. Please indicate vehicle make and model.

3  $            934.80  $              90.00 

201 SoundOff Signal – Headlight flashers, solid state 1  $            195.60  $              90.00 
202 ENT2B3x Soundoff Signal - Intersector LED undermirror Light 3  $            360.49  $              90.00 
203 ENT2B3x Soundoff Signal - Intersector DUO LED undermirror Light 3  $            381.24  $              90.00 
204 SoundOff Signal – Tail light flashers 1  $            276.00  $              90.00 
205 ETSA481CSR SoundOff Signal ETSA481CSR - deluxe siren 2  $            490.02  $              90.00 

206 ETSA482CSR
SoundOff Signal ETSA482CSR- 200 watt dual tone Console 
Mount siren with lighting and arrow controls, Rotary knob 2  $            658.02  $              90.00 

207 ETSA482RSx
SoundOff Signal ETSA482RSP- 200 watt dual tone remote 
siren with lighting and arrow controls, Push button or Rotary 
knob

2  $            658.02  $              90.00 

208 ELUC2S010x 

Soundoff Signal Corner LED Kits –  Universal undercover LED 
kit, consists of 4 corner LEDs, choice of colors, red, white, 
blue, amber or any split color combination. Please specify 
colors. Included with inline flasher, 10' of cable

3  $            459.31  $              90.00 

209 ETSS100J Speaker 100watt 1  $            202.80  $              90.00 

210 EMPSCG1SMS1X 3" mPower Single color 1  $            141.00  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

211 ENFDWS3X nForce Dual Windshield, Dual Shroud and Dual Color 1  $            306.90  $              90.00 
212 EMPS1SLE3X 3" mPower Single color 1  $            141.00  $              90.00 

213 ETSKLF200 LF Aftershock Siren Sysstem, (2) 100 Watt Speakers , (1) 200 
Watt amplifier and Universal Brackets

3  $            804.00  $              90.00 

214 ENFSWS3X nForce Single Windshield, Single Shroud Dual Color 1  $            197.17  $              90.00 

215 ELB42BCL0AC 4200 Series LED Beacon, 10-30v, SAE J845 Class 1 - 
Flat/Pipe Mount, 4"Clear Dome/ Amber LEDs

2  $            241.39  $              90.00 

216 ETBASS2000 reVerb Back-Up Alarm, SAE J994 Type C Certified, 12/24v 1  $            103.64  $              90.00 

217 ENFTCDXS1206 
nFORCE® 6 module Exterior Traffic Controller w/ Mounting 
Bracket, 12 LEDs – Dual Color combination in Amber, Blue, 
Red, White

2  $            727.20  $              90.00 

218 OTHER SOUNDOFF OPTIONS AVAILABLE - CONTACT REP

219 BROOKINGS Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

220 LP3-X BROOKING 3 LED LOW PROFILE SURFACE MOUNT 1  $            115.20  $              90.00 
221 LP6-X BROOKING 6 LED LOW PROFILE SURFACE MOUNT 1  $            135.60  $              90.00 
222 LP26-X BROOKING 12 LED LOW PROFILE SURFACE MOUNT 1  $            147.60  $              90.00 
223 ST6-X BROOKING 6 LED THIN SURFACE MOUNT 1  $            152.40  $              90.00 

224 PAL06-XX BROOKING PAIR - DUAL MODE - SINGLE OR SPLIT COLOR 1  $            190.80  $              90.00 

225 HZNS6-XX BROOKING HORIZON 6 LED MODULE BAR/BRACKET 2  $            469.20  $              90.00 
226 L05-XXXX BROOKING MICRO BAR EX 2  $            403.20  $              90.00 
227 BR-LEDBH BROOKING 8 LED BEACON 2  $            220.80  $              90.00 
228 B14-XXXX BROOKING 10 LED BEACON 2  $            261.60  $              90.00 
229 B19-XXXX BROOKING 36 LED BEACON 6  $            356.40  $              90.00 
230 FIT49-XX BROOKING 49" FIT LEGION LIGHT BAR 6  $            906.00  $              90.00 
231 FIT54-XX BROOKING 54" FIT LEGION LIGHT BAR 6  $            966.00  $              90.00 
232 EVL6-XXXX BROOKING SINGLE COLOR ECLIPSE INTERIOR BAR 6  $            726.00  $              90.00 
233 EVL12-XXXX BROOKING DUAL COLOR ECLIPSE BAR INTERIOR BAR 6  $         1,026.00  $              90.00 
234 LSBD-***** BROOKING TEMPEST 48" OR 54 FULL DUO 6  $         1,818.00  $              90.00 
235 TORRENT BAR BROOKING TORRENT 49" OR 54" FULL DUO 6  $         1,818.00  $              90.00 

236 OTHER BROOKING OPTIONS AVAILABLE -CONTACT REP

237 CODE 3 Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

238 MR6-X CODE 3 6LED UNIV. MNT.- SINGLE COLOR 1  $            147.60  $              90.00 
239 ULT6-X CODE 3 6 LED, THIN SURFACE MNT 1  $            140.40  $              90.00 
240 MICROPAK CODE 3 HIDE A BLAST,6LED,ULTRA SLIM,FM 1  $            134.40  $              90.00 
241 MICROPAK-DC CODE 3 HIDE A BLAST,6LED,LP,SM SPLIT COLOR 1  $            148.80  $              90.00 
242 CD3766**-VDL CODE 3 VISOR/DECK LIGHT,W/CHASE 1  $            212.40  $              90.00 
243 C3RNRDC-60R CODE 3 60" OUTLINER - BRACKET INCLUDED - PAIR 3  $            786.00  $              90.00 
244 3599L5 CODE 3 H2 COVERT SIREN 2  $            514.80  $              90.00 
245 C3900U CODE 3 SLIM 100 WATT SPEAKER/BRACKET 1  $            243.60  $              90.00 
246 OTHER CODE 3 OPTIONS AVAILABLE -CONTACT REP  $                    -   

247 WHELEN Labor 
Hours

 Price (part only)  Labor Cost Per 
Hour 

248 AVC11** WHELEN SINGLE AVENGER II SOLO 1  $            196.80  $              90.00 
249 AVC21** WHELEN DUAL AVENGER II SOLO 1  $            288.00  $              90.00 
250 UHF2150A WHELEN HEADLIGHT FLASHER 1  $            112.80  $              90.00 
251 PS*01FCR WHELEN STRIP LIGHT PLUS - SOLO 1  $            147.70  $              90.00 
252 PS*02FCR WHELEN STRIP LIGHT PLUS - DUO 1  $            168.82  $              90.00 
253 HHS3200 WHELEN SIREN AMP W/ HAND-HELD CONTROL 2  $            514.80  $              90.00 
254 HHS4200 WHELEN SIREN AMP W/ HAND-HELD CONTROL - WECAN 2  $            575.40  $              90.00 
255 295SLSA6 WHELEN 295SLSA6 SIREN/CONTROL CENTER 2  $            514.80  $              90.00 
256 HOWLER WHELEN LOW FREQUENCY TONE SIREN SYS./BRACKET 2  $            635.52  $              90.00 
257 SA315P WHELEN 100 WATT SPEAKER / BRACKET 1  $            243.60  $              90.00 

258 TCRHS5 WHELEN 60" TRACER - SOLO - PAIR - BRACKET INCLUDED 3  $         1,068.86  $              90.00 



SPEC 255 Interceptor Utility AWD 3.3L Gas [K8A] FSA20-VEL28.0

DUVAL FORD

259 TCRHD5 WHELEN 60" TRACER - DUO - PAIR - BRACKET INCLUDED 3  $         1,314.00  $              90.00 

260 PCC6W WHELEN PCC6W CONTROL CENTER 1  $            168.00  $              90.00 
261 MC16PA WHELEN 16" MINI CENTURY - AMBER 2  $            381.60  $              90.00 
262 MC16PF WHELEN 16" MINI CENTURY - AMBER/WHITE 2  $            416.46  $              90.00 
263 WBUA97 WHELEN 97DB BACK UP ALARM 1  $            100.80  $              90.00 
264 VTX609* WHELEN VERTEX LIGHT - 6 LED - PAIR 2  $            251.40  $              90.00 
265 L10HAP WHELEN L10 BEACON 2  $            294.00  $              90.00 
266 MCRNS* WHELEN MICRON 1  $            166.80  $              90.00 
267 MCRNT* WHELEN STUD MOUNT MICRON 1  $            166.80  $              90.00 
268 TLI* WHELEN THIN ION 1  $            175.20  $              90.00 
269 ARGES 1 WHELEN 5° Spotlight with Proclera® Silicone Optic 3  $            642.00  $              90.00 

270 ARGES 2 WHELEN ProFocus™, Select from Spot/Flood Combination 
Light

3  $            708.00  $              90.00 

271 ARGES MOUNT WHELEN ARGES MOUNT -  VEHICLE SPECIFIC 0  $              72.00  $              90.00 
272 ARGCH1 WHELEN ARGES BAIL MT CONTROL HEAD 1  $            279.60  $              90.00 
273 ARCHG2 WHELEN Control Head for Arges®, Swivel Mount 1  $            279.60  $              90.00 

274 TRANSIT LT POD Seven Light rear roof mouned Lighting assembly (specify 
color)

4  $         1,554.00  $              90.00 

275 TRANSIT RR LT 
POD

Seven Light REAR roof mouned Lighting assembly (specify 
color)

4  $         1,554.00  $              90.00 

276 WARRANTY  PRICE MSRP

277 CB575 Extended Service Plan Base Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 75000 Mile.  
Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 2022

O 2,040.00$                   

278 CB5100 Extended Service Plan Base Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 100000 Mile.  
Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 2022

O 2,615.00$                   

279 CE575 Extended Service Plan Extra Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 75000 Mile.  
Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 2022

O 2,240.00$                   

280 CE5100 Extended Service Plan Extra Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 100000 Mile.  
Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 2022

O 3,020.00$                   

281 CP575
Extended Service Plan Premium Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 75000 
Mile.  Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 
2022

O 2,935.00$                   

282 CP5100
Extended Service Plan Premium Care, Zero Deductible. Five Year, 100000 
Mile.  Call Dealer for plan specifics and optional Terms. Price Guide Jan 
2022

O 3,775.00$                   

283 FINAL DELIVERY  PRICE 

284 OZN
Out of Zone purchase and Delivery.  Does not include unique shipping 
circumstances when final product demands shipping outside the state of 
Florida. Note: Emmissions codes for specific region.

 $                       446.00 

285 TTO

Tag and Title processing and handling fee.  Tags are processed at the local 
tag office and physically picked up for client and affixed to vehicle prior to 
deliver. Cost includes electronic administrative fee,  manual processing 
courier, and Fedex related expense.

 $                         48.00 

286 TMP 30 Day Florida Temporary Tag. Requires (TTO) Tag/Title Option  $                            7.00 

287 TX
Transfer Tag Charge: (Florida only)  Please send scan of agency 
registration with tag ID clearly indicated. Requires (TTO) Tag/Title Option, 
includes (TMP)

 $                         90.00 

288 TAG New Tag Charge (Florida only) Requires (TTO) Tag/Title option. Specify 
City, State, or Sheriffs Tag. Includes (TMP)

 $                       125.00 



 

 

BID AWARD 

 
CONTRACT 

FSA20‐VEL28.0 
Pursuit, Administrative, and Other Vehicles 

Contract Term: 
October 1, 2020– September 30, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Coordinated By 

The 
Florida Sheriffs Association 

& 
Florida Association of Counties 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: October 1, 2020 
 
 
To: All Perspective Participants  
 
From: Steve Casey, Executive Director 
 Craig Chown, CPP Manager 

  
 
Re:  Contract Number FSA20‐VEL28.0 Pursuit, Administrative and Other Vehicles 
 

We are pleased to announce that the Florida Sheriffs Association has successfully completed its 28th 
cooperative competitive bid for vehicles. This contract is in effect beginning October 1, 2020 through 
September 30, 2022. 

This year’s bid award included 339 specifications and makes and models. It offers police rated pursuit, 
special service, administrative, hybrid vehicles, electric vehicles, pick‐up trucks, vans, mobility transport, and 
police motorcycles. 

The competitive process for this award began in April 2020, when stakeholders were surveyed regarding 
procurement needs. Specifications were developed based on prior year activity and new additions were 
added based on survey results and the Fleet Advisory Committee’s review of products. 

An advertisement of the Invitation to Bid was placed within the FSA website and Florida Administrative 
Weekly on April 22, 2020.  On June 2, 2020, a direct notification was sent to 158 prospective bidders to register 
for qualification to participate in the bid process. From this ITB, 58 bidders responded to the pre‐bid meeting 
registration or request for qualified waiver for FSA approval. Of these respondents, 48 submitted bids  a nd 
37 qualified, responsive bidders were awarded after a review by the FSA and the FSA Fleet Advisory 
Committee. 

The Florida Sheriffs Association Cooperative Purchasing Program has followed the Contract Terms and 
Conditions to procure this contract. 

Contract prices are extended and guaranteed to any local government or political subdivision of the 
state, public educational institutions, other public agencies or authorities with the State of Florida, and 
other entities approved by the manufacturer to participate in this contract. 

Out of state sales are permitted under this contract. All purchasers are bound by their local governing 
purchasing ordinances, rules and regulations. All awarded vendors are governed by their manufacturer 
agreements and the Contract Terms and Conditions. 
 

 
 



List of Awarded Vendors in Alphabetical Order for FSA20‐VEL28.0 Pursuit, Administrative and Other Vehicles. 
 
 
1.   Alan Jay Chevrolet Cadillac, Inc. d/b/a Alan Jay Chevrolet Buick GMC Cadillac 
2.   Alan Jay Enterprises of Wauchula, Inc d/b/a Alan Jay Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Wauchula 
3.   Alan Jay Ford Lincoln Mercury, Inc 
4.   Alan Jay KIA, Inc. 
5.   Alan Jay Nissan, Inc. 
6.   Alan Jay Toyota 
7    Alligator Alley Harley Davidson 
8.   Asbury Automotive Group DBA: Courtesy Chrysler, Jeep Dodge 
9.   Asbury Jax Ford, LLC DBA: Coggin Ford 
10. Asbury Automotive Group DBA: Coggin DeLand Honda 
11. Asbury Automotive Group DBA: Courtesy KIA of Brandon 
12. Auto Nation Chevrolet Pembroke Pines 
13. Bartow Ford Company 
14. Beck Chevrolet Buick GMC LLC 
15. Beck Chrysler Dodge Jeep 
16. Beck Ford Lincoln 
17. Bozard Ford 
18. Coggin Buick GMC 
19. Coggin Chevrolet LLC DBA: Coggin Chevrolet 
20. Coggin DeLand Hyundai 
21. Coggin Cars LLC DBA: Coggin Toyota 
22. Duval Chevrolet 
23. Duval Ford LLC 
24. FR Conversions Inc. 
25. Garber Chevrolet Buick GMC Inc.  
26. Garber Chrysler Dodge Jeep RAM 
27. Garber Ford Inc. 
28. Jeffrey-Allen Inc. 
29. Palmetto Ford Truck Sales Inc. 
30. Rossmeyer Daytona Motorcycles Inc 
31. Seminole Toyota 
32. Stingray Chevrolet 
33. Tampa Truck Center 
34. Terry Taylor DeLand Nissan Inc. 
35. Tesla Inc 
36. Vatland CDJR, LLC 
37. Weston Nissan 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

	

	

	

	
 
Contract: FSA20-VEL28.0 – Pursuit,  

Administrative and Other Vehicles 
Contract: FSA20-VEH18.0 – Heavy Trucks  

 Contract: FSA20-EQU18.0 – Heavy Equipment  
(Items formerly included under “VEH” contract.) 

 
 

									FSA	Cooperative	Purchasing	Program	
 

				Contract	Terms	and	Conditions 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	1	
 

  

Table	of	Contents	
 
1.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS ............................................................................................................. 5 

1.01 BID CORRESPONDENCE ................................................................................................ 5 

1.02 PURPOSE ...................................................................................................................... 6 

1.03 TERM OF CONTRACT .................................................................................................... 6 

1.04 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES .............................................................................................. 6 

1.05 SHERIFF AS COUNTY CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER ......................................................... 6 

1.06 FUNDING ...................................................................................................................... 7 

1.07  CURRENCY .................................................................................................................... 7 

1.08 GENERAL DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................. 7 

1.09 ELIGIBLE PURCHASERS OF CONTRACT ......................................................................... 8 

1.10 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................................................................ 9 

1.11 PATENTS & ROYALTIES ................................................................................................. 9 

1.12 FEDERAL AND STATE STANDARDS ............................................................................... 9 

1.13 UNDERWRITERS’ LABORATORIES ............................................................................... 10 

1.14 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT .......................................................................... 10 

1.15 REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION .............................................................................. 10 

1.16 MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE) ................................................................... 10 

1.17 ANTI-DISCRIMINATION .............................................................................................. 10 

1.18 BEST COMMERCIAL PRACTICES .................................................................................. 10 

1.19 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES (PEC) ..................................................................................... 10 

1.20 TAX EXEMPTION ......................................................................................................... 11 

1.21  TAXES ......................................................................................................................... 11 

1.22 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT ............................................... 11 

1.23 COMMUNICATIONS ................................................................................................... 11 

1.24 CLARIFICATION AND ADDENDA ................................................................................. 11 

1.25 SIGNED BID CONSIDERED AN OFFER .......................................................................... 12 

1.26 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT ..................................................................................... 12 

1.27 TERMINATION OF PRODUCT LINE .............................................................................. 13 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	2	
 

1.28  METHOD OF AWARD .................................................................................................. 13 

1.29 DEMONSTRATION OF COMPETENCY ......................................................................... 13 

1.30 VENDOR ABILITY TO PERFORM .................................................................................. 14 

1.31 FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ....................................................................................... 14 

1.32 QUALITY AND SAFETY ................................................................................................ 14 

1.33 NONCONFORMANCE ................................................................................................. 15 

1.34 GRATUITIES ................................................................................................................ 15 

1.35 TIE BIDS ...................................................................................................................... 15 

1.36 RIGHT TO AUDIT ......................................................................................................... 15 

1.37 LIABILITY, INSURANCE, LICENSES AND PERMITS ........................................................ 16 

1.38 BID BONDS, PERFORMANCE BONDS, CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ......................... 16 

1.39 ELIMINATION FROM CONSIDERATION ...................................................................... 17 

1.40 COLLUSION ................................................................................................................. 17 

1.41 DEFAULT ..................................................................................................................... 17 

1.42 PROTESTS AND ARBITRATION .................................................................................... 18 

1.43 NONPERFORMANCE .................................................................................................. 19 

1.44 SEVERABILITY ............................................................................................................. 20 

1.45 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE ......................................................................................... 20 

1.46 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE ............................................................................... 20 

1.47 CONTRACT ADVERTISMENT AND USE OF FSA LOGO ................................................. 20 

2.0   BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS ......................................................................................................... 22 

2.01 BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS ........................................................................................... 22 

2.02 LICENSING/FACILITIES ................................................................................................ 22 

2.03 INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION ......................................................................... 22 

2.04 SPECIFICATIONS ......................................................................................................... 25 

2.05  FIXED PRICES .............................................................................................................. 25 

2.06  DISCOUNTS ................................................................................................................ 25 

2.07 SEALED BIDS ............................................................................................................... 25 

2.08 EXCEPTIONS, OMISSION AND ERRORS ....................................................................... 25 

2.09 MISTAKES ................................................................................................................... 26 

2.10 EQUIVALENTS ............................................................................................................. 26 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	3	
 

2.11 MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING ................................................................................ 26 

2.12  QUALIFICATION .......................................................................................................... 27 

2.13 PRICES QUOTED ......................................................................................................... 27 

2.14 OPTION PRICING ........................................................................................................ 28 

2.15 EMERGENCY LIGHTS AND SIRENS .............................................................................. 29 

2.16 SUBMITTAL OF BID ..................................................................................................... 30 

2.17 ZONE BIDDING ........................................................................................................... 31 

2.18 EXECUTION OF BID ..................................................................................................... 32 

2.19 MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWALS OF BIDS ............................................................. 32 

2.20 LATE BIDS ................................................................................................................... 32 

2.21 BID OPENING .............................................................................................................. 32 

2.22 DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIVENESS ..................................................................... 32 

2.23 RESPONSIBLE BIDDER CRITERIA ................................................................................. 32 

2.24 BASIS FOR AWARD ..................................................................................................... 33 

2.25  FIRM BID .................................................................................................................... 33 

2.26 BID TABULATIONS ...................................................................................................... 34 

2.27 MINOR IRREGULARITIES/RIGHT TO REJECT ............................................................... 34 

2.28 CONE OF SILENCE ....................................................................................................... 34 

3.0   CONTRACT CONDITIONS ...................................................................................................... 35 

3.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................... 35 

3.02  STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY ...................................................................................... 35 

3.03  VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION ............................................................................ 35 

3.04 OPTION TO RENEW & PRICE ADJUSTMENT ............................................................... 35 

3.05 ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS ...................................................................................... 36 

3.06 EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT .......................................................................................... 36 

3.07    CONDITIONS ............................................................................................................... 36 

3.08 PRODUCTION CUTOFF ............................................................................................... 37 

3.09 FACILITIES ................................................................................................................... 37 

3.10 SUBSTITUTIONS .......................................................................................................... 37 

3.11 POLICE RATED VEHICLES & MOTORCYCLES ............................................................... 37 

3.12 SPECIAL SERVICE VEHICLES ........................................................................................ 38 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	4	
 

3.13 CAB AND CHASSIS PURCHASES .................................................................................. 38 

3.14 FACTORY INSTALLED .................................................................................................. 38 

3.15 VENDOR INSTALLED OPTIONS .................................................................................... 39 

3.16 NON-SCHEDULED OPTIONS ....................................................................................... 39 

3.17  FORCE MAJEURE ........................................................................................................ 39 

3.18 DELIVERY TIME ........................................................................................................... 39 

3.19 ORDER ........................................................................................................................ 40 

3.20  VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT DELIVERY ......................................................................... 41 

3.21 INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE ................................................................................. 42 

3.22 REGISTRATION, TAG AND TITLE ................................................................................. 43 

3.23 INVOICING AND PAYMENTS ....................................................................................... 43 

3.24 WARRANTY REPAIRS AND SERVICE ............................................................................ 43 

3.25 INADEQUATE SERVICE ................................................................................................ 43 

3.26 REPORTING: PURCHASE ORDERS & QUARTERLY REPORTS ........................................ 44 

3.27 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE ................................................................................................. 45 

3.28 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES .............................................................................................. 46 

Appendix A ............................................................................................................................... 48 

Appendix B ............................................................................................................................... 49 

Appendix C ............................................................................................................................... 50 

Appendix D ............................................................................................................................... 51 

Appendix E ............................................................................................................................... 52 

 
 
 
 

	
 	



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	5	
 

1.0	GENERAL	CONDITIONS	
	
1.01	 BID	CORRESPONDENCE	

 
All correspondence regarding this bid should be directed to the Florida Sheriffs Association “FSA”, using the 
information shown above. Please be sure to reference the bid number and your contact information. 
 
The contacts for this bid are: 
 
 Ed Lanier, FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program Coordinator  

E-mail: elanier@flsheriffs.org 
  Phone: 850-877-2165, ext. 5811    

Fax: 850-878-5115 
 
Craig Chown, FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program Manager 
E-mail: cchown@flsheriffs.org 
Phone: 850-877-2165, ext. 5833    
Fax: 850-878-5115 

  
Communication for this Invitation to Bid should be identified by contract number and title and directed to: 
 

Florida Sheriffs Association 
Attn: Cooperative Purchasing Program Coordinator 
2617 Mahan Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 
E-mail: CPP@flsheriffs.org  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	6	
 

1.02	 PURPOSE	
   
  The Florida Sheriffs Association invites interested Bidders, including Motor Vehicle Manufacturers and 

Dealers/Certified Representatives to submit responses in accordance with these solicitation documents.   
The FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program will conduct the solicitation process and administer the resulting 
contract.  The purpose of this bid is to establish contracts with manufacturers and manufacturer’s 
authorized vendors for contract terms specified under Section 1.03 for the purchase of vehicles and 
equipment on a “no trade-in basis.”  
 

1.03	 TERM	OF	CONTRACT	
 

The term for Contracts FSA20-VEL28.0 Pursuit, Administrative and Other Vehicles and FSA20-VEH18.01 
Heavy Vehicles shall remain in effect for two (2) years from date of contract execution by the FSA, and 
may be renewed by mutual agreement, at the sole option and discretion of the FSA, pursuant to the 
terms of Section 3.04. The initial term of these contracts begins October 1, 2020 and ends September 30, 
2022.  

 
The term for Contract FSA20-EQU18.0 Heavy Equipment shall remain in effect for three (3) years from date 
of contract execution by the FSA, and may be renewed by mutual agreement, at the sole option and 
discretion of the FSA, pursuant to the terms of Section 3.04. The initial term of this contract begins October 
1, 2020 and ends September 30, 2023.  
 
Contract extensions will only be executed when the FSA determines, based on then-existing conditions, 
that it is in the best interest of the FSA and the purchasers to do so. 
 

  

1.04	 ESTIMATED	QUANTITIES		
 

In FY 2018-19, eligible users purchased approximately  8,856_vehicles and equipment from this contract. 
These estimated figures are given as a guideline for bidders preparing bids. 
 
Quantities provided do not guarantee or imply future contract sales. Neither the FSA nor any eligible user 
is obligated to place any order for a given amount subsequent to the award of this bid solicitation.  

 

1.05	 SHERIFF	AS	COUNTY	CONSTITUTIONAL	OFFICER		
 

The Offices of the Sheriff in the State of Florida are constitutional offices of the State of Florida. Each has 
the authority either individually or collectively to execute contracts for all goods and services for the proper 
conduct of that office. Section 30.53, Florida Statutes, exempts the sheriffs’ offices from the provisions of 
the Florida Statute that would otherwise require sealed and competitive bidding procedures.  
 
It is our practice to give consideration to the prices offered, but the Office of the Sheriff is not required by 
law to accept the lowest priced proposal and may reject any or all of the proposals without recourse. 
Bidders are solely responsible for their own bid preparation costs and nothing in this solicitation in any way 
obligates the participating sheriffs’ offices for any payment for any activity or costs incurred by any bidder 
in responding to this solicitation. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	7	
 

1.06	 FUNDING	
 

In the case of certain purchasers, including state agencies, funds expended for the purposes of the contract 
must be appropriated by the Florida Legislature, the individual participating agency or the agency’s 
appropriating authority for each fiscal year included within the contract period.  For such agencies, their 
performances and obligations to pay for products or services under any resulting contract, or purchase 
order, are contingent upon such an annual appropriation by the Legislature, individual agency or by the 
appropriating authority. Therefore, any contract or purchase order with such an agency shall automatically 
terminate without penalty or termination costs in the event of non-appropriation. 
 

1.07		 CURRENCY		
 
All transaction amounts, bids, quotes, provisions, payments or any part of this contract relating to currency 
are to be made in United States Dollar.  

 

1.08	 GENERAL	DEFINITIONS	
 

The terms used in this contract are defined as the following: 
 

 
a. Bidder: A proposer or enterprise that submits a formal offer to the FSA Cooperative Purchasing 

Program Administrator in accordance with the Contract Terms and Conditions. 
 

b. Bid System: The online forum used for the submission of electronic bids and review of bid results 
for the specifications connected to this Invitation to Bid. VendorLink is the software used for this 
bid. 
 

c. Dealer: A manufacture’s certified representative authorized by the manufacturer to market, sell, 
provide, and service the vehicles/equipment for the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program. Dealers 
may be vendor-owned and controlled, in whole or in part, or independently owned and controlled. 
 

d. Florida Sheriffs Association Cooperative Purchasing Program (FSA): The entity that administeres 
the Invitation to bid and contract administration functions for this contract.  
 

e. End User: A term used to distinguish the person who ultimately uses or is intended to use a product 
or for whom a product is designed for use. 
 

f. Factory:  Refers to the manufacturer produced products. 
 

g. Fleet Advisory Committee (FAC): An employee of a sheriff’s office or other local governmental 
agency, or any other person who FSA identifies as subject matter expert who assists with the 
development of bid specifications and evaluation of bid responses.  The Fleet Advisory Committee 
makes recommendations to the FSA and is not responsible for final awards. 

 
h. Invitation to Bid:  A competitive solicitation and award process established through the issuance 

of an invitation to vendors, dealers and manufacturers to submit a price offer on a specific product 
to be provided.  This term shall include the bid specifications available to bidders on the bid system 
and references to solicitation documents. The term shall not include request for proposals, request 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	8	
 

for quotes, request for letters of interest, or the solicitation of purchase orders based on oral or 
written quotations. 
 

i. Manufacturer:  The original producer or provider of vehicles or equipment offered on this contract. 
 

j. Manufacturer’s Suggested Retail Price (MSRP):  Manufacturer’s Suggested Retail Price (MSRP) 
represents the Manufacturer’s recommended retail selling price, list price, published list price, or 
other usual and customary price that would be paid by the purchaser.  The following are acceptable 
sources of current MSRPs and MSRP Lists for use in submission of the bid solicitation and the 
resulting contract: 

1. Manufacturer’s Computer Printouts:  Ford - “Dora”; General Motors - “GM Autobook”; or 
approved equivalent 

2. Chrome Systems, Inc.’s PC Carbook (PC Carbook Plus and PC Carbook Fleet Edition) 
3. Manufacturer’s Annual U.S. Price Book 
4. Manufacturer’s official website 

 
k. Non-Scheduled Options: Any optional new or unused component, feature or configuration that is 

not included or listed in the base vehicle specifications or options.  
 

l. Production Cutoff:  A date used by manufacturers to notify dealers that the factory has reached 
maximum capacity for orders or are discontinuing the production of a vehicle or equipment.  
Vehicle manufacturers use this term when referring to any given model year for production.   
 

m. Published List Price: A standard “quantity of one” price currently available to government and 
educational purchasers, excluding cooperative or volume discounts. 

 
n. Purchaser:  A Purchaser is an entity that seeks to obtain vehicles or equipment off this contract by 

meeting the eligible user criteria or with vendor approval.  
 

o. Purchase Order:  A request for order from a purchaser to an awarded vendor for an item that has 
been awarded on this Contract.  Purchaser orders placed using this contract formalize the terms 
and conditions of this contract under which a vendor furnishes vehicles or equipment to a 
purchaser. 
 

p. Third Party Supplier: Businesses external to a bidder or vendor that provide products and services 
which contribute to the overall finished vehicle or equipment. Third Party Suppliers are contractors 
under the direction and responsibility of the bidder or vendor.  
 

q. Vendor: The bidder that has been awarded and agrees to provide vehicles or equipment that meet 
the requirements and base specifications.  The vendor must agree to the contract terms and 
conditions of the contract before being awarded to the contract. 
 

r. Vendor Installed: A product or service provided by the vendor or other third party; not the factory. 
 
 

1.09	 ELIGIBLE	PURCHASERS	OF	CONTRACT		
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	9	
 

Awarded bids, or contract prices, will be extended and guaranteed to the Florida Sheriffs Association, any 
unit of local government, political subdivision or agency of the State of Florida.  This includes, but is not 
limited to counties, municipalities, sheriffs’ offices, clerks, property appraisers, tax collectors, supervisors 
of elections, school boards or districts, water management districts, police and fire departments, 
emergency response units, state universities and colleges, or other state, local or regional government 
entities within the State of Florida.  
 
All purchasers are bound by state law, local ordinances, rules and regulations for purchases made under 
this contract. Participating agencies cannot guarantee any order other than those ordered by the individual 
agency. 
 
In addition, bids can be extended and guaranteed to other entities approved by manufacturers to 
participate in this contract, which can include out of state sales. Vendors that wish to extend contract 
pricing to entities other than those defined here are governed by their manufacturer’s agreement, and must 
agree to the terms and conditions of this contract.  

   

1.10	 LEGAL	REQUIREMENTS	
 
Federal, State, county laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner affect the items covered 
herein apply. Lack of knowledge by the bidder of applicable legal requirements will in no way be a cause for 
relief from responsibility. 

 

1.11	 PATENTS	&	ROYALTIES	
 
The bidder, without exception, shall indemnify and hold harmless the FSA and its employees from liability 
of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses for, or on account of, any copyrighted, patented, or 
unpatented invention, process, or article manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, 
including its use by the FSA or a purchaser.  
 
If the bidder uses any design, device or materials covered by letters, patent, or copyright, it is mutually 
understood and agreed, without exception, that the bid prices shall include all royalties or costs in any way 
arising, directly or indirectly, from the use of such design, device, or materials in any way involved in the 
work. 

 

1.12	 FEDERAL	AND	STATE	STANDARDS	
 

It is the intent of FSA that all specifications herein are in full and complete compliance with all federal and 
State of Florida laws, requirements, and regulations applicable to the type and class of commodities and 
contractual services being provided.  
 
In addition, any applicable federal or State legal or regulatory requirements that become effective during 
the term of the Contract, regarding the commodities and contractual services’ specifications, safety, and 
environmental requirements shall immediately become a part of the Contract. The vendor shall meet or 
exceed any such requirements of the laws and regulations. If an apparent conflict exists, the vendor shall 
contact the FSA immediately. 
 
The bidder shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and inspection fees for this bid submission and 
contract.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	10	
 

 

1.13	 UNDERWRITERS’	LABORATORIES	
 
Unless otherwise stipulated in the bid, all manufactured items and fabricated assemblies shall be 
Underwriters’ Laboratories, or U.L., listed or re-examination listing where such has been established by U.L. 
for the item(s) offered and furnished. 

 

1.14	 AMERICANS	WITH	DISABILITIES	ACT	
 
To request this material in accessible format, sign language interpreters, information on access for persons 
with disabilities, or any accommodation to review any document or participate in any FSA sponsored 
proceeding, please contact FSA Human Resources at (850) 877-2165 five business days in advance to initiate 
your request. TTY users may also call the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

 

1.15	 REASONABLE	ACCOMMODATION	
 
In accordance with the Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring an 
accommodation at the Bid opening because of a disability must contact the FSA Human Resources at (850) 
877-2165. 

 

1.16	 MINORITY	BUSINESS	ENTERPRISE	(MBE)	
 

The Florida Sheriffs Association policy is that Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) shall have the opportunity 
to participate in this invitation to bid. Such process would be for supplying goods and services to FSA and 
Purchasers. 

 

1.17	 ANTI-DISCRIMINATION	
 
The bidder certifies that he/she is in compliance as applicable by federal or state law with the non-
discrimination clause contained in Section 202, Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 
11375, relative to equal employment opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, religion, sex 
or national origin. 
 

1.18	 BEST	COMMERCIAL	PRACTICES	
 

The apparent silence of this specification and any supplemental specifications as to any details or the 
omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the 
best commercial practices, size, and design are to be used.  
 
All workmanship is to be first quality. All interpretations of this specification shall be upon the basis of this 
statement. 

 

1.19	 PUBLIC	ENTITY	CRIMES	(PEC)	
 
In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who 
has been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of Management 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	11	
 

Services following a conviction for public entity crimes may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any 
goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the 
construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to 
public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a Vendor, supplier, Sub-Vendor, or consultant under 
a contract with a public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the 
threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 
months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 

1.20	 TAX	EXEMPTION	
 

All State and Federal tax exemptions applicable to the units of local government of the State of Florida will 
apply, and appropriate certifications furnished.  Purchasers shall comply with all federal, state and local tax 
requirements. 
 
The Florida Sheriffs Association is a 501(c)3 organization and is exempt from all Federal Excise and State 
Taxes. State Sales Tax and Use Certificate Number is 85-8012646919C-3. 
 

1.21		 TAXES	
 

Customers making a purchase pursuant to the awarded bid are generally exempt from Federal Excise and 
State Sales Tax.  It is the responsibility of the vendor to verify that the purchaser is exempt by obtaining the 
purchaser’s Federal Excise and State Taxes and Use Certificate Number. 
 

1.22	 ORDER	OF	PRECEDENCE	IN	THE	EVENT	OF	CONFLICT	
 
In the event of conflict, the conflict may be resolved in the following order of priority (highest to lowest): 

1. Addenda to Contract Terms and Conditions, if issued 
2. Contract Conditions 
3. Addenda to Bid Specifications, if issued 
4. Bid Specifications 
5. Bidder Instructions 
6. General Conditions 

 

1.23	 COMMUNICATIONS	
 
Communications between a proposer, bidder, lobbyist or consultant and FSA are limited to matters of 
process or procedure and shall be made in writing to the contact persons identified in Section 1.01 of this 
procurement.  
 
Bidders should not rely on representations, statements, or explanations other than those made in this Bid 
or in any written addendum to this Bid, and no oral representations, statements, or explanations shall be 
deemed to bind the FSA or eligible users. 
 

1.24	 CLARIFICATION	AND	ADDENDA	
 
Any questions or clarifications concerning the Invitation to Bid shall be submitted to FSA by e-mail to 
CPP@flsheriffs.org  with the bid title and number referenced on all correspondence. Final questions must 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	12	
 

be received by the date for Request for Clarification stated on the Bid Calendar. Questions and answers will 
be posted to the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program website on the date indicated on the Bid Calendar.  

 
Interpretation of the specifications or any solicitation documents will not be made to the bidder verbally, 
and if any verbal clarifications are provided they are without legal effect. 
 
Questions received after the cone of silence date listed on the bid calendar will not be addressed.  The FSA 
reserves the right to address technical questions. 
 
The FSA shall issue a Formal Addendum if substantial changes which impact the submission of bids are 
required. Any such addenda shall be binding on the bidder and shall become a part of the solicitation 
document. In the event of conflict with the original specifications, addenda shall govern to the extent 
specified. Subsequent Addenda shall govern over prior Addenda only to the extent specified.  
 
FSA will make every attempt to e-mail updates to registered bidders. However, posting to the FSA website 
or the bid system constitutes proper notice of addenda. 
 
The bidder shall be required to acknowledge receipt of the Formal Addendum by signing in the space 
provided. Failure to acknowledge Addendum shall deem the bid non-responsive; provided, however, that 
pursuant to section 2.27, the FSA may waive this requirement in its best interest. The FSA will not be 
responsible for any explanation or interpretation made verbally or in writing except those made through 
the posting of a Formal Addendum. 
 
The bid submission constitutes acknowledgment of addenda to the specifications. Bids that fail to account 
for the specification addenda shall be determined to be nonresponsive; however, that pursuant to section 
2.27, the FSA may waive this requirement in its best interest. 
 
After the start of the contract term, FSA will notify all vendors of any addenda and will require 
acknowledgement of the new terms and conditions. If the vendor does not agree to the new terms and 
conditions, the vendor’s award can be removed or replaced by another vendor or qualified responsive 
bidder. 

 

1.25	 SIGNED	BID	CONSIDERED	AN	OFFER	
 
The signed Bid shall be considered an offer on the part of the bidder, which offer shall be deemed accepted 
upon approval by the FSA and in case of default on the part of successful bidder, after such acceptance, the 
FSA may procure the items or services from other sources.  The bid submission must be signed by an 
authorized representative. 
 
An electronic signature may be used and shall have the same force and effect as a written signature.  

 

1.26	 ASSIGNMENT	OF	CONTRACT	
 
No right or interest in this Contract may be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise disposed 
of, without prior written consent of the FSA. 
 
If the original vendor sells or transfers all assets or the entire portion of the assets used to perform this 
Contract, a successor-in-interest must perform all obligations under this Contract. FSA reserves the right to 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	13	
 

reject the acquiring entity as vendor. A change of name agreement will not change the contractual 
obligations of the vendor.  
 

1.27	 TERMINATION	OF	PRODUCT	LINE	
 
If a vendor terminates a product line (manufacturer or brand), the vendor is required to notify the FSA 
within 10 business days of the decision not to retain the product line. 
 
In the event a manufacturer reassigns the product line to an alternate vendor, the manufacturer and the 
vendor are required to immediately notify the FSA in writing of the change within 10 business days 
confirming the reassignment.  If the vendor is not already an approved FSA vendor, the vendor is required 
to apply to the FSA to become an approved vendor prior to conducting any qualified sales.  The vendor and 
the manufacturer are required to honor the contract pricing and all of the applicable terms and conditions 
throughout the remaining term of the contract. 
 

1.28		 METHOD	OF	AWARD	
 
The award is made to responsive and responsible bidders.  FSA uses its discretion in determining if bids 
meet the requirements of this solicitation.   
 
The FSA reserves the right to make multiple awards within a specification, if deemed in the best interest of 
the FSA and the purchasers.   
 
Awards will be posted on the FSA website according to the date posted in the bid calendar. 
 

1.29	 DEMONSTRATION	OF	COMPETENCY	
 
Bidders must be able to demonstrate a good record of performance for a reasonable period of time, and 
have sufficient financial support, equipment and organization to ensure they can satisfactorily execute the 
services if awarded a contract under the terms and conditions herein stated. 
 
The terms "equipment” and “organization" as used herein shall be construed to mean a fully equipped and 
well established company in line with the best business practices in the industry and as determined by the 
FSA. 

 
The FSA may consider any evidence available regarding the financial, technical and other qualifications and 
abilities of a Bidder, including past performance with the FSA in making the award.  
 
The FSA may require bidders to show proof that they have been designated as authorized representatives 
of a manufacturer or supplier which is the actual source of supply. In these instances, the FSA may also 
require information from the source of supply regarding the quality, packaging and characteristics of the 
products. Any conflicts between this material information provided by the source of supply and the 
information contained in the bid submission may render the bid nonresponsive. 
 
Pre-award inspection of the Bidder's facility may be made prior to the award of contract. Bids will only be 
considered from firms which are regularly engaged in the business of providing the goods or services as 
described in this Bid.  
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	14	
 

Information submitted in the bid may not be plagiarized and, except in the case of materials quoted from 
this solicitation or developed by the manufacturer, must be the original work of the individual or company 
that submits the bid for evaluation. 
 

1.30	 VENDOR	ABILITY	TO	PERFORM	
 
During the contract period, FSA may review the vendor’s record of performance to ensure that the vendor 
is providing sufficient financial support, equipment and organization.  
 
If the FSA determines that the vendor no longer possesses the financial support, equipment and 
organization in order to comply with this section, FSA has the authority to immediately terminate the 
contract awarded. 
 
By responding to this procurement the vendor warrants that, to the best of his or her knowledge, there is 
no pending or threatened action, proceeding, or investigation, or any other legal or financial condition, that 
would in any way prohibit, restrain, or diminish the vendor’s ability to satisfy the obligations of the Contract.  
The vendor warrants that neither it nor any affiliate is currently on the convicted vendor list maintained 
pursuant to section 287.133 of the Florida Statues, or on any similar list maintained by any other state or 
the federal government.  The vendor shall immediately notify the FSA and purchaser in writing if its ability 
to perform is compromised in any manner during the term of the contract.  
 

1.31	 FINANCIAL	RESPONSIBILITY	
 

Bidder affirms by the signature on the contract signature page that the bidder: 
 

• Has fully read and understands the scope, nature, and quality of work to be performed or the services 
to be rendered under this bid, and has the adequate facilities and personnel to fulfill such 
requirements; 

 
• Accepts the financial responsibility associated with this bid, and declares that he or she has the access 

to capital (in the form of liquidity or credit lines) in order to meet the financial demands of such award;   
and 

 
• Has assessed the financial responsibility required to serve the contract as bid, including such details as 

the obligations to perform all specifications bid, zones bid, and quantities that could be ordered, as 
well as timing of payment from purchasers, which can be 45 calendar days from receipt of invoice. 

 

1.32	 QUALITY	AND	SAFETY	
 
All  materials  used for  the  manufacture  or  construction  of  any  supplies,  materials  or equipment 
covered by this bid shall be new. The items bid must be new, the latest model, of the best quality, and 
highest grade workmanship that meet or exceed federal safety standards. 
 
Products requiring certification should require certification of options in cases where non-certified options 
could result in the decertification of the original product or warranty.  In all cases where options are not 
certified, the Vendor must disclose to the end user that the non-certified options are not required to be 
certified. All options must meet or exceed  federal safety standards. 

 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	15	
 

1.33	 NONCONFORMANCE		
 
Items may be tested for compliance with specifications. Items delivered that do not conform to 
specifications may be rejected and returned at the vendor's expense. Items not meeting the specifications 
and items not delivered within a reasonable period of time after expected delivery date may be purchased 
outside of the FSA contract.  
 
Any violation of these stipulations may also result in: 
 

• Vendor's name being removed from the awarded vendor list. 

• FSA and purchasers being advised not to do business with vendor. 

1.34	 GRATUITIES	
 
Proposers shall not offer any gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value to any official, employee, or 
agent of the FSA, for the purpose of influencing consideration of this bid. 

  

1.35	 TIE	BIDS	
 
FSA has the right to award multiple bidders the primary or alternate award in the event of a tie. 

In the event the FSA desires to break tie bids, and both businesses have qualifying drug-free work programs, 
the award will be made using the following criteria: 
 

• Bidder Within the State of Florida 

• Vendors performance record with purchasers  

• Coin Toss 

1.36	 RIGHT	TO	AUDIT	
 
Vendor shall establish and maintain a reasonable accounting system that enables FSA to readily identify 
Vendor’s sales.   
 
FSA and its authorized representatives shall have the right to audit and to make copies of all related records 
pertaining to this contract, including all government sales and eligible users information whether kept by 
or under the control of the vendor, including, but not limited to those kept by its employees, agents, assigns, 
successors, sub-vendors, or third party suppliers in whatever form they may be kept – written or electronic. 
Such records shall include, but not be limited to: 

• Accounting records, including paid vouchers, cancelled checks, deposit slips, ledgers, and bank 
statements; 

• Written policies and procedures; 

• Subcontract files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful bidders, bid recaps, etc.); 

• Original estimates or work sheets;  

• Contract amendments and change order files;  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	16	
 

• Insurance documents; or 

• Memoranda or correspondence. 

 
Vendor shall maintain such records during the term of this Contract and for a period of three (3) years after 
the completion of this Contract. At the vendor’s expense and upon written notice from FSA, the vendor 
shall provide such records for inspection and audit by FSA or its authorized representatives. Such records 
shall be made available to FSA during normal business hours within three business days of receipt of the 
written notice.  FSA may select the vendor’s place of business or offsite location for the audit.  The FSA may 
also request the vendor provide requested records via e-mail. 
 
Vendor shall ensure FSA has these rights with Vendor’s employees, agents, assigns, successors, and third 
party supplier and the obligations of these rights shall be explicitly included in any subcontracts or 
agreements formed between the Vendor and any Sub-Vendors to the extent that those subcontracts or 
agreements relate to fulfillment of the Vendor’s obligations to FSA. 

 
Professional fees, personnel costs and travel costs incurred by FSA under its authority to audit and not 
addressed elsewhere will be the responsibility of the FSA. However, if the audit identifies under reporting, 
overpricing or overcharges (of any nature) by the vendor to FSA or a customer in excess of three percent 
(3%) of the total contract billings, the vendor shall reimburse FSA for the total costs of the audit not to 
exceed $5,000. If the audit discovers substantive findings related to fraud, misrepresentation, or non-
performance, FSA may recoup all the costs of the audit work from the vendor. 
 
Any adjustments or payments that must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of the vendor’s 
invoices or records shall be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 60 calendar days) from 
presentation of FSA’s findings to Vendor.  
 
FSA has the right to assess damages or seek reimbursements or refunds based on audit results. 

 

1.37	 LIABILITY,	INSURANCE,	LICENSES	AND	PERMITS	
 
Where vendors are required to enter or go onto FSA or purchaser property to deliver materials or perform 
work or services as a result of a bid award, the vendor will assume the full duty, obligation and expense of 
obtaining all necessary licenses, permits and insurance and assure all work complies with all applicable 
county and municipal code requirements. The vendor shall be liable for any damages or loss to the FSA or 
purchaser occasioned by negligence of the vendor or any person the vendor has designated in the 
completion of the contract as a result of the bid. 

	
1.38	 BID	BONDS,	PERFORMANCE	BONDS,	CERTIFICATES	OF	INSURANCE	

 
Bid Bonds, when required, shall be submitted with the bid in the amount specified in Bidder Instructions.  
 
After acceptance of bid, the FSA will notify the successful bidder to submit the applicable certificates of 
insurance in the amounts specified in the Bidder Instructions and/or Insurance Checklist. 
 
Purchaser may request a performance bond from a vendor. Performance Bonds are recommended with 
pre-payment and will be at the expense of the requesting agency. Purchasers should determine the best 
practice in comparing performance bond expense against any prior discounts that may be available.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	17	
 

 

1.39	 ELIMINATION	FROM	CONSIDERATION		
 
This Invitation to Bid shall not be awarded to any person or bidder who has outstanding debts to the FSA, 
whether in relation to current or previous bid awards or for other business purposes.  
 

1.40	 COLLUSION	
 
Collusion is a non-competitive secret or sometimes illegal agreement between rival bidders that attempts 
to disrupt the contract process equilibrium. Collusion involves people or companies that would typically 
compete, but are conspiring or working together in which the outcome results in an unfair bid advantage. 
The parties may collectively choose to agree to increase or decrease its product base price in one or more 
zones to maximize awards thus denying the public a fair price. 
 
Examples of Bid Collusion: 
 

• Cover bidding: a competitor agrees to submit a non-competitive bid that is too high to be accepted 
or contains terms that are unacceptable to the buyer.  
 

• Bid suppression or withdrawal: a competitor agrees not to bid or to withdraw a bid from 
consideration.  
 

• Market sharing: a competitor agrees to submit bids only in certain geographic areas or only to 
certain public organizations.  
 

• Bid rotation: competitors agree to take turns at winning business while monitoring their market 
shares to ensure they all have a predetermined market share.  

 
Bidders or vendors who have been found to have engaged in collusion will be considered nonresponsive, 
and will be suspended or barred from bid participation. Any contract award resulting from collusive bidding 
may be terminated for default.  Further, any collusion that is detected by the FSA may be reported to 
relevant law enforcement and/or prosecutorial agencies. 
 
Bidders may submit multiple bids without conflict of collusion if the bid submitted is not from the same 
manufacturer and product line.  Dealers which share the same ownership may submit multiple bids without 
conflict of collusion if the bidders are not in the same region featuring the same manufacturer and product 
line.   

 

1.41	 DEFAULT	
 
Failure or refusal of a bidder to execute a contract upon award or withdrawal of a bid before such award is 
made, may result in forfeiture of any bid surety required that is equal to damages incurred by the FSA there 
from, or where surety is not required, failure to execute a contract as described above may be grounds for 
removing the bidder from the awarded vendor’s list. 
 
In case of default on the part of awarded bidder, the FSA may take necessary steps to otherwise procure 
the products sought, including but not limited to procuring the products or services from the next highest 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	18	
 

ranked bidder or from other sources. A defaulting bidder may be held liable for costs incurred by the FSA 
in procuring replacement products. 

  

1.42	 PROTESTS	AND	ARBITRATION	
  

Options are for informational purposes only and will not serve as a basis for protest.  
 
Any person who is adversely affected by the decision or intended decision to award shall file a “Notice of 
Protest” in writing to the FSA within three (3) business days after the posting of the Intent to Award and 
shall file a formal written protest within five (5) business days after filing the Notice of Protest. Failure to 
file both a notice of protest and a formal written protest within the above referenced timelines shall 
constitute a waiver of proceedings. 
 
The burden is on the party protesting the award of the bid to establish grounds for invalidating the award(s). 
The formal written protest must state with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. 
Failure to do so will result in a denial of protest. Formal written protest which states with particularity the 
facts and law upon which the protest is based will be reviewed by FSA legal counsel for legal soundness and 
validity, and corrective action will be taken as needed contingent upon the validity of such claims. However, 
any additional time required and cost incurred by the FSA to substantiate a protesting party’s claim(s) 
beyond the normal scope of its legal review due to the vague or inconclusive nature of the protesting party’s 
filing will be reimbursable to the FSA and deducted from the protesting party’s bond or security which must 
accompany their filing. 
 
Any bidder who files an action protesting a decision or intended decision pertaining to this contract shall 
post a bond, cashier’s check or money order payable to the Florida Sheriffs Association in the amount equal 
to ten percent of the product line being protested.  The bond, cashier’s check or money order must be filed 
at the time of filing the formal written protest or within the five (5) business day period allowed for filing 
the formal written protest.  FSA will provide the amount required within two (2) business days of the notice 
of protest received. This bond or security will be conditioned upon the payment of all costs which may be 
adjudged against the protesting party in a court of law and/or to reimburse the FSA for additional legal 
expenses incurred and required to substantiate the protesting party’s claim(s). Failure to post the bond or 
security requirement within the time allowed for filing will result in a denial of protest.  The filing of the 
protest shall not stay the implementation of the bid award by the Florida Sheriffs Association. 
 
Should the unsuccessful bidder(s) decide to appeal the decision of the FSA, they shall file a notice to FSA 
within three (3) business days of the FSA bid protest decision regarding their intent to request arbitration.  
A demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association’s (AAA) commercial panel under its 
rules and regulations must be made within ten (10) business days of the FSA bid protest decision.  Any 
person who files for an arbitration with the AAA shall post with the Florida Sheriffs Association at the time 
of filing the formal written arbitration request, a bond, cashier’s check or money order payable to the 
Florida Sheriffs Association in the amount equal to ten percent of the product line being protested. This 
amount will be the same amount as the FSA provided at the time of filing the initial protest. Failure to 
provide written notice to FSA, file a demand for arbitration with the AAA, or failure to post the required 
bond and security requirement within the specified timelines shall constitute a waiver of arbitration 
proceedings.  By responding to this procurement the bidder expressly agrees to the use of mandatory 
binding arbitration to resolve any appeals of the decision of the FSA, and any claims arising from or in any 
way relating to the procurement process, and expressly waives any and all rights that it may otherwise have 
to pursue such claims in any other forum, judicial or otherwise. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	19	
 

If the party filing for arbitration does not prevail, it shall pay all costs, legal expenses and attorney fees of 
the prevailing party incurred in connection with the arbitration.  However, if the filing party prevails, the 
parties shall share equally the fees and expenses of the arbitration and AAA and each shall bear the cost of 
their own attorney fees.  The filing for arbitration shall not stay the implementation of the bid award by the 
Florida Sheriffs Association. 

 

1.43	 NONPERFORMANCE	
 

By virtue of the bid submission, bidder acknowledges its obligation to sell vehicles and equipment in all 
zones for which it is awarded.  Failure of the bidder to comply with these requirements may result in the 
imposition of liquidated damages of up to $1,000 per vehicle/equipment, which amount the vendor agrees 
is reasonable, or probation, suspension, termination or a combination thereof from current and future bids 
at the FSA’s discretion. 
 
The vendor shall at all times during the contract term remain responsive and responsible. In determining 
vendor’s responsibility, the FSA shall consider all information or evidence that demonstrates the vendor’s 
ability or willingness to fully satisfy the requirements of the solicitation and the contract. 

 
Vendors that are not in compliance with any of the provisions of this contract can be assessed liquidated 
damages, suspended or terminated from the contract.  The FSA at its sole discretion may remove a 
noncompliant vendor from future competitive bid solicitations; or take other actions including suspension 
from the contract until compliance issues are resolved, limit current or future vendor participation by 
specifications or zones, or other actions as determined by FSA at its sole discretion.   
 
At FSA’s discretion, vendors may be required to develop corrective action plans to address contract 
compliance. Failure to abide by corrective action plans will result termination from the existing contract 
and future competitive bid solicitations at the discretion of the FSA.   
 
In situations where there is evidence that the vendor has engaged in egregious breaches of the contract 
with respect to either the FSA and/or the purchaser, the contract can be terminated and the vendor will be 
removed from future solicitations for a period of up to three (3) years, or  a permanent ban from the bid 
process at the sole discretion of FSA. 
 
Specific conditions for termination include, but are not limited to; failure to perform, refusal to accept 
orders during the contract period while manufacturer orders are still being accepted for current model year 
or the new year if the vehicle is price protected by the factory, charging amounts exceeding MSRP on factory 
or vendor installed items and packages, requiring the purchase of additional options over and above the 
base vehicle as a condition of acceptance of order, providing aftermarket options where factory options are 
available without the consent of the purchaser, any misrepresentation of optional equipment or service as 
being factory that fails to meet the definition as described in this document, and any other practice deemed 
to be inconsistent with the intent of the contract.  
 
Any vendor presented with a valid purchase order is required by this contract to accept such purchase order 
and deliver the product. Orders must be fulfilled if the vehicle or equipment is a base model or whether it 
includes options. The vendor must deliver this product if they were awarded the contract –  regardless of 
profit or loss.   
 
Failure to deliver the vehicles or equipment may result in the purchaser seeking damages for the difference 
of cost to issue the exact same order with another vendor plus any legal fees and damages that may be 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	20	
 

incurred in the process to facilitate a completed order.  Additionally, FSA may seek damages for 
nonpayment of administrative fees, to which FSA is entitled, according to Section 3.28 and any attorney’s 
fees incurred in the recovery of these damages. 
 
All terms and conditions are applicable throughout the term of the contract and not any given Year, Make 
or Model. 
 

1.44	 SEVERABILITY	
 
In the event any provision of this contract is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the unenforceability 
thereof shall not affect the remainder of the contract which shall remain in full force and effect and 
enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

  

1.45	 TERMINATION	FOR	CAUSE	
  

If through any cause within the reasonable control of the vendor, it shall fail to fulfill in a timely manner, or 
otherwise violate any of the terms of this contract, the FSA shall have the right to terminate the services 
remaining to be performed.  Written notice of the deficiencies shall be given to the vendor and unless the 
deficiencies are corrected within 10 business days, the Contract may be terminated for cause immediately.  
The right to exercise the option to terminate for cause shall be in the sole discretion of the FSA, and the 
failure to exercise such right shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of this right. 

  
In that event, the FSA shall compensate the successful bidder in accordance with the contract for all services 
performed by the bidder prior to termination, net of any costs incurred by the FSA as a consequence of the 
default. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the vendor shall not be relieved of liability to the FSA for damages sustained 
by the FSA by virtue of any breach of the contract by the vendor, and the FSA may reasonably withhold 
payments to the vendor for the purposes of off set until such time as the exact amount of damages due the 
FSA from the vendor is determined. 

 

1.46	 TERMINATION	WITHOUT	CAUSE	
 
The FSA can terminate the contract in whole or part without cause by giving written notice to the vendor 
of such termination, which shall become effective 30 calendar days following receipt by vendor of such 
notice.  
In that event, all finished or unfinished documents and other materials shall be properly delivered to the 
FSA.   
 
The vendor shall not furnish any product after it receives the notice of termination, except as necessary to 
complete the continued portion of the contract, if any.  The vendor shall not be entitled to recover any lost 
profits that the vendor expected to earn on the balanced of the Contract or cancellation charges.  
 
Any payments to the vendor shall be only to the total extent of the FSA liability for goods or services 
delivered prior to the date of notice to terminate the contract. 
 

1.47	 CONTRACT	ADVERTISMENT	AND	USE	OF	FSA	LOGO		
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	21	
 

The CPP logo is an official logo of the Florida Sheriffs Association designed to promote the program. The 
logo may be used by vendors in accordance with this policy. Use of the logo is limited to the original version 
received from the FSA.  Modifications are not permitted.  
 
Methods of use include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Electronic mediums such as websites, digital marketing campaigns, social media and e-mail; or  
• Print media such as forms, marketing campaigns, business cards, posters, banners, brochures, 

flyers and postcards. 
 
Vendors may request the logo by contacting cpp@flsheriffs.org, and should include a brief description of 
the how the vendor intends to use the logo.   
 
The official FSA sheriff's star and wreath logo may not be used without prior written permission.  

 	



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	22	
 

2.0			BIDDER	INSTRUCTIONS	
 

2.01	 BIDDER	QUALIFICATIONS	
 
In order for bids to be considered, bidders who are not currently parties to the existing contract must 
provide the following material at the time the mandatory qualifying documents are due.  FSA reserves the 
right to accept this information up and until the final award. The purpose of requesting this information is 
to demonstrate that they are qualified to satisfactorily perform as an awarded vendor. 
 
The bidder shall provide information as on the Bidder Qualifications Form:  

• Bidder company name and parent company, if applicable 
• Complete business address 
• State of incorporation 
• Length of time in business 
• Names and contact information for key personnel 
• Dun & Bradstreet Business Information Report Snapshot 
• Identify a minimum of three contracts of similar size and scope 
• Identify a minimum of three references for vehicle or equipment sales to government agencies 
• Any contracts the bidder has been disqualified from, terminated from or found in default on, to 

include the reason for disqualification, termination or default 
 

2.02	 LICENSING/FACILITIES	
 

Bidders are required to possess a Florida Motor Vehicle Dealer’s License in order to bid on any motor 
vehicle. Bidders must maintain a repair/warranty facility within the State of Florida to provide sales and 
service for the vehicles and equipment bid.   
 
If a bidder does not maintain a facility to perform warranty work or repair service within the state of Florida, 
the bidder must provide a detailed plan at the time of bid submission as to how the bidder would service 
Florida purchasers if awarded the contract. This Service Standard Plan must include: 

• Whether the warranty service provider is approved by the manufacturer; 
• Estimated quantities sold per item bid;  
• If the company plans to contract out for service a copy of the service agreement; and  
• Zone specific service plans to include: 

o Response time to initial call from purchaser,  
o Number of personnel available to service the contract,  
o Qualifications of personnel providing warranty work, and 
o Any additional information that would detail how warranty service would be provided. 

 
The sufficiency of Service Standard Plan will be evaluated by the FSA during the bid evaluation.   
 
The FSA reserves the right to periodically request additional or updated information from a bidder regarding 
the repair/warranty facility during the solicitation and the term of the contract, if awarded.  The FSA may 
also exercise discretion in examining such facility as deemed necessary. 
 

2.03	 INSURANCE	AND	INDEMNIFICATION		
   



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	23	
 

Vendor shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or third party suppliers and 
shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Florida Sheriffs Association, the participating agencies, 
and their officers, agents, and employees from suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and 
description, including legal counsels’ fees, arising from or relating to personal injury and damage to real or 
personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in part by bidder, its agents, employees, 
partners, or third party suppliers; provided, however, that the bidder shall not indemnify for that portion 
of any loss or damages resulting directly from the negligent acts or omissions of the Florida Sheriffs 
Association and participating agencies or proximately caused by intentional wrongful acts or omissions of 
the Florida Sheriffs Association and participating agencies. 
 
Vendor’s obligations under the above paragraph with respect to legal action are contingent upon the Florida 
Sheriffs Association and/or participating agencies giving the bidder (1) written notice of any action or 
threatened action, and (2) the opportunity to take over and settle or defend any such action at bidder’s 
sole expense. Vendor shall not be liable for any cost, expense or compromise incurred by the Florida Sheriffs 
Association, or participating agencies, in any legal action without bidder’s prior written consent, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. 
 
The vendor shall be responsible for the work and every part thereof, and for all materials, tools, appliances 
and property of every description, used in connection with this particular project.  
 
The vendor shall specifically and distinctly assume, and does so assume, all risks of damage or injury to 
property or persons used or employed on or in connection with the work and of all damage or injury to any 
person or property wherever located, resulting from any action or operation under the contract or in 
connection with the work. It is understood and agreed that at all times the vendor is acting as an 
independent contractor. 

 
The vendor at all times during the full duration of work under this contract, including extra work in 
connection with this project shall meet the requirements of this section.  

 
The vendor shall maintain automobile liability insurance including property damage covering all owned, 
non-owned or hired automobiles and equipment used in connection with the work. The vendor shall 
maintain comprehensive general liability insurance and general aggregate insurance in the amount and 
coverage levels specified on the Insurance Checklist.  The vendor shall maintain insurance to cover garage 
operations in the amount specified on the Insurance Checklist. 

  
No change or cancellation in insurance shall be made without 30 calendar days written notice to the FSA. 

 
All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of 
Florida and these companies must have a rating of at least B+: VI or better per Best's Key Rating Guide, 
latest edition. 
 
Copies of original signed Certificates of Insurance, evidencing such coverages and endorsements as required 
herein shall be provided no later than five business days before the contract award date. The certificate 
must state Bid Number and Title. The vendor may not begin performance under the contract until such 
Certificates have been approved by the FSA. 
 
Upon expiration of the required insurance, the vendor must submit updated certificates of insurance for as 
long a period as any work is still in progress. 

 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	24	
 

It is understood and agreed that all policies of insurance provided by the vendor are primary coverage to 
any insurance or self-insurance the FSA possesses that may apply to a loss resulting from the work 
performed in this contract. 

 
All policies issued to cover the insurance requirements herein shall provide full coverage from the first dollar 
of exposure. No deductibles will be allowed in any policies issued on this contract unless specific safeguards 
have been established to assure an adequate fund for payment of deductibles by the insured and approved 
by the FSA. 

 
The liability insurance coverage shall extend to and include the following contractual indemnity and hold 
harmless agreement: 
 

The vendor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the FSA, a 501(c)3, its officers, agents, 
and employees from all claims for bodily injuries to the public and for all damages to the property 
per the insurance requirement under the specifications including costs of investigation, all 
expenses of litigation, including reasonable legal counsel fees and the cost of appeals arising out 
of any such claims or suits because of any and all acts of omission or commission of any by the 
vendor, his agents, servants, or employees, or through the mere existence of the project under 
contract. 

 
The foregoing indemnity agreement shall apply to any and all claims and suits other than claims and suits 
arising out of the sole and exclusive negligence of the FSA, its officers, agents, and employees, as 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
The vendor will notify the insurance agent without delay of the existence of the Hold Harmless Agreement 
contained within this contract, and furnish a copy of the Hold Harmless Agreement to the insurance agent 
and carrier. 

 
The vendor will obtain and maintain contractual liability insurance in adequate limits for the sole purpose 
of protecting the FSA under the Hold Harmless Agreement from any and all claims arising out of this 
contractual operation. 
 
The vendor will secure and maintain policies of third party suppliers. All policies shall be made available to 
the FSA upon demand. Compliance by the vendor and all third party suppliers with the foregoing 
requirements as to carrying insurance and furnishing copies of the insurance policies shall not relieve the 
vendor and all third party suppliers of their liabilities and obligations under any section or provisions of this 
contract. Vendor shall be as fully responsible to the FSA for the acts and omissions of the third party 
suppliers and of persons employed by them as he is for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by 
the vendor. 
 
Insurance coverage required in this contract shall be in force throughout the contract term. The required 
Insurance Checklist summarizes the bidder’s insurance obligations, if awarded. 
 
The FSA can request and the vendor shall furnish proof of insurance within seven calendar days of receipt 
of the written request from FSA.  Should the vendor fail to provide acceptable evidence of current insurance 
during the contract term, the FSA shall have the right to consider the contract breached and justifying the 
termination thereof.   
 
If bidder does not meet the insurance requirements; the FSA may consider alternate insurance coverage.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	25	
 

 

2.04	 SPECIFICATIONS	
 

All units covered by this Contract and the specifications shall be the manufacturer’s current basic 
production model, and shall, as a minimum, be equipped with all standard factory equipment in accordance 
with the manufacturer’s latest literature unless otherwise noted in the bid document.  If awarded, bidders 
must supply a unit that either meets or exceeds all the requirements included in the applicable detailed 
specifications. 
 
The bid specifications are contained on the FSA bid system. The FSA base specifications are incorporated in 
this document by reference.   
 
All bidders will be required to provide information requested on the FSA bid system or may have their bid 
rejected. 

 
All vehicles, equipment, and options provided must be designed, constructed, and installed to be fully 
suitable for their intended use and service. 

 

2.05		 FIXED	PRICES	
 
If the bidder is awarded a contract under this Invitation to Bid, the prices quoted by the bidder at the time 
of bid submission shall remain fixed and firm during the term of this contract, unless otherwise addressed 
in a contract extension or price adjustment as provided in this Contract. 
 

2.06		 DISCOUNTS	
 

Discounts listed in heavy vehicle and heavy equipment bids shall be below Manufacturer’s Standard Retail 
Pricing (MSRP) or manufacturers published list price for any vehicle, equipment and options. 
 
The vendor has the authority to offer additional discounts based on quantity, as well as additional 
manufacturer or vendor discounts. 
 
Discount ranges are not permissible. Discounts must be a whole, positive percentage with no decimal place 
(e.g. 10%).  
 

2.07	 SEALED	BIDS	
  

For purposes of this solicitation, a sealed bid is considered a bid submitted using VendorLink. 
 

2.08	 EXCEPTIONS,	OMISSION	AND	ERRORS		
 
Any exceptions, deviations, or contingencies a bidder may have to specifications or Contract Conditions, 
Section 3.0 of this document, must be documented in bidder’s submission.  Exceptions to the specifications 
at the time of the bid submission shall reference the specification or item number and a written explanation 
for the request for exception. At FSA’s discretion, exceptions, deviations, or contingencies to the 
specifications or Contract Conditions stipulated by the bidder may result in disqualification of a bidder’s 
submission.   



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	26	
 

  
Specifications are based on the most current manufacturer literature available.  Bidders should immediately 
notify the FSA of any inaccuracies in the specifications or required submittal documents.  All notifications 
of inaccuracies must be in writing and timely submitted. 
 
Failure of a bidder to comply with these provisions will result in bidders being held responsible for all costs 
required to bring the vehicle into compliance with the contract specifications.  
 
Exceptions, deviations or contingencies to the General Conditions or Bidder Instructions, other than those 
determined to constitute minor irregularities and waived by the FSA pursuant to  Section 2.26, may be cause 
for the rejection of a bidder’s submission. 
 

2.09	 MISTAKES	
 
Bidders are expected to examine the specifications, delivery schedules, bid prices and all information 
pertaining to servicing this contract before submitting a bid. Failure to do so will be at the bidder's risk. 
 

2.10	 EQUIVALENTS				
 
Bidders must first request approval from the FSA before submitting a bid that includes an equivalent that 
will supplement an item on the base specification.  The FSA will determine whether the proposed equivalent 
is equal to or exceeds the quality, design and construction than the intended replacement item in the base 
specification. 
 
Bidders must provide the manufacturer name and model number (or product identifier) of each equivalent 
when seeking approval.  Complete, descriptive, technical literature should demonstrate that the equivalent 
conforms with specific replacement item.   
 
If the equivalent is approved, the bidder must include the supporting material in the bid submission.  Bids 
will not be considered without this information.  If a bid uses equivalents without prior approval, the bid 
will be deemed nonresponsive. 
 
Vendors offering alternate makes and manufacturers of vehicles or equipment that are not specifically 
identified in the bid, cannot publish or offer the unapproved equivalents.  Offerings of this nature will cause 
the bid to be rejected.  If such offerings are identified after the award has been granted, the offerings, 
specification or entire award can be removed by the FSA. 
 
When selling equivalents, vendors must disclose to the purchaser that an approved equivalent is being 
offered. 
 
 
 

2.11	 MANDATORY	PRE-BID	MEETING		
 
Prospective bidders are required to attend or participate in the mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting in accordance 
with FSA requirements.  The Pre-Bid Meeting is designed for vendors, the Fleet Advisory Committee and 
the FSA to meet in person to clarify questions on the terms and conditions and to confirm all base 
specifications are correct. 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	27	
 

 
Bidders have the opportunity to suggest technical modifications or corrections before the specifications are 
finalized  Questions relating to the specifications, the bid process, or award can be asked at the Pre-Bid 
Meeting. 
 
FSA reserves the right to grant attendance exceptions to the mandatory meeting if the bidder has requested 
authorization, signs a memo of understanding to agree to meet all the terms and conditions without 
exception and further waives their right to protest the bid process in its entirety or any portion thereof. 
 

	
2.12		 QUALIFICATION	

 
Prospective bidders are required to complete the qualification forms by the date listed on the Bid Calendar.  
A bidder becomes a qualified bidder if they comply with this section and Section 2.10, Mandatory Pre-Bid 
Meeting.   
 
Qualification forms include:  

• Drug-Free Workplace Form 
• Insurance Checklist 
• Manufacturer Authorization Form for each manufacturer bid for Contract FSA20-VEH18.0 and FSA 

20-EQU18.0 
• Manufacturer Authorization Forms are not required for Contract FSA20-VEL28.0 
• Emergency Vehicle Technician (EVT) Certification, if bidder is offering emergency lighting and 

sirens 
• Qualified Bidder documentation, as required in Section 2.01  

 
The qualification forms are located on the bid system.  
 

2.13	 PRICES	QUOTED	
 
Prices submitted as indicated in the sealed bid are final. Bidders acknowledge that prices quoted will be 
valid for a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date of bid opening. Each specification, make, and 
model must be priced and bid separately.  
 
Prices quoted in the bid submission should reflect the final amount the bidder can expect to receive for 
payment for the specifications bid for the duration of the contract award, unless otherwise addressed by a 
contract extension or price adjustment as provided in the contract. These prices must be inclusive of all of 
the components included in the base specification.  
 
Prices bid, including options, must include the administrative fee FSA charges to administer the contract, as 
outlined in Section 3.28. 
 
Prices must be Free On Board (FOB) destination.  
 
Once awarded, the vendor has the authority to offer discounts for prompt payment.  Cash or quantity 
discounts offered will not be a consideration in determination of award of the bid. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	28	
 

2.14	 OPTION	PRICING	

 
The bidder shall offer discount below Manufacturer’s Standard Retail Pricing (MSRP) or manufacturers 
published list price for any factory options included in the bid submission and quotes to purchasers, if 
awarded. FSA requests vendors include most frequently purchased scheduled, factory and aftermarket 
options in the bid.   
 
Options are intended to add or delete equipment or features from the base specification.  Options can 
provide an upgrade or downgrade to a manufacturer’s model, such as a slightly different engine size or 
horsepower,  and should not be made available for purchase separate from the base vehicle or equipment.  
Bidders shall NOT use options to create a vehicle or equipment that is entirely different than the FSA base 
specification or are available as another specification bid on this ITB.    
 
Bidder must use proper factory codes for all factory options. Options available through the factory may be 
bid and supplied to purchaser as “factory” options, unless otherwise requested in writing by the purchaser.  
 
The FSA has the discretion to disqualify bidders if the option pricing is excessive or if options listed are not 
available for the item bid. 
 
Option pricing will include all costs of labor associated with the option and cost of labor should not be listed 
separately within the bid.  Section 2.15 contains specific instructions and exceptions for emergency lights 
and sirens.   
 
If a bidder will offer registration and title services as a fee for service, the bidder must include the 
administrative fee as a separate option (i.e. line item) for each item bid, see Section 3.23 for additional 
details.  Government imposed fees should not be included in this option pricing.   
 
No other additional charges or fees are admissible.   
 
For purposes of this bid, Emergency Lights and Sirens will require a separate pricing sheet upload in the bid 
system.  See Section 2.14 for details on emergency lights and sirens.   
 
If options are not available as a stand alone option, the bidder must indicate in their bid submission any 
option requiring the purchase of other options, and also indicate options that are a part or dependent of 
another option.    Factory package options are allowable under this contract. Factory package options must 
be included in the options within the bid document and detailed specifically as to what components the 
package includes.  
 
When calculating the price for a manufacturer’s option requested in this bid that is not listed as an option 
in the manufacturer’s order guide (i.e. model or engine upgrade), the bidder must calculate the option price 
as the net difference between vendor cost on the representative base vehicle and the total MSRP of the 
requested option modifying the vehicle.  A bidder may bid less than this price, but at no time charge more 
than the calculation provided here. 
 
The use of options to facilitate the sale of an alternate manufacturer’s product which is outside the scope 
of the written base specification will be determined nonresponsive and the bid will be rejected in whole or 
part by the FSA. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	29	
 

Example: Bidder CANNOT include option upgrades that result in the selling of a vehicle or truck on 
one specification that is offered as a separate specification in the bid solicitation.  For example, a 
Vendor who is awarded the bid for 25,500 lb. GVWR Cab & Chassis cannot upgrade this item 
through an add option to a 30,000 lb. GVWR Cab & Chassis in order to circumvent the bid award 
winner for the 30,000 lb. GVWR Cab & Chassis. 

 
Purchasers are encouraged to negotiate option pricing with vendors.  Discounts can be provided beyond 
option prices listed in the contract. The additional discounts for each add option shall be decided by the 
vendor.  
 
Option Upload 
The bid system will accept option information from bidders through a .pdf file upload.  The option 
information required for the bid submission of the options under each bid specification number include:  

• Bid Item number (FSA item specification number)  
• Order code (Manufacturer order code) 
• Description 
• Price 

 
The options will correspond to the specification or item number.  Multiple options may be listed for each 
each specification or item number bid.  Therefore, bidders that do not indicate the correct item number 
with the option information bid will not have options displayed for the item bid.  If option pricing is not 
uploaded correctly, FSA may require bidders to correct the formatting of the options, but pricing may not 
be modified.  Failure of the bidder to make corrections may cause the bid to be rejected.  
 
If the bidder wishes to offer credit to the purchaser for an option that is standard on the FSA base 
specification, the bidder should include the word “Credit” at the beginning of the description, and continue 
to describe the option being credited.  For example, “Credit: one key fob” that corresponds with the price 
the bidder will credit the purchaser.   
 
 

2.15	 EMERGENCY	LIGHTS	AND	SIRENS		
 
Under Florida Statute 316.003(1), authorized emergency vehicles are defined as: 
 

Vehicles of the fire department (fire patrol), police vehicles, and such ambulances and emergency 
vehicles of municipal departments, public service corporations operated by private corporations, 
the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, the Department of Environmental Protection, the 
Department of Health, the Department of Transportation, and the Department of Corrections as 
are designated or authorized by their respective department or the chief of police of an 
incorporated city or any sheriff of any of the various counties. 
 

Bidders that will provide or contract to provide emergency light and siren installation must also submit 
Emergency Vehicle Technician Certifications for the individuals working for the bidder or the designated 
third-party supplier who will perform the installation. FSA reserves the right to accept certifications up and 
until final award. 
 
Vendors that will install emergency lights and sirens are required to provide and install products that are 
Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE) certified.  SAE Certifications must include Class 1, Class 2 and Class 3 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	30	
 

in order to be eligible for participation in the Contract. If a lighting or siren product installed on an 
emergency vehicle is not SAE Certified, the vendor can be found in default of the Contract.  
 
Prices submitted for emergency lights and sirens shall include all applicable government imposed fees.  
 
Labor may be charged for the installation of emergency lights and sirens. Labor rates must be disclosed as 
part of the bid submission. 
 
For vehicles that are manufacturered with emergency lights and sirens, including motorcycles, bidders may 
not charge for labor, emergency lights or sirens that come from the factory equipped with these features 
as standard equipment.   
 
Bid Submission of Emergency Lights and Sirens  
Bidders will be asked to provide pricing for emergency lights and sirens by submitting a pricing sheet.  The 
bid system will receive pricing through a standardized Excel file. The pricing sheet will include:  

• Group 
• Order code 
• Description 
• Price (part only) 
• Labor hours 
• Labor cost per hour  

 

2.16	 SUBMITTAL	OF	BID	
  

Bidders are required to submit a bid using the FSA bid system, VendorLink.  Bid submissions include pricing 
for the base specification, option descriptions and pricing, and any applicable lighting/siren pricing, as well 
as all other required documentation. 
 
The bid must be received by the date and time specified on the Bid Calendar. Failure to meet all submission 
requirements by the date indicated on the Bid Calendar will result in rejection of the bid.  
 
Bid System: VendorLink 
Bidders must submit their bid electronically using the on  the FSA bid system, which is located at 
https://www.myvendorlink.com. Bids not submitted within VendorLink will be rejected. Bidders are 
encouraged to participate in training provided for Vendorlink.   
 
User names and passwords will be issued to qualified  after registering in the bid system, qualified bidders 
will be invited to bid.   
 
Prices are to be rounded to the nearest whole dollar (i.e. $10, not $10.05). The bid system allows for cents, 
however the bid evaluation is based on the whole dollar.  If a bidder submits bid pricing using cents, the 
following formula will be applied: 

• $.01-.49 will be rounded down to the prior dollar bid (e.g. $50.49 = $50) 
• $.50-.99 will be rounded to the next dollar (e.g. $50.50 =$51) 

 
Bid Submission 
To ensure correct bid submittal and formatting, Bidders shall: 
 

1. Submit bid electronically through the FSA bid system, VendorLink, for the applicable bid. 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	31	
 

2. Input bid price in the bid system price field within each specification being bid. 
3. Upload files only in MS Word (.doc or .docx), Excel (.xls or .xlsx), and PowerPoint (.ppt or .pptx); 

Adobe Portable Document Format (.pdf); or Compressed File (ZIP) formats. 
4. Enable printing on files submitted. 
5. Separate and identify each part of the submission (i.e. document type, form type, content type) 

with a divider/separation page.) 
6. Bids must be input into the standardized format in VendorLink. 
7. Contact VendorLink technical support at support@evendorlink.com, if technical difficulties arise 

during bid submission. 
8. Follow all instructions outlined in this Invitation to Bid and provide all requested information. 

The bid submitted in VendorLink shall include the following documents:   

• Executed Contract Signature Page  

• Build sheet in a single merged .pdf document for each item bid as prescribed in the FSA bid system. 

o A build sheet is a document from the bidder or manufacturer that confirms that the 
vehicle or equipment bid matches the FSA base specification.  If using the manufacturer’s 
print-out, the document shall include the FSA bid specification item number, and indicate 
the manufacturer’s base model code and display the standard equipment required to 
provide the base vehicle or equipment as outlined in the FSA base specification.  For 
example, manufacturer print-outs can include Ford – Dora, General Motors – GM 
Autobook.  Carbook Pro build sheets are acceptable. If vendor-installed aftermarket 
components are used to meet the base specification and these components must be 
identified on the build sheet.  Build sheets for each item bid must be complied into a 
single .pdf document.  Build sheets should be in numerical order by specification, clearly 
identifiable by specification or item number, and include model name and number.   If 
FSA cannot determine which specification the build sheet is for, the item bid can be 
rejected as nonresponsive. 

• Option pricing required as a single merged .pdf document as prescribed in the FSA bid system.   

• Pricing Sheet for Emergency Vehicle Lights and Sirens, if applicable. 

• Emergency Vehicle Technician Certifications, if applicable.  

• Service Standard Plan, Section 2.02, if applicable. 

• Any requested equivalents, Section 2.10, or exceptions, Section 2.08. 

• Certificates of Insurance, as applicable for policies in existence at the time of bid submission 

FSA may ask awarded bidders to supply one hard copy set with original, written signatures and original 
compliance forms, prior to the contract execution. Hard copy bids should not be submitted unless 
specifically requested by FSA. 
 

2.17	 ZONE	BIDDING	
 
Bidders are allowed to bid in one or more geographic zones.  The zone map is included in Appendix B.  A 
space is provided for the bidder to indicate pricing for each zone. The bidder only submits a bid for each 
zone if pricing is provided for each zone.  
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	32	
 

2.18	 EXECUTION	OF	BID	
 
By submitting a response to this Invitation to Bid, the bidder agrees to the terms and conditions of this 
contract and to be bound by such terms and conditions if selected for award.  The bidder must submit the 
Contract Signature Page with the signature of an authorized representative no later than the date of the 
final award.  
 

2.19	 MODIFICATION	OR	WITHDRAWALS	OF	BIDS	
 
A bidder may submit a modified bid to replace all or any portion of a previously submitted bid until the due 
date and time listed in the Bid Calendar. Modifications received after the bid due date and time will not be 
considered. 
 
Bids can be withdrawn in writing prior to the contract award. If a bidder believes that the bidder must 
withdraw the bid, the bidder must contact FSA immediately. Bid withdrawals are handled on a case by case 
basis, and can result in a limitation of participation in future bids.  
 

2.20	 LATE	BIDS	
 

The responsibility for submitting a bid before the stated due date and time on the bid calendar is solely and 
strictly the responsibility of the bidder. The FSA is not responsible for delays caused by technical problems, 
any internet outages or delays incurred by electronic delivery, or any other occurrence. Any reference to 
time will be based on Eastern Time.  
 

2.21	 BID	OPENING	
 
Bids shall be opened on the date and time specified on the Bid Calendar. The bid opening will occur at the 
Florida Sheriffs Association, 2617 Mahan Drive, Tallahassee, Florida.  
 
FSA shall read the bidder name and verify that the bidder successfully input the bid within the timeframe 
prescribed for bid submission in the Bid Calendar. 
 

2.22	 DETERMINATION	OF	RESPONSIVENESS	
 
Determination of responsiveness will take place at the time of bid opening and evaluation. In order to be 
deemed a responsive bidder, the bid must conform in all material respects to the requirements stated in 
the Contract. As set forth in section 2.27, FSA reserves the right to waive or allow a vendor to correct minor 
irregularities. 
 

2.23	 RESPONSIBLE	BIDDER	CRITERIA	
 
Bids will be evaluated to determine if eligibility and contract requirements are met. Responses that do not 
meet all requirements of this Invitation to Bid or fail to provide all required information, documents or 
materials may be rejected as nonresponsive. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	33	
 

Bidders whose responses, past performance, or current status do not reflect the capability, integrity, or 
reliability to fully and in good faith perform the requirements of the Contract may be rejected as non-
responsible. In determining a responsible bidder, the following factors may be considered: 
 

• Adequacy of facilities, staffing, and financial resources; 

• Previous experience with FSA contract or other similar government contracts; 

• Ability to provide excellent customer service, including previous FSA contracts; 

• Any other information relevant to the responsibility of a vendor that FSA is aware of. 

In addition to the requirements of Section 2.01, FSA reserves the right to request staffing, performance and 
financial information from any bidder during the evaluation process if FSA determines this information is 
necessary to award the bid. 
 
FSA reserves the right to determine which responses meet the requirements, specifications, terms and 
conditions of the solicitation, and which bidders are responsive and responsible.  
 
FSA further reserves the right to limit participation of bidders who, in FSA’s sole discretion, are determined 
to present responsibility concerns that call into question the bidder’s ability to perform but that do not rise 
to the level of requiring rejection of the bidder as nonresponsible. 
 

2.24	 BASIS	FOR	AWARD		
 
The FSA shall make awards to the lowest bidder by specification, by manufacturer and by zone to bidders 
deemed to be responsive and responsible. Awards may also be made to the second and third lowest bidders 
by specification, by manufacturer and by zone, if applicable and determined to be in the best interest of 
the FSA and the purchaser. 
 
The Fleet Advisory Committee serves as the initial review for bid submissions.  The Fleet Advisory 
Committee’s review is submitted to the FSA for final evaluation and determination of award. 
 
The options in the bid shall be for informational purposes only and will not serve as a basis for bid protest.  
However, the FSA has the discretion to consider option pricing in making the award if doing so would be in 
the best interests of the FSA or the purchaser. 
 
FSA reserves the right to accept or reject any and all bids, and to waive any minor irregularity, technicality 
or omission if it determines that doing so will serve the purchaser’s best interest. 
 

2.25		 FIRM	BID		
 

Bidder warrants by virtue of bidding it is submitting a firm bid and the prices quoted in their bid response 
will be good for an evaluation period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date of bid opening, and if awarded 
through the duration of the contract unless otherwise addressed by a contract extension or price 
adjustment as provided in this contract.   
 
By virtue of the bid submission, bidder acknowledges its obligation to sell vehicles and equipment in all 
zones for which it is awarded.  Failure of the bidder to comply with these requirements may result in the 
imposition of liquidated damages of up to $1,000 per vehicle or equipment, which amount the vendor 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	34	
 

agrees is reasonable, or probation, suspension, termination or a combination thereof from current and 
future bids at the FSA’s discretion. 

 

2.26	 BID	TABULATIONS	
 
The Bid Tabulation report will be posted on the FSA Cooperative Purchasing Program website after the bid 
submission closes as indicated in the Bid Calendar. https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-
programs/cooperative-purchasing-program/dealers-only. 
 
If there is a delay in posting the bid tabulation results, FSA will post a notice of the delay and a revised date 
for posting of results. 
 

2.27	 MINOR	IRREGULARITIES/RIGHT	TO	REJECT	
 
The FSA has the right to accept or reject any and all bids, or separate portions thereof, and to waive any 
minor irregularity, technicality or omission if the FSA determines that doing so will serve its best interest or 
the best interest of the purchasers. A minor irregularity is a variation from the terms and conditions of this 
procurement that does not affect the price of the bid or give the bidder a substantial advantage over other 
bidders and thereby restrict or stifle competition and does not adversely impact the interests of the FSA or 
the purchasers. At its option, the FSA may allow a bidder to correct minor irregularities but is under no 
obligation to do so. In doing so, the FSA may request a bidder to provide clarifying information or additional 
materials to correct the irregularity. However, the FSA will not request and a bidder may not provide the 
FSA with additional materials that affect the price of the bid, or give the bidder an advantage or benefit not 
enjoyed by other bidders. 
 
The FSA may also reject any bids not submitted in the manner specified in this document. 
 

2.28	 CONE	OF	SILENCE	
 
This Invitation to Bid is subject to the Cone of Silence that begins the date the bid submission opens through 
the bid award date and effective date of the awarded contract as indicated in the Bid Calendar.  During this 
period all communications regarding this solicitation between FSA and Bidder will cease, except for 
procedural questions, questions regarding problems incurred in the use of the the bid system, or 
communications initiated by the FSA.  All permitted communications during this period shall be made in 
writing to the procurement contacts identified in Section 1.01 of this Invitation to Bid.   
 
FSA is not responsible for bidder’s improper use of the bid system.  Exceptions will be granted to this section 
should any bid system malfunctions occur.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	35	
 

3.0			CONTRACT	CONDITIONS	
 
3.01	 GENERAL	REQUIREMENTS		

 
Once the bid has been awarded, the terms and conditions of this document become the Contract between 
the FSA and the awarded vendor. 
 
The terms and conditions apply to all vehicles and equipment purchased from this contract. 
 

3.02		 STATEMENT	OF	AUTHORITY	
 

Each person signing the Contract warrants that he/she is duly authorized to do so and binds the respective 
party to the Contract. 
 

3.03		 VENDOR	CONTACT	INFORMATION	
 
The vendor will maintain current contact information with FSA at all times.  
 
If a change occurs during the contract, the vendor must notify FSA immediately.  The Vendor Change 
Document must be completed, signed by an authorized representative and submitted via e-mail to 
CPP@flsheriffs.org.  
 
A sample Vendor Change Document can be found in Appendix A and on the FSA website. 
 

3.04	 OPTION	TO	RENEW	&	PRICE	ADJUSTMENT	
 
Renewal Option 
The contract may be renewed by mutual agreement, initiated at the discretion of the FSA, for up to two (2) 
additional years, on a year to year basis. The FSA reserves the right to in its sole discretion elect to renew 
the contract in whole or in part. 
 
In the event that the contract is held beyond the term provided herein, it shall be on a month-to-month 
basis only and shall not constitute an implied renewal of the contract. Such a month-to-month extension 
shall be upon the same terms of the contract and at the compensation and payment provided herein. 
 
Price Adjustment 
On an annual basis during the contract term, the FSA may consider a price adjustment due to changes in 
the Producer Price Index (PPI) as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as 
a result of any changes to national or state standards that require substantial cost adjustments, significant 
manufacturer changes to the production of and specification design, or in the event of material changes in 
tariffs that result in cost increases of 15% or more. 
 
The price adjustment request may be considered and implemented by FSA on an annual basis during the 
initial term, or upon the completion of the initial term or a 12-month renewal period.  Price adjustments 
will be implemented upon request from a vendor or in the event that the FSA determines in its sole 
discretion that such a price adjustment is warranted. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	36	
 

 
Prices may be increased or decreased by the percentage change reflected in the nationally published PPI.  
FSA shall determine the PPI based on the most recent published PPI initiated at the time of renewal that 
best reflects adjustments to the economy over the previous 12 months. 
 
In the event of changes to national or state standards, the vendor must present verifiable changes in cost 
to FSA.  The FSA will consider the cost changes and will make a final determination on the change in price.  
 
In cases where manufacturers have significant changes to production and specification design to an 
awarded item, FSA will consider certified manufacturer price changes and may allow price adjustments to 
reflect such changes in price from the manufacturer to the awarded vendor.   
 
For any vendor-initiated price adjustment to commence on the first day of the renewed contract term, 
extension or the end of a 12-month period, the vendor's request or adjustment should be submitted one 
hundred and twenty (120) calendar days prior to expiration of the then current contract, extension or 12-
month period. The vendor-initiated price adjustment request must clearly substantiate the reasons for the 
requested increase.  If no request is received from the vendor, the FSA will assume that the vendor has 
agreed that the optional term may be exercised without pricing adjustment. Any adjustment request 
received after the commencement of a new option period will not be considered. 
 
The FSA reserves the right to accept the renewal adjustment or to allow the contract to fully or partially 
terminate and readvertise for bids, whichever is in the best interest of the FSA. 

 

3.05	 ADDITIONS	AND	DELETIONS		
 
The FSA reserves the right to add or delete any items from this bid or resulting contract when deemed to 
be in the best interest of FSA and the participating purchasers. 

 
FSA reserves the right to remove, discontinue or suspend the sale or offering of any product within the 
Invitation to Bid document or existing contract, at its discretion. 
 
This decision to take action may be based upon and not limited to: 
 

• Few or no sales; 

• Product recalls and other safety issues; 

• Vendor/Manufacturer performance; or 

• Lack of relevance of products. 

 

3.06	 EQUITABLE	ADJUSTMENT	
 

The FSA may make an equitable adjustment to the contract terms or pricing at its discretion. 
 

3.07				CONDITIONS	
 
It is understood and agreed that any item offered or shipped as a result of this bid shall be the most current 
model offered, i.e. the most current production model at the time of this bid.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	37	
 

 

3.08	 PRODUCTION	CUTOFF	
 

Vendor shall notify the FSA in writing no less than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the close of final order 
date by the manufacturer when the final order date is during the term of the contract.  Notification shall be 
provided in writing.  

 
Purchase orders received by the vendor ten (10) business days prior to the final order date must be 
accepted and entered into the order system with the manufacturer.   
 
If a purchase order has been timely received by the vendor or the manufacturer, and the manufacturer fails 
to produce or deliver the production year vehicle, the vendor must provide the next year’s equivalent model 
at current contract prices. 

 
Purchase orders issued and received after the production cutoff date will be subject to availability.  In this 
case, the vendor and manufacturer have the discretion whether to choose to provide next year’s model at 
current year’s prices until the end of the contract term. 
 
If the manufacturer cutoff date is during the term of the contract and will affect the purchaser’s ability to 
obtain the specifications, FSA may consider substitutions from the same manufacturer. 

 

3.09	 FACILITIES	
 
 The FSA reserves the right to inspect the vendor’s facilities at any time with prior notice. 
 

3.10	 SUBSTITUTIONS	
 
The FSA or purchasers will NOT accept substitutes of any kind. Vendors are expected to furnish the brand 
quoted in the bid once awarded. Any substitutes will be returned at the vendor’s expense. Delivery of 
substitutes and the delay in supplying the correct specification can be deemed grounds for termination for 
default. 

 

3.11	 POLICE	RATED	VEHICLES	&	MOTORCYCLES		
  

Vehicles in this category have been reviewed by one or more of the nationally recognized authorities on 
Police Vehicle Testing Program/Evaluation.   
 
These evaluations are not designed to recommend a particular product, but to serve as a resource for 
vehicles which are currently being offered for law enforcement service.  To see the full detailed report click 
or copy the links below. 
 
The importance with which each individual phase is weighted in these evaluations is a subjective decision 
which should be made by each agency based upon that agency’s needs. 
 
For the purposes of this bid, the following are recognized authorities: 
 

State of Michigan, Department of State Police and Department of Technology, Management and 
Budget Police Vehicle Evaluation Program      



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	38	
 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/msp/2019MYPoliceVehicleEvaluationTestBook_ 
639203_7.pdf 
 
Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department Law Enforcement Vehicle Test and Evaluation Program  
Vehicles:   
https://www.lasd.org/pdfjs/web/viewer.html?file=VehicleTestBooklet.pdf 
 
Motorcycles: 
https://www.lasd.org/pdf/2017_MotorcycleTestBooklet12192017.pdf 

 

3.12	 SPECIAL	SERVICE	VEHICLES	
 
Vehicles in this category in some cases have been reviewed by one or more of the nationally recognized 
authorities on Police Vehicle Testing Program/Evaluation.  These vehicles are labeled as Special Service 
Vehicle (SSV) and often used in public safety applications and other areas of government.  Refer to 
manufactures published information for detailed information regarding these vehicles. 

  

3.13	 CAB	AND	CHASSIS	PURCHASES	
 

Cab and Chassis can be purchased from the vendor without any required additional fitting by the vendor.  
If an incomplete chassis is sold to an agency, then the vendor is not responsible for the tag and title. Vendors 
are responsible for tag and title work if the chassis is completed by the vendor or the vendor’s contracted 
third party supplier. 
 
FSA highly recommends that all upfitting of cab and chassis be performed by vendors who are licensed and 
certified to perform such work to avoid unnecessary exposure to future liability.  
 
The requirements of Florida Statute 319.21 related to the manufacturer statement of origin apply to cab 
and chassis purchases. 

 

3.14	 FACTORY	INSTALLED	
 

All options specified as factory installed are to be installed on the vehicle at the primary site of assembly 
and is to be the manufacturer’s standard assembly-line product.  No aftermarket and no vendor-installed 
equipment will be accepted as factory installed.  Vendors found supplying aftermarket or vendor-installed 
equipment where factory installed are specified may be required to retrieve all delivered vehicles and 
reorder new vehicles meeting the specifications.  
 
All factory ordered options are to be original equipment manufacturer (OEM) and factory installed unless 
otherwise noted by the vendor and acknowledged in writing by the purchaser.  Verbal agreements will not 
be recognized. 
 
Aftermarket parts, modifications, and factory produced parts and components ordered and installed by a 
vendor that do not meet the requirements of factory installed components, will be rejected for 
noncompliance with the requirements of the specification.   

 
In the event that a component that does not meet the specifications is found installed on a vehicle before 
or after the vehicle has been accepted by the purchaser, the vendor shall be required to replace the vehicle 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	39	
 

with a vehicle that meets the required specifications, including factory installed components. In the 
alternative, the purchaser shall decide whether they will accept vendor installed components.   
 
 

3.15	 VENDOR	INSTALLED	OPTIONS	
 

All vendor-installed accessories or options shall be installed according to the manufacturer’s specifications.  
Examples include, but are not limited to a roll bar, trailer hitch, etc. 
 
All such accessories must be manufactured by an established manufacturer of the product provided. Vendor 
is required to disclose Make and Model of product being offered and the location, design, and model must 
be approved by the purchaser prior to installation.  Prior to any purchase, the  vendor must also disclose 
the warranty of any item that is less than or exceeds the factory vehicle or equipment warranty coverage. 

 
A vendor that employs a third-party supplier or subcontracts technicians to install emergency equipment 
on vehicles purchased on this contract is required to utilize technicians that are certified in Law 
Enforcement Vehicle Installation through EVT Certification Commission, Inc. or an approved equivalent. 

 
The FSA may at any time during the contract period request proof of the required certification.  
 
Any vendor that violates this provision will be considered in default of the contract. FSA may terminate the 
contract in accordance with Section 1.45 of this Invitation to Bid. 

 

3.16	 NON-SCHEDULED	OPTIONS	
 

FSA requests vendors include most frequently purchased scheduled, factory and aftermarket options in the 
bid document.  If a purchaser requests a non-scheduled option that is not included in the bid document, 
the vendor may provide this non-scheduled option. The purchaser has the opportunity to request the 
vendor’s discount pricing for any non-scheduled options during the quote process. At no time should the 
non-scheduled option exceed MSRP or Published List Price.  
 
Non-scheduled options should be listed as a separate line item and noted on the purchase order to include 
the price. All non-scheduled options are covered under these terms and conditions.  

	
3.17		 FORCE	MAJEURE	

  
A vendor shall not be penalized for a delay resulting from the vendor’s failure to comply with delivery 
requirements if neither the fault nor the negligence of the vendor or its employees contributed to the delay 
and the delay is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other 
similar cause wholly beyond the vendor’s control, or for any of the foregoing that third party suppliers if no 
alternate source of supply is available to the vendor.  

 

3.18	 DELIVERY	TIME	
 
Vendors shall specify the estimated delivery time in calendar days for each item. The purchaser should 
consult the vendor regarding vehicle production schedules. Delivery shall be within the normal working 
hours of the user, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	40	
 

 
  

3.19 ORDER		
 

The vendor shall submit a copy of the purchase order to the FSA within 15 calendar days of receipt from 
the purchaser. 
 
To initiate a purchase, a purchaser issues a purchase order to the vendor, which shall include: 

• The contract number and title,  
• Specification number,  
• Purchaser’s federal identification number, and 
• Name, phone number and email address for the point of contact at the purchasingagency.   
 

Delivery or due dates should be discussed with the vendor at the time the quote is provided to the 
purchaser, or if no quote is provided, when the purchase order is delivered to the vendor. It is important to 
note that vendors do not have any control over production delays in schedules from the manufacturer.   
 
While it is recommended that an agency purchase from the zone which is closest to their location, it is not 
mandatory to do so.  If the purchaser determines that a vendor in another zone can better serve the 
purchaser’s needs, the purchaser may order from a vendor in another zone. Vendors that provide vehicles 
or equipment outside of an awarded zone may upon mutual agreement between the vendor and the 
purchaser charge a delivery fee.  

 
The purchaser should forward an executed copy of the purchase order to the FSA at the same time the 
purchase order is sent to the vendor.  Emails or hard copies are acceptable. Emails can be sent to 
coop@flsheriffs.org.  
 
If a vendor receives a purchase order for a specification for which they were not awarded, the vendor must 
notify the purchaser and return the purchase order to the purchaser within three (3) business days. 
 
All vehicles ordered prior to production cut off and in accordance with the contract shall be supplied in the 
manufacturer’s next model run of that class vehicle even if it requires supplying a later model at the original 
bid prices. 
 
Vendor shall place the order with the manufacturer within 10 business days of receipt of the purchase 
order. The vendor shall assure that all orders are placed in full compliance with the specifications and the 
terms and conditions of the Contract and the purchase order.   
 
It is the vendor’s responsibility to ensure that the vehicle or equipment ordered by the purchaser is fully 
compatible with all ordered options and that the vehicle complies with all applicable manufacturer and 
industry standards. The vendor’s acceptance of a purchaser’s order will indicate that the vendor agrees to 
deliver a vehicle that will be fully compatible with all of its options.  
 
Any changes that are required to bring a vehicle or equipment into compliance with the various options 
due to an incorrect order will be accomplished at the vendor’s expense. 
 
A Confirmation of Order form shall be completed by the vendor and returned to the purchaser 14 calendar 
days from receipt of purchase order without notification by the purchaser. An example Confirmation of 
Order form is included in Appendix C.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	41	
 

 
Any additional information needed to complete this form should be obtained from the purchaser.  The form 
may be modified to accommodate each purchaser as necessary.   
 

3.20		 VEHICLE	AND	EQUIPMENT	DELIVERY	
 
At a minimum, pre-delivery service shall include the following: 
 
• Standard Vendor and Manufacturer protocol for new vehicle and equipment delivery; 
 
• Cleaning of vehicle and equipment, if necessary, and removal of all unnecessary tags, stickers, or 

papers (window price sticker or supplied line sheet shall remain); 
 
• Speedometer must be correct regardless of the tires provided by the vehicle manufacturer or axle 

ratio furnished; 
 
• Verification that the hour meter does not exceed five (5) hours for equipment; 
 
• Owner’s manual and warranty manual to accompany each vehicle and equipment; and 
 
• MSRP list sheet (window sticker) MUST be in the vehicle when it is delivered to the purchaser.  

Vehicles that are missing this form, or have forms that have been altered will not be accepted.  Build 
sheets, or documentation that verifies what components are included on the equipment being 
delivered, must be provided for equipment. 

 
The vendor shall be responsible for delivering vehicles and equipment that are properly serviced, clean and 
in first class operating condition.   
 
Vendor shall complete delivery of the vehicle and equipment to the purchaser within fourteen (14) calendar 
days of receipt of the vehicle from the manufacturer or equipment supplier. This deadline shall not apply 
to vehicles originating as an incomplete chassis. 
 
Receipt of a vehicle or equipment by the vendor is defined as acceptance of the vehicle or equipment from 
a common carrier at the vendor’s place of business or any third party’s place of business. 
 
Deliveries of less than 350 miles may be accomplished by driving the vehicle. Any delivery accomplished by 
driving the vehicle must be supervised and the driver must comply with manufacturer’s break-in 
requirements and all applicable traffic laws. Any delivery accomplished by driving a police rated vehicle 
must use an “OUT OF SERVICE” cover on light bars.  
 
All deliveries in excess of 350 miles shall be made by transport, or otherwise approved by the purchasing 
agency. However, this requirement shall not apply to incomplete chassis. The purchaser has the option to 
reject a vehicle with more than 350 odometer miles, or may deduct $0.51 cents per mile in excess of 350 
miles from the invoice, unless distance above 350 miles was previously approved by the purchaser. This 
requirement also applies to redelivery of vehicles that were rejected upon initial delivery.  Equipment with 
more than five (5) hours on the hour meter may be rejected by the purchaser or the purchaser may choose 
to negotiate a lower purchase price when the unit exceeds five hours. 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	42	
 

All warranties shall begin at the time of delivery to the purchaser. The purchaser’s warranty should not be 
active for incomplete vehicles or equipment and vehicles or equipment delivered to a third-party supplier 
before final delivery.  
 
Vendor shall notify the purchaser no less than twenty four (24) hours prior to delivery of the time and 
location, which shall reflect the mutually agreed upon delivery details. Transport deliveries must be 
unloaded and inspected by purchaser. Deliveries not complying with these requirements may be rejected 
and will have to be redelivered at vendor’s expense. 
 
All vehicles or equipment with fuel tanks of thirty-five (35) gallons or less must contain no less than one 
quarter (1/4) tank of fuel as indicated by the fuel gauge at the time of delivery. For vehicles and equipment 
that have more than thirty-five (35) gallons, a minimum of one eighth (1/8) of a tank of fuel must be 
provided. 
 

3.21	 INSPECTION	AND	ACCEPTANCE		
 

It is the responsibility of the purchaser to inspect a vehicle or equipment for any damages.   
 
Each purchaser shall make a good faith effort to inspect the vehicles or equipment before or at the time of 
delivery for acceptance.  One (1) day is the suggested period for inspection.  However, if reasonable 
accommodations for inspection cannot be made upon delivery, the purchaser may have up to three (3) 
business days to inspect the vehicle or equipment for acceptance. 
 
Inspection and acceptance will be at the purchaser’s destination unless otherwise previously agreed upon 
location was provided in the purchase order.  
 
It is the purchaser’s responsibility to thoroughly inspect each vehicle and equipment prior to acceptance. 
Copies of the bid specifications and purchase order will be delivered with the vehicle. Purchasers are to 
inspect the vehicle and equipment and compare bid specifications, purchase order and manufacturer’s 
window sticker or manufacturer’s invoice to ensure vehicle or equipment meets or exceeds the 
requirements of the bid specifications and the submitted purchase order. Purchasers should inspect the 
vehicle and equipment for physical damage. 

 
Delivery of a vehicle or equipment to a purchaser does not constitute acceptance for the purpose of 
payment. Final acceptance and authorization of payment shall be given only after a thorough inspection 
indicates that the vehicle and equipment meet contract specifications and the requirements listed below. 
 
Should the delivered vehicle differ in any respect from specifications, payment can be withheld until such 
time as the vendor completes the necessary corrective action.  
 
Units shall be delivered with each of the following documents completed or included: 

 
1. Copy of Customer’s Purchase Order 
2. Copy of the applicable Vehicle or equipment specification 
3. Copy of Manufacturer’s Invoice or Window Sticker for vehicles (prices may be deleted from the 

manufacturer’s invoice); or a Build sheet, or documentation that verifies what components are 
included on the equipment being delivered, for equipment  

4. Copy of Pre-Delivery Service Report 
5. Warranty Certification 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	43	
 

6. Owner’s manual 
7. If the vendor does not provide the tag and title, then the DHSMV 82040 (Application for Certificate 

of Title and/or Vehicle Registration) which requires a signature of authorized representative.  
 

Deliveries that do not include the above items will be considered incomplete and can be refused. 
 

3.22	 REGISTRATION,	TAG	AND	TITLE	
 
Costs of registration, tag and title shall not exceed the statutory rates. FSA administrative fee does not apply 
to tag and title work. 
 
Title items shall be the responsibility of the vendor.  If the purchaser is a government agency, the purchaser 
has the right to choose to register and title the vehicle or equipment.   
 
Reasonable administrative costs for registration and title services, including obtaining temporary tags, tag 
transfers, and new tags are permitted.  All costs associated with obtaining, filing and shipping of tags shall 
be listed as an option during the bid submission for each item bid.  Administrative costs can include 
convenience fees, cost reimbursements for filing, obtaining or delivery of tags, or any costs over the original 
purchase price of the registration and title. Administrative costs for registration and titling can be 
negotiated between the purchaser and the vendor. 
 

3.23	 INVOICING	AND	PAYMENTS	
 

Invoicing and payments shall be the responsibility of the vendor and purchaser placing orders using this 
contract. Vendors must invoice each purchaser independently.  

 
A purchaser has three (3) business days to inspect and accept the vehicles or equipment. The vendor shall 
be paid upon submission of invoices to the Purchaser after satisfactory delivery and acceptance of the 
vehicles and/or equipment.  
 
The Local Government Prompt Payment Act will apply to ensure timely payment of Vendor invoices.  The 
Local Government Prompt Payment Act is defined in Sections 218.70–218.79 of Florida Statutes. 
 

3.24	 WARRANTY	REPAIRS	AND	SERVICE			
 

All warranties shall begin at time of delivery and final acceptance by the purchaser. Failure by any 
manufacturer’s authorized representative to render proper warranty service or adjustments, including 
providing a copy of the warranty work order to the purchaser, may subject the vendor to suspension from 
the approved vendor listing until satisfactory evidence of correction is presented to the FSA. 

 

3.25	 INADEQUATE	SERVICE	
 

When vehicles and equipment require service or adjustments upon delivery, the vendor shall either remedy 
the defect, or be responsible for reimbursing the manufacturer’s local authorized representative or other 
service provider to remedy the defect. Such service or adjustments shall be initiated by the vendor within 
48 hours after notification by a purchaser, not to include weekends and holidays. Delivery will not be 
considered complete until all services or adjustments are satisfactory and the vehicle or equipment is 
redelivered.  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	44	
 

 
The provisions of the delivery section shall remain in effect until the redelivery is accomplished. The cost of 
any transportation required shall be the responsibility of the vendor until the vehicles or equipment are 
satisfactory and accepted by the purchaser. 
 

3.26 REPORTING:	PURCHASE	ORDERS	&	QUARTERLY	REPORTS		
 
Purchase Orders  
The vendor must submit copies of purchase orders upon receipt to the FSA.  Purchase orders are considered 
late if not submitted fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of the purchase order.  Purchase orders and 
accompanying documentation shall include base specification items purchased and all options itemized 
separately. 
 
Vendors should scan a complete copy of the purchase order and attach it as a .pdf.  Place the document 
title in the subject line of the e-mail and send purchase order copies to COOP@flsheriffs.org.  
 
The files should be named using the the name of the purchasing entity, the purchaser type and the PO 
number.  The purchaser type other can include any other eligible purchaser including special district, fire 
department or other purchasing entity not specifically named here.  Out of state sales should include the 
state in the name. 
 
 

PURCHASER TYPE SAMPLE STRUCTURE EXAMPLE 
MUNICIPALITY City Name PO 12345.pdf Tallahassee PO 12345.pdf 
COUNTY County Name County PO 12345.pdf Leon County PO 12345.pdf 
EDUCATION Educational Institution Name PO 

12345.pdf 
Florida State University PO 
12345.pdf 

OTHER Special District Name PO 12345.pdf Northwest Florida Water 
Management District PO 12345.pdf 

SHERIFF Sheriff Office Name PO 12345.pdf Leon County Sheriff PO 12345.pdf 
 
 
Quarterly Reports 
Quarterly reports are the contractual responsibility of each vendor. Quarterly reports which do not adhere 
to the required format (as set forth in Appendix D) or are not complete of all purchase orders received 
and/or deliveries made during the quarter will be returned to the reporting vendor for correction of 
deficiencies.  
 
Quarterly reports track the purchase orders received, deliveries made, and vendor administrative fees 
prescribed in Section 3.28 due in a given quarter.  
 
All required quarterly report templates can be downloaded from the FSA website under the Cooperative 
Purchasing Program page, Other Links, Vendor Only page.  All quarterly reports are to be sent to 
REPORTS@flsheriffs.org.  
 
The quarterly report template shall be submitted using the Excel workbook provided.  The workbook  
contains three 3 worksheets. The first worksheet titled “Instructions” must be completed with the name 
of the vendor and the quarter being reported in the fields that appear in red text. The quarter being 
reported should be selected from the drop down box. This information will be copied to the report page 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	45	
 

headers in each worksheet. The second worksheet must contain all sales or purchase orders received 
during the quarter. The third worksheet must contain information on all deliveries made during the 
quarter. This tab will automatically calculate the administrative fee due to FSA. 
 
Purchase orders should not be sent with quarterly reports. A screenshot of the template of a quarterly 
report is located in Appendix D. Quarterly reports must be completed and submitted electronically. 
Quarterly reports are due no later than the 15th day of the month following the end of the quarter. 

 
Quarterly reports shall follow this schedule for the duration of the contract:  

 
Contract Year 1: October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021 
 

Year 1 Quarter 1: October 1 – December 31 Q1 Report Due: January 15 
Year 1 Quarter 2: January 1 – March 31 Q2 Report Due: April 15 
Year 1 Quarter 3: April 1 – June 30 Q3 Report Due: July 15 
Year 1 Quarter 4: July 1 – September 30 Q4 Report Due: October 15 

 
Contract Year 2: October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022 
 

Year 2 Quarter 1: October 1 – December 31 Q1 Report Due: January 15 
Year 2 Quarter 2: January 1 – March 31 Q2 Report Due: April 15 
Year 2 Quarter 3: April 1 – June 30 Q3 Report Due: July 15 
Year 2 Quarter 4: July 1 – September 30 Q4 Report Due: October 15 

 
Contract Year 3: October 1, 2022 – September 30, 2023, as applicable 
 

Year 3 Quarter 1: October 1 – December 31 Q1 Report Due: January 15 
Year 3 Quarter 2: January 1 – March 31 Q2 Report Due: April 15 
Year 3 Quarter 3: April 1 – June 30 Q3 Report Due: July 15 
Year 3 Quarter 4: July 1 – September 30 Q4 Report Due: October 15 

 
If a contract extension is executed, the quarterly reports will maintain the same schedule for future 
reporting periods.  
 
Quarterly reports must be submitted even if there are no sales or no deliveries in a quarter. If a vendor 
has no sales within a quarter, the vendor shall indicate “No sales this quarter” on the top row of the sales 
worksheet.  If the vendor has no deliveries in a given quarter, the vendor shall indicate “No deliveries this 
quarter” on the top row of the delivery worksheet.   

 
FSA reserves the right to modify the procedure for submitting quarterly reports during the term of the 
contract. Such a change shall not materially modify the substance of the information to be reported, but 
may change the method by which future quarterly reports are to be submitted.  In the event of such a 
change, FSA will provide written notice to all vendors of the method by which future quarterly reports are 
to be submitted. 
 
 

3.27	 ADMINISTRATIVE	FEE			
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	46	
 

The FSA charges three quarters of one percent (.0075) to procure, process and administer the Contract. 
 

After receipt of payment from contract purchases, the vendor shall remit all administrative fees to the FSA 
no later than 15 calendar days after the end of each quarter. All fees payable to the FSA during any given 
quarter will be accompanied and supported by a Quarterly Report.  
 
Bidders are to include the administrative fee of three quarters of one percent (.0075)  in all bid prices.  The 
fee should be incorporated into the price at the time of bid submission  This fee should also be included on 
all add options. The administrative fee will remain payable to FSA and no relief from payment of the 
administrative fee, nor any additional charge to recoup the administrative fee, will be permitted if a vendor 
fails to incorporate the administrative fee in its bid pricing. 
 
The fee should never be listed as a separate line item on any purchase order.   
 
The administrative fee is based on the total purchase order amount of new vehicles or equipment.  This fee 
excludes any value given to purchasers for trade-ins.  Trade-ins, extended warranties and other exchanges 
will not reduce or impact the fee calculation.  
 
The administrative fees are the contractual responsibility of each awarded vendor.  
 
By submission of the quarterly reports and administrative fee, the vendor is certifying the accuracy of the 
reports and deposits. All reports and fee submissions shall be subject to audit by the FSA or their designee. 
 
All participating vendors will be responsible for making sure that FSA has the contact information, including 
e-mail address, for the person responsible for quarterly reports. There will be no reminders for the quarterly 
reports or the administrative fee.  
 
Checks for the administrative fee can be sent to:  
 
    Florida Sheriffs Association  

Cooperative Purchasing Program 
2617 Mahan Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32308 

 
 

3.28	 LIQUIDATED	DAMAGES		
 
The vendor warrants that the product supplied to the FSA or purchaser shall conform in all respects to the 
standards set forth and the failure to comply with this condition will be considered as a breach of contract.  
Any liquidated damages levied because of inadequacies or failures to comply with these requirements shall 
be borne solely by the vendor responsible for same. 
 
Failure to submit the administrative fee with accompanying quarterly reports must be received by FSA 
within 15 calendar days following the end of each quarter will result in the imposition of liquidated 
damages.  Vendors failing to submit administrative fees and/or quarterly reports will incur liquidated 
damages in the amount of $25 for each calendar day that fees and reports are past due, beginning on the 
16th  day following the end of the quarter.  
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	47	
 

If a civil action is initiated by the FSA to recover administrative fees or liquidated damages as set forth in 
this section and Section 3.28, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
costs incurred in the litigation. Venue shall lie in the Circuit Court for the Second Judicial Circuit in and for 
Leon County, Florida. 
 
When quarterly reports are late, liquidated damages are to be included in vendor’s Quarterly Report and 
administrative fee submission. Liquidated damages that remain unpaid beyond 45 calendar days can result 
in FSA, at its sole discretion, implementing contract compliance actions, including but not limited to, 
suspension, limited participation by specifications or zones, disqualification from future solicitations, or 
termination for cause pursuant to Section 1.45. 

 
 

Schedule of Liquidated Damages  
 

Failure to submit quarterly report and/or 
administrative fee on time 

$25 per calendar day 

Failure to report a Purchase Order to FSA within the 
15 calendar days of the purchase order date 

$100 per Purchase Order 

Failure to Report Sales .0075 of the sales price plus 1.5% each month 
following the delivery date. 

 
 

Vendor agrees and acknowledges that its failure to take any of the actions specified in the above schedule 
will damage the FSA, but by their nature such damages are difficult to ascertain.  Accordingly, the above 
specified schedule of liquidated damages shall apply to this contract.  Vendor agrees and acknowledges 
that these liquidated damages are not intended to be and do not constitute a penalty, but are instead 
intended solely to compensate the FSA for damages, and that these amounts are reasonably calculated to 
compensate the FSA for the damages that it will incur as a result of the vendor’s failure to take the specified 
actions.  

 
 
 
 
 

	



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	48	
 

Appendix	A	
  



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	49	
 

Appendix	B	



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	50	
 

Appendix	C	
 

 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	51	
 

Appendix	D	
 
Sales 

 
 
 
Deliveries 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  
Cooperative Purchasing Program 

Contract Terms and Conditions  

 

	 Page	52	
 

Appendix	E	
 
Bid Calendar  
FSA20-VEL28.0 Pursuit, Administrative and Other Vehicles 
FSA20-VEH18.0 Heavy Trucks  
FSA10-EQU18.0 Equipment 
 

 
CALENDAR ITEM DATE 

Bid Announcement  4/22/20 & 5/25/20 
Voluntary Workshops For Contracts FSA20-VEL28.0 &  
FSA20-VEH18.0 * 

6/10/20 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting for Contract FSA20-VEL28.0 *  7/8/20 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting for Contract FSA20-VEH18.0 * 7/9/20 
Request for Clarifications Due  7/30/20 
Mandatory Qualifying Documents Submission  8/3/20 
FSA Response to Request for Clarifications  8/5/19 
Cone of Silence 8/7/20 – 10/1/20 
Bid System Open   8/7/20  
Bid Submissions Due  8/31/20 
Public Bid Opening  9/1/20 
Fleet Advisory Committee Bid Review 9/1/20 – 9/4/20 
Intent to Award Posted 9/9/20 
Final Bid Award 10/1/20 

 
* Details for the Workshop, Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting, and Public Bid Openings will be posted 
on FSA’s website, emailed to interested bidders, or can be found in Florida Administrative 
Registrar (as appropriate) for the dates published. 
 
* FSA intends to do an in-person Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting. However, the FSA has plans to 
conduct the meeting via webinar if conditions do not permit or are not safe for an in-person 
meeting.  If FSA can conduct the meeting in-person, it will be held at the Falkenburg Road Jail 
Assembly Room at the Hillsborough County Sheriff’s Office.   
For the most up to date information on these events, please refer to 
https://www.flsheriffs.org/law-enforcement-programs/cooperative-purchasing-program/bid-
announcements. 
 

 



EXHIBIT “B” 
SURPLUS VEHICLES 

 
#648- 2010 Ford Explorer (CPO Vehicle)   

1FMEU6DE8AUA36639 

 
#629- 2009 Crown Victoria (K-9)   

2FAHP71V29X121926 

 
#685- 2015 Ford Explorer (K-9) 
 

1FM5K8AR7FGC08478 

 



 
Meeting Date: 9/26/2022 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    

From:   Zuzell E. Murguido, Senior Procurement Officer 

    

Subject: Award to Amerant Bank as the City’s Financial Institution via RFP 05-21/22 for 

Banking Services 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Finance- Professional Services that Council award City 

RFP #05-21/22 to Amerant Bank the lowest responsive-responsible bidder and authorize the execution 

of a Professional Services Contract for banking services as funds are to be approved in the FY22/23 

Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code. 

 

DISCUSSION: On June 22, 2022 the City advertised a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services 

of which (9) banks, (118) representatives were notified of the opportunity to bid. On June 29th, the 

Banking institutions were required to attend a Mandatory Pre-Bid conference and (4) four different banks 

were in attendance (Attachment “A”).  On July 19th, the City received (3) three responses (Attachment 

"B") from the following financial institutions: Synovus Bank, Truist and Amerant. 

 

Bank Rates Estimated Monthly 

Banking Charges  

Amerant  0.40% ECR with a fee waive 

option for (1) one year / MMI 

will earn 1.90% APY. / Branch 

2.9 miles away. 

$2,504.25 

Truist ECR 60bps variable, interest on 

excess balance would be indexed 

to 60% of Fed. Funds Target 

Rate. Rate 1.04% with an APY 

of 1.05% / Branch .1 mile away. 

$2,894.68 

Synovus Bank 0.65 ECR with a fee waive 

option for (1) year / MMI is 

1.25%. Branch 5.8 miles away. 

$3,161.78 

   

Responses were evaluated by Zuzell E. Murguido, Senior Procurement Officer, (Attachment "C") based 

on Qualifications, Technical Capabilities, Client References, Operational Plan for the City, Proximity, and 

Price Proposal.  

 

The award Contract will begin effective October 1st, 2022, provided funding is approved in the FY22/23 

Budget, and there will be no fiscal impact to the budget.  

 



 

Submission Date and Time:    9/13/2022 3:41 PM____  

Submitted by: 
 

 

Department:  Procurement Department 

 

Prepared by:  Zuzell Murguido                      

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 

 

Dept. Head:   

  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
 

 

Dept./ Desc.:   

 

Account No.:  

 

Additional Funding:   

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $        

 

                       Current request:  $        

 

              Total vendor amount:  $        

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, SELECTING AMERANT 
BANK, N.A. FOR BANKING SERVICES PURSUANT TO 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 05-21/22; APPROVING A 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT MASTER AGREEMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) issued Request for Proposals 

No. 01-21/22 (the “RFP”) for Banking Services to provide various banking services, 

including treasury management, depository services, check, ACH, wire payments, and 

payroll services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, three sealed bids were received by the RFP deadline; and  

WHEREAS, Amerant Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”) was the lowest, most responsive and 

responsible bidder, submitting the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the 

“Proposal”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFP competitive selection process and the 

recommendation of the City Manager, the City Council desires to select the Bank for the 

Service and approve the Proposal and the Treasury Management Master Agreement, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Selection. That the City Council hereby selects the Bank for the 

Services. 

Section 3. Approval. That the City Council approves the Proposal from the 

Bank attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and the Agreement in substantially the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit “B.”  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to execute the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

“B,” subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form, content, and legal sufficiency; to 

execute any purchase order or required documentation for the Services contemplated by 

the RFP and this Resolution; and to take any and all necessary action which is reasonably 

necessary to implement the Agreement, obtain the Services, and the purposes of this 

Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet     
Councilman Bob Best      
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez      
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 































































































































































































































































































































































































 
Meeting Date: 9/26/2022 

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    

From:   Zuzell E. Murguido, Senior Procurement Officer 

    

Subject: Award to Downtown Towing Company, Inc. as the City’s Towing Company via 

RFP 01-21/22 for Citywide Towing Services 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Finance- Professional Services that Council award City 

RFP #01-21/22 to Downtown Towing Company, Inc., the most responsive-responsible bidder and 

authorize the execution of a Professional Services Contract for Citywide Towing Services as funds are to 

be approved in the FY22/23 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(1) of the City Code. 

 

DISCUSSION: On June 13, 2022 the City advertised a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Citywide Towing 

Services of which (12) towing companies/representatives were notified of the opportunity to bid. On July 

19, 2022 the City received (6) six responses (Attachment "A") from the following towing companies: 

Downtown Towing Company, Inc., Magic Towing, Midtown Towing, R&M Towing and Recovery, 

Roadway Towing and Alpine Towing.  

 

All responses were initially evaluated and deemed responsive by Zuzell E. Murguido, Senior Procurement 

Officer, (Attachment “B”), except for Alpine Towing, as they submitted a Letter of Intent, but did not 

submit a completed bid package and thus were deemed unresponsive with respect to this solicitation.  

 

On September 9, 2022 the City advertised a Notice for the Selection Committee Meeting which was held 

on September 15, 2022. Responses were reviewed, evaluated and ranked (Attachment “C”) by a selection 

committee comprised of Sergeant Albert Sandoval, Lt. Frank Perez and Officer Julio Ferreiro. The 

selection committee ranked the (5) five towing companies. Downtown Towing Company, Inc., was 

considered the highest ranked and most qualified respondent. Responses were evaluated based on 

Qualifications/Experience and Past Performance, Qualifications/Experience of the Project Team, Towing 

Equipment and Facilities, Proximity to City and acceptance of honoring Miami-Dade County’s Towing 

Rates. 

 

The award Contract will begin effective September 27, 2022, provided this item has been approved by 

Council and funding is approved in the FY22/23 Budget, as there will be no fiscal impact to the budget.  

 

Submission Date and Time:    9/15/2022 1:28 PM____  

Submitted by: 
Department:  Procurement Department 
 

Prepared by:  Zuzell Murguido                      

 

 

Attachments:       Yes          No 

 

 

Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 

 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
Dept. Head:   
  

 

Procurement:                                   

                               

 

Asst. City Mgr.:   

 

 

City Manager:   

 

 

Funding: 
Dept./ Desc.:   

 

Account No.:  

 

Additional Funding:   

 

 

Amount previously approved:  $        

 

                       Current request:  $        

              Total vendor amount:  $        

 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, SELECTING DOWNTOWN 
TOWING COMPANY, INC. FOR CITYWIDE TOWING SERVICES 
PURSUANT TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 01-21/22; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) issued Request for Proposals 

No. 01-21/22 (the “RFP”) for Citywide Towing Services (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, six sealed bids were received by the RFP deadline; and  

WHEREAS, Downtown Towing Company, Inc. (the “Contractor”) was the lowest, 

most responsive and responsible bidder receiving the highest ranking from the selection 

committee, followed by Magic Towing and Midtown Towing; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFP competitive selection process and the 

recommendation of the City Manager, the City Council desires to select the Contractor 

for the Services and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute an agreement 

with the Contractor consistent with the RFP and the Contractor’s proposal; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Selection. That the City Council hereby selects the Contractor for 

the Services. 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to negotiate and execute an agreement with the Contractor consistent with the 

RFP and the Contractor’s proposal, subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form, 

content, and legal sufficiency. That the City Manager is further authorized to execute any 

purchase order or required documentation for the Services described in this Resolution, 

subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form and legality; and to take any action 

that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution. 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet     
Councilman Bob Best      
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez      
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 





















































































































































































RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -    

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
THE CENTENNIAL COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) was incorporated on August 23, 

1926, by Glenn Hammond Curtiss and James Bright and is one of the oldest and most 

historic municipalities within Miami-Dade County; and 

WHEREAS, the City is set to celebrate its centennial on August 23, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to begin planning events, decorations, 

promotions, and other activities in honor of the City’s centennial; and 

WHEREAS, to assist in the planning of this historic occasion, the City Council 

hereby seeks to establish an advisory committee to be known as the Centennial 

Committee to develop a vision for the City’s centennial celebration, which vision may 

address potential activities, events, decorations, promotions, themes, and other 

preparations for the City’s centennial; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the value of public input and desires to 

include its residents and business owners in the process of celebrating the City’s 

centennial; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Establishing the Centennial Committee. That the City Council 

hereby establishes an advisory committee to be known as the Centennial Committee (the 

“Committee”) to develop a vision for the City’s centennial celebration. 

Section 3. Duties. The jurisdiction of the Committee shall be solely advisory 

and shall include:  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 5 

a. Developing a vision for the City’s centennial celebration, which vision 

may incorporate and recommend potential activities, events, 

decorations, promotions, themes, and other preparations for the City’s 

centennial; and 

b. Providing the City with input, assistance, and recommendations 

regarding such other matters relating to the City’s centennial celebration 

that the City Council may assign to the Committee. 

Section 4. Terms and Composition of the Committee.  

a. The Committee shall be comprised of 5 voting members and 1 City 

Council Liaison, who shall be a non-voting member. The Mayor and 

each Councilmember shall appoint 1 individual to the Committee and 

shall designate the City Council Liaison to the Committee. The Council 

may by motion or resolution appoint additional non-voting, at-large 

members to the Committee. Committee members shall be residents. 

However, non-residents, business owners, or business operators 

within the City may be appointed to the Committee as non-voting 

members. 

b. Committee members shall be appointed for a term coinciding with the 

term of office of the appointing Mayor or Councilmember. Members may 

be reappointed. 

c. Committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council. 

d. Committee members shall serve without compensation and shall not be 

reimbursed for travel, mileage, or per diem expenses. 

e. Committee members shall not be City employees. Any member who 

becomes employed by the City during his or her term of office shall be 

deemed to have resigned as of the start date of his or her employment 

with the City. 

f. In the event of the resignation or removal of any member of the 

Committee, the appointing Mayor or Councilmember shall appoint a 

person to fill the vacancy on the Committee for the unexpired portion of 

the term of the member vacating such office. 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 3 of 5 

Section 5. Meetings; Rules of Procedure.  

a. The Committee shall meet as needed, but no less than quarterly. The 

Chair of the Committee may call additional meetings of the Committee. 

All meetings shall be open to the public, minutes shall be taken, and 

notice of such meetings shall be provided as required by Florida law.  

b. A majority of the Advisory Committee shall constitute a quorum. 

Pursuant to Section 32-01(E)(3) of the City Code, all matters requiring 

a vote shall be deemed passed only after receiving the affirmative vote 

of a majority of all of the members thereof. Matters receiving an 

affirmative vote of the members present (as distinguished from a 

majority vote of the entire membership), shall be continued until the 

next meeting at which time the matter shall be again considered. Any 

matter failing to receive affirmative vote of a majority of the entire 

membership of the board shall thereafter be deemed defeated, 

notwithstanding that a majority of the members originally present may 

have acted affirmatively. 

c. The Committee shall utilize the fundamental parliamentary procedures 

of Robert’s Rules of Order. 

d. During the first meeting of the Committee, the members shall elect one 

of their members to act as Chair and Vice-Chair. 

e. The Office of the City Clerk shall provide clerical support to the 

Committee. 

f. The Committee shall be subject to and shall comply with the applicable 

provisions of City Code Section 32-01. 

Section 6. Advisory Capacity; Standards of Conduct. The powers and duties 

of the Committee shall be solely of an advisory nature to the City Council. Accordingly, 

Committee members shall comply with the applicable requirements of the Code of Ethics 

for Public Officers and Employees as provided in Part III of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, 

and any other standards of conduct set by federal, state, county, City or other applicable 

law. 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 4 of 5 

Section 7. Report and Recommendations. The Committee shall deliver an 

initial written report detailing the Committee’s vision for the City’s centennial celebration 

(the “Report”) on or before the first regular meeting of the City Council in March 2023. 

The Report shall make recommendations to the City Council relating to the Committee’s 

overall vision for the centennial celebration, and may incorporate and recommend 

potential activities, events, decorations, promotions, theme, and other preparations for 

the City’s centennial celebration. The Report may be amended subsequent to March 

2023.  

Section 8. Dissolution. The Committee shall exist until December 31, 2026; 

provided, however, that the City Council may, by an affirmative motion or resolution, 

dissolve or extend the term of the Committee. 

Section 9. Authorization. The City Council authorizes the City Manager, the 

City Clerk, and the City Attorney to take all actions necessary to implement this 

Resolution.  

Section 10. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        



Res. No. 22-   
Page 5 of 5 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY  



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -    

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, EXTENDING 
THE TERM OF THE BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE FROM SEPTEMBER 30, 
2022, THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2022; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2021, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) Council 

adopted Resolution No. 2021-3918, establishing the Business and Economic 

Development Task Force (the “Task Force”) to study, advise, and make 

recommendations to the City Council with regard to marketing the City, attracting new 

businesses, supporting existing businesses, and providing a vision for the City’s future 

economic and business development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to extend the term of the Task Force from 

September 30, 2022, through October 31, 2022, in order to provide the Task Force with 

additional time to complete its written report and recommendations to the City 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Extending Task Force Term. The Task Force is extended from 

September 30, 2022, through October 31, 2022. The Task Force shall complete its work 

and dissolve upon the expiration of its term or upon delivery of a final report to the City 

Council, whichever comes first, unless extended by further resolution of the City Council. 

Section 3. Implementation. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to take any and all action which is reasonably necessary to implement the 

purpose of this Resolution.  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 4. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    
Councilman Bob Best     
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez     
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 


	Agenda Summary - September 26, 2022
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3
	6A Minutes - Budget Workshop August 29, 2022
	6B Minutes - Regular Meeting September 12, 2022
	8A Resolution - Millage Rate Final 
	8B Resolution - Budget Final
	8C Ordinance - Procurement Revisions
	8D Resolution - 400 Park Street
	9A Resolution - Duval Ford Police
	11A Resolution - Banking Services
	11B Resolution - Towing Services
	11C Resolution - Centennial Committee 
	11D Resolution - Extending BEDTF to October



